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becguse many of thoser communities are gnderserved 17 The HMA Difference
medically, have populations that are growing faster than
the national average, and offer competitive advantages 18 Community Involvement
compared to major urban areas.
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19 Corporate Governance
HMA is a turnaround specialist for non-urban hospitals.

o oo . 20 Hospital Locati
It acquires and then revitalizes hospitals in growing O Hospital Locations

communities with populations of 30,000 to 400,000 21 Report of Management/
that have a clear demographic need. Ideally, these Forward Looking
hospitals are also located in states with Certificate of Statements

Need regulations, have an established physician base,

. ‘ 24 Consolidated Financial
and are available at reasonable prices.

Statements

HMA's strategy is to: 28 Notes to Consolidated

. ' , Financial Statements
* Provide dynamic leadership

® |nvest capital to bring hospital facilities and their 40 Corporate Information

equipment up to the most modern standards 41 Directors and Officers
* Recruit physicians, including sub-specialists, that

expand their hospitals’ breadth of services in response

to community need

® |ntroduce proven hospital practices that improve the
quality of care during a patient’s stay and optimize
the utilization of resources.

This strategy has proven extremely successful.
Since 1991, HMA has acquired 38 hospitals,
increasing its total hospital count, as of
November 1, 2003, to 52 in 16 states and its
licensed beds from 1,593 to 7,540. From
1991 through fiscal year-end 2003, HMA's
revenues rose more than 10-fold to $2.6
billion from $245 milion while net eamings
increased nearly 24-fold to $283 milion from
$12 milion,

At fiscal year-end 2003, HMA common
stock was owned by approximately 1,500
shareholders of record, including several
hundred institutional investors. More than 3.7
million shares were owned by employees in the
401-k plan, which attests to the confidence
HMA employees have in its management and
the future of the company. HMA currently pays
a quarterly dividend of two cents per common share. m

Health Management Associates, Inc.




B2 Financial Highlights (in thousands, except per share items)

Year ended September 30,
Percent
2003 2002 Change
Operating Data
Net patient service revenue $ 2,560,576 $ 2,262,601 + 132
Costs and expenses 2,097,499 1,855,930 + 130
Income before income taxes 458,736 405,662 + 131
Net income 283,424 246,436 + 15.0
Net income per share:
Basic $1.19 $1.02 + 16.7
Diluted $1.13 $0.97 + 165
Performance Data
Return on revenue 11.1% 10.9%
Return on average equity 19.0% 19.0%
September 30,
Percent
2003 2002 Change
Year-end Data
Total assets $ 2,979,487 $ 2,364,317 + 26.0
Working capital 820,373 422,043 + 94.4
Short-term debt 9,447 7,609 + 24.2
Long-term debt 924,713 650,159 + 42.2
Stockholders’ equity 1,637,075 1,346,752 + 21.6
Book value per common share $6.82 $5.65 + 207
Number of employees 24,000 23,000 + 43

2003 Annual Report

1




B2 Report to Shareholders

he news is excellent. For

the 15th consecutive year,
our revenue and earnings
exceeded those of the previ-
ous year. For fiscal year 2003,
our revenue was up 13 per-
cent to $2.6 bilion, and net
income rose even faster—up
15 percent to $283 million.
Earnings per share (diluted)
advanced 17 percentto $1.13
compared with $0.97 for fis-
cal year 2002. These strong
results reflect our continued
focus on delivering high qual-
ity health care in non-urban
communities with a proven demographic need.

Unigue to the hospital industry, HMA employs
a decentralized approach to hospital manage-
ment, while maintaining centralized financial
controls through the implementation of our propri-
etary Puise System™ management information
technology. Our local leadership teams, who
have access to HMA’s considerable corporate
resources and expertise, make the day-to-day
operational decisions in our hospitals. This strat-
egy has earned HMA the reputation as one of
the best hospital operators in the nation, based
on both our Quality Service Management ratings
and our industry leading operating margins.

Our consistent record of unprecedented suc-
cess during the past 15 years can be traced
to two standards that pervade every aspect of
our operations. We put quality first and apply it
consistently to every aspect of our operations.

William J. Schoen, Chairman, (left) and
Joseph V. Vumbacco, President and CEO

We seek to attract the best
and brightest people to
join our organization. We
examine every detall when
evaluating hospital acquisi-
tion prospects, and we then
invest our capital wisely to
transform  HMA hospitals
into some of the finest hos-
pitals in the nation. We also
pursue physician and nurse
recruitment with the same
intensity. Finally, our time-
tested, proprietary Pulse
System™ s employed at
every HMA hospital, creating
uniformity, familiarity and consistency of informa-
tion technology. This enables us to consolidate
financial data efficiently, greatly improving the
integration of new acquisitions.

The net effect of our focus on quality and
consistency is profound. Patients who once went
to distant urban hospitals for medical treatment
now return to their community hospitals in
increasing numbers each year. These increased
patient volumes transform once struggling
hospitals into vibrant medical centers that become
a source of pride in every community we enter.

The secret to our success is quite simple.
People want quality health care, and they want to
receive that care in their own community. This is
precisely the goal we continue to achieve.

Quality Hospital Performances
Improvements in patient care at HMA
hospitals also continued last year. Dur-
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I - ing fiscal 2003, the Joint Commission on
Brief Overview :._j Accreditation of Health Care Organizations
Revenue (JCAHQO) reviewed 22 HMA hospitals and
(n oiions) gave them an average score of 94. This
SHEBHEEBEEBEN] s average score exceeded our objective of
OoRBHEBEEEEENEI]S 8 90 or better and further indicates the in-
ol T TR0 00 1 QR creasing level of quality that can be found
CcCENBEIEEIEIEEREENE 2 in HMA hospitals. In addition, we contin-
CEHNEBEEENEEEEEEEN 2 ue to meet and exceed the expectations
of our patients as their Quality Service
Net Income ‘ :
{in millicns) Management satisfaction scores averaged
96 of a possible 100 points.
22 ::: = == = I.$1|52168 These scores attest to the efficacy of
our “Quality First” efforts and indicate our
CHEANEEEEREESS ability to consistently improve the level
CHEEEEEEEEEENI] o of hospital care at HMA hospitals, even
CHNENNEEEEEENENNs: during periods of rapid growth.




“The consistent delivery of high quality health care remains
our primary focus; from that focus has grown fifteen
consgoutive years of increased operating earnings.”

—William J. Schoen, Chairman

Acquisitions

Acquisitions serve to accelerate our growth,
and fiscal year 2003 proved another good year
for acquisitions. We acquired four hospitals
during the past fiscal year and completed the
purchase of five more hospitals on November 1,
2003. These nine hospitals should provide material
growth in subsequent years and deliver the cash
flow needed to grow the company in future
years.

Moreover, there is no shortage of acquisi-
tion prospects. Cost pressures and financial
market conditions continue to adversely affect
hospital operations at many community hospi-
tals throughout the nation. Many hospitals lack
the resources needed to cope with these finan-
cial pressures and are losing physicians and
patients as a result. In those instances where
our disciplined acquisition criteria are met, we
will act accordingly with a financial and manage-
rial commitment to revitalize and restore medical
excellence to the community.

Improved Financing

We took advantage of the prevailing interest
rates last year by issuing $575 million (gross
proceeds) of 1.5% Convertible Senior Subordi-
nated Notes due 2023 and used $311 million
of those proceeds to redeem an earlier issue of
3.0% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes
due 2020. These two transactions removed 14.5
million shares from our diluted number of shares
outstanding, effectively doubling the amount of
the financing while maintaining the same an-
nual interest expense. The remaining proceeds
from the issuance have been used to partially
fund the five hospital acquisitions completed on
November 1, 2003.

New Hospital For Collier County, Florida

After a thorough review, demonstrating
conclusively that the Collier County community,
home to HMA's corporate headquartersin Naples,
Florida, was medically underserved, the State of
Florida's Agency for Health Care Administration
approved our application to build a 100-bed
hospital in Collier County. This is a wonderful
opportunity for us to bring additional high quality
hospital care to Colier County, the second-
fastest growing community in the nation.

We are presently in the planning stages to build
a state-of-the-art hospital that will be a premier
health care facility in the Naples area.

Outlook

We believe our immediate outlook is
promising and the longer term even more so
as our recent acguisitions gain momenturn and
attract increasing patient volumes through better
guelity health care. The facts are compelling. Qur
hospitals continue to serve more patients each
year. Based on community need, we recruit more
doctors to serve our communities every year,
and we provide our physicians with upgraded
facilities and equipment to enable them to
practice modern-day medicine more effectively.

In addition, our nation’s population contin-
ues to age, triggering an increased demand for
health care. As "baby-boomers” demand more
health care services, and migrate to non-urban
communities in greater numbers, HMA has
positioned itself 1o be the hospital provider of
choice. Congress recently passed watershed
legislation providing hospitals with additional
reimbursement, effectively addressing the ex-
isting reimbursement disparity between urban
and rural hospital providers. While this legisla-
tion may assist some hospitals, the complexity
of reimbursement, cost pressures and increasing
capital needs will continue to overwhelm many
stand-alone non-urban hospitals. Their pres-
ent condition provides us with unprecedented
acquisition opportunities to select the best from
among many. Our financial condition and credit
standing are excellent, allowing us to simultane-
ously upgrade our present hospitals and make
additional acquisitions.

To conclude, we would like to express our
gratitude to our physicians, nurses and health
care professionals whose steadfast dedication
to the delivery of high quality health care and
enduring compassion for our patients continue
to make HMA the finest non-urban hospital
provider in the nation.

We believe the best for HMA is yet to come.

William J. Schoen, Chairman

%«/M

seph V. Vumbacco, President and CEO

Naples, Florida
December 12, 2003
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B3 The Year in Review

OPERATING PRINCIPLES
uality and consistency guide every action we take. Quality can
be seen in our attention to detail when building or remodeling
Admissions our hospitals, in our development and implementation of cur own
(in thousands) information technology systems, and in our investment in state-

the Numbers :-J

(all hospitals)

235 of-the-art medical equipment. Our commitment to quality also

| extends to the things that cannot be seen: rigorous accounting

N N standards, thoroughness in evaluating acquisition prospects, lasting

143 “THEN commitments to the communities we serve, and the care we take

= H B BB when recruiting and working with our physicians, nurses and staff.

BB B BN The sum total of our efforts, and the truest form of guality, is meeting
B REEBEN and exceeding our patients’ and physicians’ expectations.

B EEEDN Consistency is also evident throughout HMA. All HMA hospitals

BB EERN use the same accounting system and function under one proprietary

BE B EEN management information system, the Pulse System™, which is a

99 00 ‘01 02 '03 rarity among hospital management companies. This homogeneity

gives us an extremely accurate picture of each hospital’s operating
status on a daily basis. Having this information timely and uniformly
enables us to manage effectively and project future cash flows and
Emergency Room Visits earnings with a better degree of accuracy.
(ir thousands;} HMA applies a decentralized management approach with

914 centralized financial controls to its hospital operations. Local
313 I leadership teams, comprised of the hospital's Chief Executive
“m Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Nursing Officer, are
52 | IR | responsible for the day-to-day operation of their respective facility,
e B B N | while being able to draw on additional expertise and management
m BB R B resources from the corporate office. m
EEEEN
EEEERNR
E R EEN
EEEERN
99 '00 '01 02 03
Patient Days
(in thousands)
0001,080
1,
381 i =
792 —
e o H H B
EEREN
EEREDR
= EEEN The 2003 annual report salutes the 7,800 physicians who treated
ERENR hundreds of thousands of patients at our 47 hospitals during the year.
EEREE Our focus on quality care, excellent facilities, talented administration and
g g 0.1 g g compassionate, dedicated employees, coupled with attractive non-urban

communities with a proven demographic need, are key reasons physicians
join our medical staffs. (Clarksdale, MS)

4  Health Management Associates, Inc.




We invested more than
$166 million in replacement
hospitals, expansion projects
and advanced medical equip-
ment last year to enable our
physicians to perform at
their best in our community
hospitals. These equipment
purchases are ongoing and
reflect continuing quality
improvements.

By equipping our hospitals
with state-of-the-art medi-
cal technology, our staff
physicians no longer feel
the need to send many of
their patients to large, urban
hospirals for treatment.

(Yakima, WA)

HOSPITAL OPERATIONS—2003 COMPARED WITH 2002

Consolidated revenues for the year, which include the results of
four hospitals acquired during the year, increased $300 million to $2.6
billion when compared to 2002. Total admissions rose 8.9 percent to
more than 235,000. Patient days increased 80,000 to approximately
1.1 million from 1.0 million, and emergency room (ER) visits grew 5.4
percent to 914,000.

Same hospitals, which are hospitals we have operated for at least

We modernize our
hospitals to provide
better health care
and to attract

more physicians
with needed

twelve months, increased their revenue by 7.9 percent, crossing over SUb-SpBCIﬂ_'tIE?.
the $2 billion mark for the first time in the history of the company to That combination
finish the year at $2.25 billion. Contributing to this outstanding revenue  helps to address

growth was a 2.9 percent increase in same hospital admissions, a 2.8
percent increase in same hospital adjusted admissions, which adjust
admissions for outpatient activity, and a 5.1 percent increase in same
hospital ER visits. This increased patient load also increased our
same hospital occupancy levels to 47.7 percent from 47.1 percent in
2002. Successiul physician recruiting and a continued focus on ER
services were instrumental to achieving our volume growth.

the communities’
needs and leads to
increased patient
volumes.

2003 Annual Report
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I3 The Year in Review continued

Our same hospital patient growth last year
ilustrated our ability to reduce patient
outmigration trends while at the same time
serving the population growth in our communities,
particularly the growth in the elderly population.
By providing & broader range of health care
services through the investment in health care
technology and physician recruitment, residents
in our communities no longer have to seek health
care elsewhere,

We invested $30 million last year to begin
constructionand development
of two of the four replacement
hospitals we have planned.
We modernized or expand-
ed every hospital during the
year by adding capacity or
advanced diagnostic  and
treatment equioment, with
substantially all of those capital
expenditures being financed
internally through cash flow
from operations,

e also recruited more
than 300 physicians in
2003, a 36 percent increase
from 2002, which increased
the number of practicing

D> Physician recruitment is a
key component of HMA’s
success. Based on an out-
side independent review,
local HMA administrators
work together with existing
physicians torecruitdoctors
to add services and meet the
needs of our communities.

{Clarksdale, MS)

6  Health Management Associates, Inc.

physicians on staff at our hospitals to 7,800.
Recruited physicians were comprised of both
specialists and family practice physicians. Based
on the need in the respective HMA community
they joined, these physicians are often providing
new medical services previously unavailable at
those hospitals. The combination of upgrading
our hospitals, building replacement facilities
and proactively recruiting needed physicians,
is a long-standing HMA strategy and a key
component to 15 consecutive years of growth.,




e Revenue Mix

Our revenue mix was very
similar 1o the previous year.
Commercial insurance and
other sources comprised
47 percent; Medicare — 35

staff agency, and was initi-
ated in four HMA markets,
Mesquite, TX, Lancaster,
PA, Jackson, MS and
Yakima, WA. By offering
a competitive alternative

percent; Medicaid — 9 for nurses seeking greater
percent; and private pay flexibility of scheduling, our
— 9 percent. CNOQOs effectively managed

Inasmuch as a por-
tion of our private pay and
commercial insurance pa-
tients includes senior citi-
zens, it becomes apparent
that HMA hospitals provide

From complex surgery to rehabilitation,
HMA’s hospitals are equipped to deliver

a full range of our health care services for
our patients, allowing them to receive their
health care close to home. (Milton, FL)

NurseSelect™ to stabilize
the nursing staffs in these
markets and  markedly
reduce payroll expense, by
reducing outside nursing
agency use.

a substantial  amount
of care to the elderly. This is because many
HMA hospitals are located in Sunbelt areas of
the U.S. where older, retired people typically
concentrate.

® Hospital Staff — Nurses

Our Chief Nursing Officers (CNOs) displayed
effective leadership throughout the past year by
skillfully adapting to the challenges of an ongoing
national nursing shortage. By improving hospital
working conditions, fostering relationships with
local nursing schools, and in many cases rolling
up their sleeves to deliver personal patient
care, our CNOs redefined the role of nursing
leadership. Our NurseSelect™ internal nursing
agency and our focus on improving staff working
conditions in our hospitals significantly reduced
turnover rates and improved morale in 2003,
which resulted in better care for our patients.

NurseSelect™ is HMA's proprietary nursing

® Proprietary systems

Our Pulse System™ proprietary information
system continues to offer HMA advantages from
both a cost and integration perspective. Devel-
oped by HMA over the last 18 years, the Pulse
System™ is installed and operational in all HMA
hospitals from the moment we acquire them.
While providing uniform and familiar data in an
operational format for management, the Pulse
System™ also speeds acquisition integration. In
addition, costing approximately one-half of one
percent of net revenue, the Pulse System™ op-
erates at a fraction of the cost of other hospital
information systems while providing accurate
data in a user-friendly, consistent format. m

HOSPITAL VALIDATIONS — 2003

The superior quality of the health care services
provided at HMA hospitals is documented year
after year by independent third parties.

Consistent Progress

At Fiscal Year-end Number Admissions ER Visits Number Patient Days
September 30 of Hospitals (00D0s) {000s) of Beds {000s) Occupancy
1995 21 64 298 2,282 340 44%
1999 36 144 498 4,665 718 47%
2003 47 235 914 6,479 1,080 49%

2003 Annual Report 7




B2 The Year in Review continued

The Joint Commission on Accreditation of
Health Care Organizations (JCAHO) inspect-
ed 22 HMA hospitals last year. Despite more
stringent guidelines adopted by the JCAHO in
2002, our surveyed hospitals received an av-
erage grade of 94 out of a possible score of
100, a documented increase in quality from the
average score of 92 we received in 2002. Other
examples include:

e QOur Community Hospital of Lancaster
{(Lancaster, PA) received its first accreditation by
the JCAHQO last year. Prior to HMAs acquisition
in 1999, it had been operating for more than 50
years without JCAHO accreditation, and within
four years of HMA’s acquisition of the facility,
it became fully accredited. This illustrates the
guality initiatives HMA brings to every hospital
it operates.

® Qur East Georgia Regional Medical Center's
Cardiopulmonary Services Unit (Statesboro,
GA) received a perfect score of 100 from the
JCAHQ last year and was awarded its Gold Seal
of Approval™ for its cutstanding achievement.

¢ QOur Woman’s Hospital at River Oaks (Flowood,
MS) received a JCAHO score of 98 out of 100,
reflecting our commitment to delivering quality
women's health care services.

® QOur Charlotte Regional Medical Center
(Punta Gorda, FL} was named by Solucient,
inc., an Evanston, llinois-based health care
information company, to its list of the 100 Top
Cardiovascular Hospitals in the nation for the
fourth time. That same hospital was also honored
by Florida Medical Quality Assurance, Inc. for its
“Outstanding Medicare Project Participation.”
This award is given for the breadth and quality
of services provided to Medicare and Medicaid
participants in Florida.

® Solucient also placed two other HMA hos-
pitals — Jamestown Regional Medical Center
(Jamestown, TN) and Williamson Memorial Hospi-
tal (Williamson, WV) — on its list of the nation’s Top
100 Hospitals. This is the first time each hospital
has been named to Solucient’s Top 100 list.

8 Health Management Associates, Inc.

¢ The laboratory at our Williamson Memorial
Hospital in Wiliamson, WV, received a score
of 98 from the JCAHQO at its recent biennial
examination and certification. ®

APPRAISALS BY PATIENTS

Although the objective measurements of
independent rating agencies are important,
we also seek the subjective evaluations of our
patients. We want to know how they perceive
the quality of our hospitals’ services. To learn
this, we ask them to fill out a confidential survey
when they are discharged. The surveys, which
are tabulated by an unaffiliated organization, ask
patients for their opinions about everything —
their medical treatment, the personal attention
our staff devoted to their concerns, the overall
admissions process, room cleanliness, and the
quality of our hospital food, to name just a few.

These patient responses are the basis of our
entire Quality Service Management program. No
other data on overall quality is reviewed more
carefully by management.

Last year, patients surveyed rated our
hospitals’ services “good orexcellent” 96 percent
of the time. The results of these surveys are an
important tool for administrators, physicians
and hospital staff. They are also one of the many
measures that influence staff compensation. m

FINANCIAL DATA—
FISCAL YEAR-END 2003
® Best Balance Sheet in the Industry

The strength of our balance sheet is the result
of superior operational management, consistent
earnings performance, and conservative financial
management. Working capital totaled more than
$820 million, with cash alone representing 145
percent of all current liabilities.

Our debt-to-total capitalization was 36 per-
cent, the lowest in the publicly traded hospital
management company industry. In addition,
our “A-minus” debt rating from Standard and
Poor’s is the highest investment grade rating
in our industry. This credit rating enabled us
to issue $575 million (gross proceeds) of con-
vertible notes at a 1.5 percent interest rate and
retire $311 million of outstanding convertible
debentures with a 3.0 percent yield to maturity.

Qur consistent earnings  performance




continues to deliver outstanding internally generated cash flow. This
strong cash flow, year after year, helps fund acquisitions, physician
recruiting and capital expenditures, which are key components of
our business strategy. Our ability to internally fund the majority of our
growth is uncommon in the industry. m

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

During fiscal 2003, we invested a total of $166 million to build
new hospitals, expand and upgrade others and add state-of-the-
art medical equipment thraughout our system. The following is a
summary of our accomplisnments:

¢ Replacement Hospitals

We broke ground in October 2002 on a 144-bed replacement
hospital for Community Hospital of Lancaster (Lancaster, PA) to
replace an aging facility we acquired in 1999. It will feature a state-
of-the-art emergency department, the latest in diagnostics, surgical
inpatient and outpatient suites, luxurious patient rooms and a
separate women's health pavilion. These additions will increase
the size of this hospital by about one-third. Estimated completion
is expected in summer 2004.

We completed plans to build a new hospital to replace the present
Brooksyville Regional Hospital (Brooksville, FL). The new hospital, which
will be located about three miles from the old location, will be a 91-
bed state-of-the-art facility that will include a vast array of the very
latest in medical equipment. Construction is expected to begin in
early 2004,

<l The leadership of our
Chief Nursing Officers,
together with our in-
house nurse employment
agency, NurseSelect™,
improved the morale
of our nurses, reduced
hiring costs and nurse
turnover, and helped to
control staffing costs—
ultimately improving pa-
tient care in our hospitals.
(pictured: HMA’s Chief
Nursing  Officers; Peter
M. Lawson, Executive
Vice President; Joseph
V. Vumbacco, President
and Chief Executive
Officer and Jon P Vollmer,
Executive Vice President)

Lﬂ Fast Facts

10%
HMA’s nursing turnover rate
as of September 30, 2003,
down from 20%+ only 18
months ago.

9

HMAs average JCAHO
score for 22 hospitals sur-
veyed in 2003, up from the
average score of 92 HMA
received in 2002.

$49 million

HMA's average expenditure
during each of the past five
years to purchase state-of-
the-art medical equipment
for its hospitals, exclu-
sive of renovations and
construction.

2003 Annual Report




-} The Year in Review continued

® Hospital Expansions

We also completed the 8,300 square-foot
expansion of the surgery department at our
Carolina Pines Regional Medical Center (Hartsville,

wkeye V3

i

rooms, two of which will be equipped for cardiac
treatment and trauma care. The new surgery
department will feature four surgery suites and
a six-bed pre-operative area and a six-bed

YT N

HMASs investment in General Electric’s Hawkeye V3 Nuclear Camera provides physicians and patients at Yakima Regional
Medical & Heart Center with technology found in only a few hospitals in all of Washington State. (Yakima, WA)

SC). This expansion included the addition of two
operating rooms and a new outpatient staging
area.

In keeping a promise we made when we
acauired Jamestown Regional Medical Center
(Jamestown, TN) in 2002, we broke ground last
April on a 23,000 square foot addition for a new
emergency room department and a new surgery
department. The new ER will include eight exam

10 Health Management Associates, Inc.

post-operative and recovery area. An intensive
care unit (ICU) is also planned.

HMA also renovated the former pediatrics unit
at Highlands Regional Medical Center (Sebring,
FL} and converted it into a state-of-the-art
16-bed ICU. It is now the largest such ICU in
Highlands County.

We totally renovated the radiology department
at Lehigh Regional Medical Center (Lehigh Acres,




Santa Rosa Medical Center’s new 40,000 square foot medical office
building in Milton, Florida, offers convenient access to the hospital for
newly recruited physicians. (Mileon, FL)

4D Ultrasound unit, allowing
expectant mothers to view their
unborn child in three dimensions
and also capture the baby's
actual movements. The new
unit represents the difference
between video photography and
a still photograph. Through this
revolutionary technology, the
infant’s three-dimensional image
is continuously updated. This
constant updating enables the
attending physician to track the
paby’s development throughout
its gestation period.

We installed a new Spiral/
Helical CT scanner within the
radiology department at our
Lehigh Regional Medical Center
(Lehigh Acres, FL). It reduces
scanning time from minutes to
mere seconds. It also renders
outstanding images that enable
3D imaging construction. Other
eguipment installations included

FL). New furniture, floors, walls and artwork give an
entire new appearance 1o the department. More
significant was the investment in new medical
equipment that transformed this department into
an advanced diagnostic and treatment center.
HMA also renovated the surgical department
at the Lower Keys Medical Center hospital
(Key West, FL) last August. The renovation
expanded the department to seven units from
three and included the addition of a variety of
advanced medical technology such as new
lighting, operating tables, anesthesia equipment,
laparoscopic towers and sterilization eguipment.

® Medical Equipment

QOur Midwest Regional Medical Center (Midwest
City, OK) was equipped with General Electric's
1.5T MRI scanner. It delivers the fastest, most
concise imagery available in conventional MRI
technology today. The hospital's Renaissance
Women'’s Center was also equipped with a GE

a cardiovascular ultrasound
unit, a nuclear medicine camera that improves
diagnostic reliability, and a digital fluoroscopy
unit that enables physicians to perform invasive
procedures never before offered at this hospital.

At our Stringfellow Memorial Hospital
(Anniston, AL), we instalied the new GE Sigma
Infinity 1.5T MRI system last January. In addition
to routine MRI scans, the new system facilitates
advanced applications such as vascular and
cardiac imaging as well as spectroscopy.
Stringfellow Memorial is now able to deliver the
most advanced patient care with cost-effective
technology. In the first month of its installation, a
total of 160 scans were performed.

At our Paul B. Hall Regional Medical Center
(Paintsville, KY) we installed a state-of-the-
art mammography system for early detection
of breast cancer. The new system employs
technology that provides optimum image guality
at a low radiation dosage.

We purchased GE’s Innova 2000 Cardiac

2003 Annual Report 11




B2 The Year in Review continued

the Numbers :-J
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Catherization Lab for our Medical Center of Mesquite (Mesquite,
TX). This system provides increased visualization of small vessel
obstructions, decreases X-ray dosing by 50 percent, and reduces
procedural time. It gives our staff cardiologists and the residents of
Mesguite and the surrounding communities access to one of the
most modern and technologically advanced systems in Texas.

We also installed a GE Precision 500D Digital Radiology and
Fluoroscopy System in the radiology department at our Sandhills
Regional Medical Center (Hamlet, NC). Considered by many as
the most advanced fluoroscopy system in medicine today, it is
entirely computer-based, which facilitates inexpensive software
updates as technology advances. Only two hospitals in North
Carolina presently use this technology.

The company's capital expenditures budget for fiscal 2004 is
targeted between $155 and $165 milion, with the focus on patient
care equipment, replacement hospitals and expansion projects to
increase capacity. ® '

PHYSICIAN RECRUITING ACCELERATES

We work closely with community leaders and existing staff
physicians, as well as utilizing an independent community needs
assessment, to readily identify what medical services are needed
for any given community. As a result, we recruited more than 300
physicians in 2003 compared with approximately 220 in 2002.

Based on community need, recruited Outstanding hos-
specialists and sub-specialists help

broaden the breadth of hospital pital Operations
services in a given market, reducing generate the cash

outmigration and allowing residents  fljow needed to
to receive more of their health care reinvest in our

close to home. .
communtties,

Once these needs are determined, - therehy reducing
our local hospital administrative .

teams invite physician candidates the r_ellance on

and their families to visit our hospitals outside sources
and communities. These visits enable  Of financing — in
physicians 1o discover whether effect self-funding
the local community is a good fit

personally and professionally, and our QI'OWth.

whether their specialized medical skills will match the health care
needs of a given community. These visits also help them to evaluate
the likelihood of their building a viable practice from the community’s
existing patient base.

12 Health Management Associates, Inc.




Spending more time with our patients than any other health care professional, HMA nurses are committed to
professional excellence and the delivery of high quality care to our patients. (Milton, FL)

ln addition to the improved quality of life smaller
communities typically offer, physician
candidates are also attracted by the
ready access they will have to the
state-of-the-art medical eguipment
in an HMA hospital. This is why
we invest heavily in our facilities
and install up-to-date medical
technology. We want our doc-
tors to have the ability to prac-
tice sophisticated medicine
in comfortable, well-equipped
surroundings  rather than the
frenzied atmosphere of a large
urban hospital.

Physician recruiting is an
ongoing program at all our
hospitals. It grows more
successful each year as the
number of openings and
locations increase  naturally
as we acquire more hospitals
and address the needs of our
growing markets. This growth
automatically provides our
physician candidates with a
greater range of choices. m

L} the Numbers
36%

The increase in recruited
physicians at HMA hos-
pitals in 2003 compared
with 2002.

7,800

The number of physicians
on HMAs medical staffs
throughout the company,
as of September 30, 2003.

96%
Average Quality Service
Managementscore. HMA
patients surveyed rated
the care they received as
“good or excellent” 96%
of the time.
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B3 Acquisitions

_ R - Fhsd it a ‘ - Ry B [P

HMA acquired four non-urban hospitals in fiscal year 2003, adding operations in our 15th state, Washington
State. On November 1, 2003, HMA completed the acquisition of five additional hospitals, increasing our licensed
bed capacity o 7,540 beds and adding operations in our 16th state, Missouri. (Yakima, WA)

14 Health Management Associates, Inc.




“ Without exception, the quality of health care has improved nj
iNn every community we have entered.”’

Acquired Hospitals

We completed the acquisition of four
hospitals during fiscal 2003. Scon after the
end of the year, on November 1, 2003, we
completed the acquisition of five additional non-
urban hospitals. For fiscal 2003, we increased
the number of hospitals to 47 from 43 and the
licensed bed capacity to 6,479 from 5,988.
These acquisitions also mark our initial entry into
Washington State, giving us a presence in 15
states nationwide.

Canton, Mississippi. On December 31,
2002, we completed the acquisition of the
B67-bed Madison Regional Medical Center
in Canton, Mississippi, the county seat for
Madison County, the fastest growing county in
the state. Prospects for growth are exceptional.
Nissan Motors opened a 3.5 million square foot
manufacturing plant in Canton last July. It is
expected to generate as many as 5,300 new
jobs,

Yakima & Toppenish, Washington. Located
in central Washington State, Yakima Regional
Medical and Heart Center, a 226-bed facility in
Yakima and the 63-bed Toppenish Community
Hospital, in Toppenish, serve a growing service
area of approximately 250,000 residents,
offering the region’s only open-heart surgical
services. Yakima Regional was recently honored
by Money Magazine as one of the nation's best
cardiac hospitals. Both of these hospitals,
which were acquired on August 15, 2003, offer
HMA a tremendous cpportunity to continue the
tradition of delivering high quality health care to
the residents of central Washington.

Monroe, Georgia. In September 2003, we
completed the transaction to acguire the 135-
bed Walton Regional Medical Center in Monroe,
Georgia. It is a sole community provider located
in north central Georgia’s Walton County.
Since 1930, Walton County’s population has
grown at twice the rate of the state of Georgia’s
average growth rate. To accommadate the rapidly
expanding health care needs in this area, we will
build a state-of-the-art replacement hospital to
replace the existing facility.

Only a month after our fiscal year 2003 ended,
HMA acquired five non-urban hospitals from

—Joseph V. Vumbacco, President & CEO

subsidiaries of Tenet Healthcare Corporation,
Inc. As a result of these acquisitions, we added
a total of 1,061 licensed beds and initiated
operations in Missouri, our 16th state. All are
located in non-urban communities with proven
demographic needs for health care services.

Crystal River, Florida. Seven Rivers
Regional Medical Center, with approximately
135 physicians on staff, is a 128-bed acute-
care hospital that serves a non-urban area with
a growing population of approximately 60,000,
In 2001, it was named a “Top 100 Hospital” by
Solucient, Inc.

Tullahoma, Tennessee. Harton Regional
Medical Center, with approximately 175
physicians on staff, is a 137-bed acute care
hospital that serves a growing population of
nearly 85,000 residents.

Lebanon, Tennessee. University Medical
Center, with approximately 165 physicians on
staff, is a 257-bed, two-campus, acute care
hospital that serves a growing population of
approximately 104,000.

Poplar Bluff, Missouri. Three Rivers Regional
Medical Center, with approximately 141 physi-
cians on staff, is a 423-bed, two campus acute
care hospital with a primary service area of
approximately 81,000 residents.

Kennett, Missouri. Twin Rivers Regional
Medical Center, with approximately 57 physicians
on staff, is a 116-bed acute care hospital with a
primary service area of approximately 40,000
residents,

Our Acquisition Strategy

We continue with the same disciplined
acquisition strategy, looking for hospitals that
are in growing, non-urban communities with
populations ranging from 30,000 to 400,000.
We seek medically underserved communities
located in geographic areas that are attractive
to the elderly and retirees.

Acquisition Climate

The opportunity to acquire hospitals remains
favorable. Many community hospitals continue
to lose their traditional patient base to large,
urban hospitals. This is because hospitals in
non-urban communities are facing aging facilities,
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B2 Acquisitions, continued
The HMA Difference

inadequate physician specialty representation,
nursing shortages, operational inefficiencies and
lack of capital sufficient to bring about needed
changes. Oftentimes, the primary cause is a lack
of capital. Many
community hospitals
do not have the
funds to upgrade
themselves 10 meet
the costly demands

of 21st century particularly in
medicine. They have

neither the physical non-urban areas.
facilities  nor the HMA is pms:ed to

equipment to attract - be the provider of
the ~ physicians  chojce in these

they need to keep "
their patient base communities.

intact. Consequently, many residents are forced
to turn 1o large, urban hospitals for treatment,
even though they may be many miles distant,
inconvenient and overcrowded.

The demand for
health care
services is grow-
ing in America,

Acquisition Approach

Faced with increasing deficits and shrinking pa-
tient loads, hospital trustees and community leaders
are often faced with difficult choices. Fortunately,
HMA's 26-year history of improving the quality of
health care and increasing the breadth of services
in our communities is a welcome light in the storm
for struggling hospitals seeking relief. Understand-
ing the impact of change, HMA works closely with
employees, physicians and local officials to allay
the typical concerns: employment issues, quality
concerns, and loss of local control, Open, honest
communication is an HMA hallmark. We invite
those concerned to contact their peers in any HMA
community and share their questions with those
who have experienced the HMA difference. Two
key questions are frequently asked: “Did HMA
keep their promises?” and “Did the quality of
health care improve after HMA began serving
the area?” We are pleased to report that the
answers to both questions have been answered
resoundingly. “Yes.”

‘H
* é‘ L

Ongoing investment in HMA communities is necessary to attract both patients and physicians. With excellent
financial strength and input from our physicians, employees and patients, HMA’s collaborative efforts yield

outstanding health care facilities. (Milton, FL)
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I ULANCE ENTR,
O MLY

AUTHORIZID PERSONNEL
CNIY

HMA hospitals place special emphasis on their emergency room operations. First impressions of hospital ER care

count greatly in smaller communities. More than half of all admicced patients to HMA hospitals arrive initially at
the ER entrance, making the ER the real “front door” to our hospitals. (Midwest City, OK)

THE HMA DIFFERENCE

Within days following an acquisition, we introduce our time-
tested proprietary programs to revitalize that hospital. They
include:

¢ THE PULSE SYSTEM™. HMA's proprietary information system
that provides our local hospital management teams with the
consistent information needed to improve the quality and
efficiency of delivering health care. Included in this system are
accounting and tracking systems that bring order to a hospital's
operations and promote efficient use of resources. Clinical
and physician access systems are also highlighted, improving
ancillary department operations and physician proficiency.

¢ NURSE FIRST. This is a quality-driven program for ER patients,
which comprise more than half of all HMA hospital admissions.
A visit to an HMA emergency room is often the first contact a
patient makes with one of our hospitals, and first impressions
matter greatly, especially in smaller communities.

To assure that every ER visit is as pleasant as possible, well-
qualified and dedicated registered nurses are chosen and then
given additional training in ER duties. They have a high level of
emergency medical expertise and an innate ability to handle
very intense and emotional situations with a compassionate
and calming demeancr. Such nurses are present at our hospitals
24 hours a day.

Ll: Fast Facts

2 Hours
Average emergency room
encounter time at HMA hos-
pitals, three to four hours
shorter than the national
average.

700,000 +
The number of MedKey™
cards in circulation at HMA
hospitals as of September
30, 2008.

1,080,000
Number of days patients
spent in HMA hospitals in
fiscal 2003.
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2 The HMA Difference, continued

Community Involvement

¢ PROMED. This is a computer-accessed
diagnostic tool that helps doctors assess
a patient’s condition, formulate a diagnosis
and suggest a course of treatment. When
combined with the “Nurse First” program,
our hospitals have been able to meet and
often exceed our internal goal of providing
an emergency department encounter in two
hours or less, which is 50 to 75 percent better
than the national average of five to six hours.

e MEDKEY™. This is a bar-coded identification
card that our hospitals provide local residents
free of charge. It contains relevant patient infor-
mation that streamlines the admission and
registration process, and, in certain instances,
can help speed medical treatment.

MedKey™ cards are increasing rapidly
because we heavily promote this program in
each community when we acguire a hospital.
At year-end, more than 700,000 cards were in
use. m

HMA’s Quality Service Management program
allows patients to rate the quality of their hospiral
care. No other quality measure is more closely
reviewed by management. (Yakima, WA)

18 Health Management Associates, Inc.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

HMA insists that each hospital and its staff
become an integral part of the community
where it operates. Staff members routinely serve
on local school boards, Boys and Girls Clubs,
civic organizations, chambers of commerce,
and health related charities, including the March
of Dimes, American Cancer Society, and the
American Heart Association among others. In
addition, our hospitals host many free health fairs
to educate residents about health related issues
and provide screenings that include tests for
diabetes, hypertension and respiratory ailments.

For example, last year Fishermen’s Hospital
(Marathon, FL) conducted between 250 and 300
blood pressure tests on Saturdays to assist with
preventative health care. Sebastian River Medical
Center (Sebastian, FL} hosted a Women’s Health
Expo that included information on sleep disorders,
weight loss, cancer, bone density and acid reflux
disease. Lee Regional Medical Center (Pennington
Gap, VA) presented each soldier from a local
national guard unit headed for
Kuwait with Bibles, food, phone
cards, hygiene bags and gift
certificates. River Oaks Hospital
(Flowood, MS) launched a
literacy campaign to educate
the parents of newborns about
the decisive role they play in the
development of their children.
Upstate Carolina Medical Center
(Gaffney, SC) conducted one
of the most successful blood
donation drives in its history.

On the fund-raising front,
River Oaks Health System was
named the top fund-raising
team for the 2003 March of
Dimes  Walkathon, raising
more than $17,000; at the
same event in Meridian, MS,
Riley Hospital's WomanCare
BirthPlace unit raised $10,000.

Finally, HMA and corporate employees
partnered with the local Collier County Habitat
for Humanity Chapter to donate $200,000 and
construct five new homes to help address the
lack of affordable housing in southwest Florida. =




B3 Corporate Governance

ORPORATE GOVERNANCE at HMA is

an ongoing discipline that is rigorously
monitored at all levels within the company.
The company’s Board of Directors is ultimately
responsible to the shareholders and investment
community for the accuracy and completeness
of its financial statements, adherence to strategic
objectives, and maintenance of ethical and regu-
latory compliance. Continued effective corporate
governance is essential to ensure the trust of
our patients, physicians, employees, vendors,
payors and shareholders alike, in order to lead
HMA to enduring success.

The Board meets at least four times a year, and
delegates specific responsibilities to the following
board committees: Audit Committee, Compen-
sation Committee, Corporate Governance
and Nominating Committee and an Execu-
tive Committee. In addition, the Board has
adopted a Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics to govern the conduct of all em-
ployees, officers and non-employee board
members.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee assists the Board
in the oversight of the accounting and
financial reporting processes, internal con-
trol procedures and independent audits of
HMA’s financial statements. This commit-
tee is comprised of four independent Board
members, with at least one of whom is
deemed a financial expert, and is required
to meet a minimum of four times a year.

corporate governance. In addition, this commit-
tee is charged with enhancing the guality of the
Board by identifying and recommending qualified
individuals to become directors. This committee is
comprised of three independent Board members
and is required to meet a minimum of three times
a year.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee is empowered to
take actions and have such responsibilities as the
Board may determine from time to time, except
for matters that are the responsibllities of another
committee. This committee is comprised of five
Board members and will meet such number of
times per year as the Board may determine.

Board of Directors (left to right): Kenneth D. Lewis, Robert
A. Knox, Donald E. Kiernan, William C. Steere, Jt., Joseph
V. Vumbacco, William ]. Schoen, Randolph W. Westerfield,
Kent P. Dauten and William E. Maybérry.

Compensation Committee
The Compensation Committee has direct
responsipility for reviewing and approving
HMA's goals and objectives relevant to the
compensation of the Chief Executive Officer
and other executive officers, and the evaluation
of these executives in light of those goals and
objectives. This committee is comprised of three
independent Board members and is required to

" meet a minimum of three times a year.

Corporate Governance and
Nominating Committee

The Corporate Governance and Nominating
Committee is charged with shaping HMA'S

Qur philosophy is that HMA does not stand
apart from society; we are an integral part of the
communities we serve, and the collective policies
and actions of each HMA hospital and employee
must constantly seek to assure HMA's reputation
by conducting business in a manner that is
consistent with the highest ethical standards and
in compliance with all applicable laws.

Additional information pertaining to HMAs cor-
porate governance, including Board committee
charters, Corporate Governance Principles, and the
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics can be found
on the HMA website located at http://www.hma-
corp.com under the Investor Relations section. m
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2 Hospital Locations
(at November 1, 2003)

Alabama
Riverview Regional Medical Center, Gadsden
Stringfellow Memorial Hospital, Anniston

Arkansas
Crawford Memorial Hospital, Van Buren
Southwest Regional Medical Center, Little Rock

Florida

Brooksville Regional Hospital, Brooksville

Charlotte Regional Medical Center, Punta Gorda

Fishermen's Hospital, Marathon

Heart of Florida Regional Medical Center,
Greater Haines City

Highlands Regional Medical Center, Sebring

Lehigh Regional Medical Center, Lehigh Acres

Lower Keys Medical Center, Key West

Pasco Regional Medical Center, Dade City

SandyPines, Tequesta

Santa Rosa Medical Center, Milton

Sebastian River Medical Center, Sebastian

Seven Rivers Regional Medical Ctr., Crystal River

Spring Hill Regional Hospital, Spring Hill

University Behavioral Center, Orlando

Georgia

East Georgia Regional Medical Ctr., Statesboro

Walton Regional Medical Center, Monroe

Kentucky

Paul B. Hall Regional Medical Center, Paintsville
Mississipp!

Biloxi Regional Medical Center, Biloxi

Central Mississippi Medical Center, Jackson

Madison Regional Medical Center, Canton

Natchez Community Hospital, Natchez

Northwest Mississippi Regional Medical Center,
Clarksdale

Rankin Medical Center, Brandon

Riley Hospital, Meridian
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River Oaks Hospital, Flowood
Woman’s Hospital at River Qaks, Flowood

Missouri
Three Rivers Regional Medical Ctr., Poplar Bluff
Twin Rivers Regional Medical Center, Kennett

North Carolina

Davis Regional Medical Center, Statesville
Franklin Regional Medical Center, Louisburg
Lake Norman Regional Medical Ctr., Mooresville
Sandhills Regional Medical Center, Hamlet

Oklahoma

Medical Center of Southeastern Oklahoma,
Durant

Midwest Regional Medical Center, Midwest City

Pennsylvania

Carlisle Regional Medical Center, Carlisle
Community Hospital of Lancaster, Lancaster
Lancaster Regional Medical Center, Lancaster

South Carolina
Carolina Pines Regicnal Medical Cir., Hartsville
Upstate Carolina Medical Center, Gaffney

Tennessee

Harton Regional Medical Center, Tullahoma
Jamestown Regional Medical Ctr., Jamestown
University Medical Center, Lebanon

Texas

The Medical Center of Mesquite, Mesquite
Mesguite Community Hospital, Mesquite
Virginia

Lee Regional Medical Center, Pennington Gap
Washington

Toppenish Community Hospital, Toppenish
Yakima Regional Medical & Heart Center, Yakima
West Virginia

Williamson Memorial Hospital, Williamson

A
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B Report of Management/Forward Looking Statements

To Our Shareholders and Other Interested Par’ues
Health Management Assocrates Inc.

The management ovaealth Management. Associates, Inc., {the- “Company”) is responsible for the
_preparation, presentation, and integrity of the consolidated financial statements and other information
included in this annual report. The financial statements have been prepared by the Company in
accordance with-accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and,-as such, include
amounts based on management’s best estimates and judgements.

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors. Their audits
were made in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and included
such reviews and tests of the Company’s internal accounting controls as they considered necessary.

The Company maintains a system of internal accounting contrdls designed to provide reasonable
assurance at reasonable cost that Company: assets are protected agalnst loss or unauthorized use
and that transactions and events are properly recorded.

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee, comprised solely of indépendent directors who
are not employees ofthe Company, meets with management and the independent auditors to assure that
" each is properly discharging its respective responsibilities. The independent auditors have free access
to the Audit Committee, without management present, to discuss the resuilts of their work and their
assessment of the adequacy of |nterna| accounting controls and thé quality of financial reporting.

‘Forward Lookmg Statements’ ,
Certain statements contained in this report, lncludmg, W|thout limitation, statements containing the
words “believes,” “anticipates,” “intends;” “expects” and words of similar import, constitute “forward
Iooktng statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These
statements may include prOJectlons of revenues; income or loss, capital expenditures, capital structure,
or other financial items, statements -regarding the-plans and objectives. of management for future
. operations, statements of future economic performance, statements of the assumptions underlying
“or relating to any of the foregoing statements and other statements which are other than statements
of historical fact.
Statements made througn thls report are based on current estimates of future events, and the
. Campany has no obligation to update or correct these estimates. Readers are cautioned that any such
forward looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve risks and uncertainties,
and that actual results may differ materially as a result of these various factors.

AT € Aundle

| Wilidm J. Schoen -  RobertE. Famham
Chairman of the Board - » Senior Vice President and
' ' " Chief Financial Officer

October 21, 2003
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B3 consolidated Financial Statements

Report of/!hdependent Certified P'ublic.Acco;mtahts
Consolidated Baianoe Srhec‘eits.

Consolidated Stat'errienté of Income

Coﬁsolidated St_ateménis bf Stockholders’ Equity :

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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B2 Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Health Management Assoclates lnc

We have audited the accompanylng consclldated balance sheets of Health Management Assocrates Inc.

as of Septernber 30, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’

~ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period-ended September 30, 2003. These

financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsrblllty is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

"We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards. generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financiat statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall firancial-statement presentation. We believe that-our audlts provrde a
reasonable basis for our opinion. :

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materlal respects, the
consolidated financial position of Health Management Associates, Inc.” at September 30, 2003 and
-2002 and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended September 80 2003, in conformlty wrth accountlng prlnClpleS generally accepted in the
United States,

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements the Company changed its method of
accounting for the excess of cost over acquired net assets.during the year ended September 30, 2002,

éM«ts‘ A  LLP

_ Ernst & Young LLP

Tampa, Florida

October 21,2003, except -

" for Note 12; as to which the
date is November 1, 2003
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2 Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands)

September 30,

- See accompanying notes.

‘24 Health,Managemeht Associates, Inc.

$2,979,487

2003 2002
Assets
Current assets: _
Cash and cash equivalents $ 395,338 $ 123,736
Accounts receivable, less allowances for doubtful accounts of ‘
$151,015and $138,616 at September 30, 2008 and
- 2002, respectively v 492,787 418,264
Accounts receivable —~ other . 34,467 36,163
. Supplies, at cost v 65,342 59,412
Prepaid expenses and other assets 57,905 19,622
Funds held by trustee 17,470 2,628
Deferred income taxes 30,027 35,961
Total current assets 1 093 386 695,786
Property, plant and equipment: ’ ,
Land and improvements 94,141 78,879
Buildings and lmprovements 1,077,638 964,100
Leaseholds 116,327 104,672
Equipment 617,818 518,129
Construction in progress 77,227 57,563
o ’ 1,983,151 - 1,723,343
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (555,436) (441,561)
. Net property, plant and equipment " 1,427,715 1,281,782
Funds held by trustee ‘ 15,924 1,450
Excess of cost over acquired net assets net 397,825 342,113
Deferred charges and other assets 44,687 43,186
X , . ' $2,979,487 $2,364,317
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity ’
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 136,136 - $ 132,228
" Accrued payroll and related taxes . 48,560 39,397
Accrued expenses and other liabilities ~ . 63,401 ©1,381
Due to third party payors 110,019 . 21,900
. Income taxes - currently payable 5,400 11,228
Current maturities of fong-term debt 9,447 7,609
) Total current liabilities 272,963 273,743
Deferred income taxes 48,984, 17,861
Other long-term liabilities 58,402 42,793
Long-term debt - 924,713 650,159
Minority interests in consolidated entities 37,350 33,000
Stockholders’. equity: '
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 5,000 shares authorized — —
- Common stock, Class A, $.01 par value, 750,000 shares ’
~ authorized, 262,705 and 261,067 shares issued .
September 30, 2003 and 2002, respect\vely ) 2,627 . 2,611,
Additional paid-in-capital 399,782 373,214
Retained earnings 1,635,322 1,271,583
_ : 1,937,731 1,647,408
Less: treasury stock, 22,500 shares at both "
' September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively {300,656) (300,656) -
Total stockholders’ equity 1,637,075 1,346,752
. $2,364,317




1 »§ ‘Consolidated Statements of Income

(in- thousands except per share data)

" Year eoded September. 30,

Diluted -

. Seé accompanying notes:

255,884 -

2003 2002 <2001
- Net patient service revenue | »$2,560,576 $2,262,601  $1,879,801
- Costs and expenses: o . .

Salaries and benefits . 989,075 874,729 - 710,535 -

Supplies and other 741,487 650,852 535,926

Provision for doubtful acoounts 186,826 172,430 . 143,923
Depreciation and amortization - '109‘,86_4. S 95,328 90,646 -

Rent expense ‘ /50,401 47,048 - 40,850
Interest, net , _ ‘ 14,915 . 15,543 . 19,970 |

Writeoff of deferred financing costs. , S .4,981 . — —

~ Non-cash charge for retirement benefits and : ‘

. write down of assets held for sale - - . = 17,000

- Total costs and expenses 2,097,499 1,855,930 1,558,850

’ Income before mrnonty rhterests and rnoom"e taxee o 463,07‘7" ' r406,67'1 ' 320,951

Mrnorrty mterests in earnlngs of consolidated entmes . 4,341 1,009 . —

’ Income before income taxes ‘ 458,736 ’4405‘,662 ' 320,951
B Provision for income taxes 175312 159,226 . 125973
Net income $ 283424 $ 246436 $ 194,978
Net income per share: . o } .

Basic $ 119§ 1.02. § .80

- Diluted 8 113§ 97 'S .76

~ Divideods per share '$ 08 3 .= '3 —
Weighted average number of shares outstandrng . - , ’
Basic 239,086 . 241,208 244,425

- 260,641 264,351
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B Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

(in thousands)

* Common Stock

Shares

Par
Value

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Retainéd
Earnings

Treasury
Stock

Balance at September 30, 2000

Exercise of stock options and
issuance of stock incentive
plan shares

Income tax benefit from
exercise of stock options

- and issuance of stock incentive

‘plan shares ’

Purchiase of treasury stock,
at cost

Net income

Balance at Sepﬁember’ 30, 2007 -
Exercise of stock options and

issuance of stock incentive

- plan shares

Income tax benefit from -
exercise of stock options
and issuance of stock incentive
plan shares .

Purchase of treasury stock,
at cost

.Net income

" Balance at September 30, 2002
Exercise of stock options and
issuance of stock incentive

plan shares
~ Income tax benefit from
~ exercise of stock options
and issuance of stock
incentive plan shares
Payrment of dividends
Net income

Balance at September 30, 2003

See accompanying notes.
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255,357

an7

' $2,554

27

$308,834

05245

6,113

$ 830,169

194,978

$(111,491)

(2,780)

258,074

2,993 °

2,581

30

340,192

14,629

18,393

1,025,147

246,436

(114,271)

(186,385)

961,067

1,638

2,611

16

373,214

21,248

5,320.

1,271,583

(19,685)
283,424

(300,656) -

- 262,705

$2,627

$399,782

$1,535,322

$(300,656)




B3 Consolidated Statements of Cash quws_”

(in thousands) -

. Year ended September 30,

- Liabilities assumed

See accompanying notes.

2003 2002 2001
Cash flows from operatung activities: o o ‘
"Net income. : $283,424  $246,436 $194,978
Adjustments to reconcite net income to net cash ‘ o
provided by operating activities: v A
Depreciation and amortization’ 109,864 95,328 90,646 .
- Provision for doubtful accounts - 186,826 172,430 143,923 -
" Minority interest in earnings of consolidated entmes 4,341 1,009 —
(Gain) loss on sale of fixed assets - (826) 62 . 6)
Change in deferred income taxes 37,057 (8,585) (6,600)
Write-off of deferred financing costs 4,931 = - =
‘Charges for retirement benefits and :
write down of assets held for sale — — 17,000
Changes in assets and habmtles net of effects
of acquisitions: : :
Accounts receivable (265,830) (209,972) (149,288)
; Supplies (3,973) - {4,656) {9,993)
Prepaid expenses and other assets (38,383) 479 (257)
Deferred charges and other assets 2,168 “(1,085) - (6,018)
Accounts payable 5,666 20,746 13,315
Accrued expenses-and other liabilities © (6,504) 7,915 - 2,053
~ Income taxes — currently payable .(509) 28,260 5,347
. Other long-term liabilities 15,610 (3,281) 1,055
‘Net cash prowded by operatlng activities 333,862 354,136 296,155
Cash flows from mves‘&mg actwntaes
Acquisition of facllities, net of cash acquxred and R
purchase price adjustments (126,477)  (300,179) - (100,894)
Additions to property, plant and eguipment : (165,571} - - (116,047) (73,473)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment. - 1260 41,074 3,357
(increase) decrease in funds held by trustee {(29,316) (395) 884
“Proceeds from sale of minority interests in ’
_consolidated entities S — 32,000 —
Net cash used in mvestlng actfvmes (320,104)  (343,547) {(170,126)
Cash flows from financing activities: .
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 575,805 479,314 - 35,591
Principal payments on debt - (318,318) . (263,482) {129,098)
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost — (186,385) (2,780)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 21,264 14,659 25,272
Payment of interest on debentures (1,222) (1,222) (1,222)
- Payment of dividends ' (19,685) = —
Net cash.provided by (used in) financing actuvmes 257,844 42,884 (72,237)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalerits’ 271,602 53,473 53,792
" Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 123,736 /70,263 16,471
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year - $395338 $123,736 $ 70,263
Supp]ementai scheduie of noncash
investing and fmancmg activities: . . v
Fair value of assets acauired (including cash) $132,419 $292,456 $ 63,049
Consideration: Cash paid 119,136 291,435 59,436
$ 13283 $ 1,021 $ 3,613

2003‘Annual Report 27




B3 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1.

. Business and summary of significant accounting policies -

Health Management Associates, Inc. (the “Company”), through its subsidiary companies, substantially .

- all of which are wholly-owned, provides health care services to patients in owned and leased facilities

primarily in the southeast and southwest United States. The Company con8|stently apphes the
foIlownng significant acoountlng pohcves

* a. Principles of consolidation. The Consolldated financial statements rnclude the accounts of the

Company and its subsidiaries, all of which are controlled by the Company through majority voting
control. All'significant mtercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

b. Cash equrvalents The Company considers all hrghly liquid investments purchased with a matunty
of Iess than three months to be cash-equivalents. The Company's cash equivalents consist pnnolpally

of lnvestment grade mstruments

‘¢. Property, plant and equipment. Property, plantand equlpment are camed atcostand include major

expenditures which increase their values or extend their useful lives. Depreciation and amortization
are computed using the straight-line method based on estimated useful lives. Estimated useful
lives for buildings and improvements range from twénty to forty years and for equipment range .
from three to ten years. Leaseholds are amortized on a straight-line basis over.the terms of the

" respeciive leases. Depreciation expense was $105.0 milion, $91.9 million and $77.3 million for the
 years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respeotnvely

d. Excess of cost overacqwred net assets, netand deferred charges and other assets. Prior to October
1, 2001, excess of cost-over acquired net assets (goodwill) had beén amortized on a straight-line basis
over lives ranging from three to twenty-five years. As of October 1, 2001, the Company adopted the
provisicns of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, Gooawill and Other
Intangitle Assets (“SFAS No. 142%). SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives no longer be amortized, but instead be tested for impairment at least annually in
accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142, The transition provisions of SFAS No. 142 required A
the oompletron of a transitional impairment test within six months of adoption of SFAS No. 142. The
Company tests.goodwill annually for impairment. There was no goodwill impairment for the years
ende_d September 30, 2003, 2002 or 2001. During the year ended September 30, 2001, the Company
recorded $9.2 million of goodwill amortization expense which reduced eamnings by $5.5 million (net of
tax expense of approximately $3.7 million) or approximately $0.02-per share on a diluted basis. )

Deferred charges and other assets consist principally of deferred financing costs and certain -
non-productive assets held. for sale. The financing costs are being amortized over the life of the
related debt. The accumulated amortization of deferred financing costs was $2.5 m|Ihon and $4.5
million at September-30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Certair long-tived assets may.become impaired, requiring a- wnte down of the assets to their
estimated fair values. The Company’ periodically reviews future cash flows.related to these assets
and, if necessary, will reduce such assets to their estimated fair values.

e. Use of estimates. The preparation of financial statementsi in oonformlty W|th aocountrng pnnmples

‘ ‘generally accepted in the United States requires management of the Company to make estimates

and assumptlons that affect. the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could d|ffer from those estimates.

'f. Net patient service revenue and cost of revenue. The Company reoogniZes gross patient service

charges cn the accrual basis in the period that services are rendered. Net patient service revenue -
represents gross patient service charges less provisions for contractual adjustments. Approximately
57%, 59% and 59% of gross patient service charges for the years ended September 30, 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively, related to services rendered to patients covered by the Medicare and
Medicaid programs. Payments for services rendered to patients covered by these programs are
generelly less than billed charges. Provisions for contractual adjustments are made to reduce the
charges to these pat|ents to estimated receipts based upon the programs’ principles of payment/
reimbursement (either prospectively determined or retrospectively determined costs). Final séttlements
under these programs are subject to administrative review and audit, and provision is currently made
for adjustments which may result. Such adjustments were not material to the Company’s operations
for the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002, and 2001. Laws and regulations governing the

Medicare and Medicaid programs are extremely complex-and subject to interpretation. As a result,

there is a possibility that recdrde_d estimates may change in the future. Revenues and rec'eiyables
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from government programs are significant to the Company’s operations, but the Company does
* not believe that there are significant credit risks associated with these government programs. -
The Company grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local to the area
where the hospitals reside and are insured under third-party payor agreements. The Company
does not charge interest on accounts feceivable. The credit risk for non- govemment program .
. concentrations of receivables | is limited due to the large number of insurance.companies and other
payors that provide payments for services. Accounts receivable are reported net of an estimated
allowance for uncollectible accounts in the accompanymg financial statements.
“Estimates for contractual a!lowances under managed care heaith plans are based primarily on
the payment terms of contractual arrangements such as predetermrned rates per’ dlagnosrs per
" diem rates or discounted fee for'service.rates. ‘
Net patient service revenue is presented nét of provisions for contractual adjustments and other.
-allowances of $5,427 million, $4,121 mnlllcn and $2,381 million for the years ended September
' 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, in the accompanyirig consolidated statements of income.
. In the ordinary course of business, the Company renders services in its facilities to patients who
“are financially unable to pay for their hospital care. The.value of these services to patients who are
unable to pay is not material to the Company’s consolidated results of operations. -

The Company’s presentatlon of costs and expenses does not differentiate between cost of revenues
and non-cost of revenues because substantrally allof the Company's costs and expenses are related
to providing health care services. Furthermore, the Company believes that the natural classmcatron :
of expenses is a more meanrngful présentation.of the Company’s cost of doing business.’

g. Acqounts receivable and provision for doubtful accounts. The collection of receivables from third
- party payors and patients is the Company’s primary source of cash and is critical to its operating
.. performance. The primary collection risks relate to uninsured patient accounts and patient accounts for
- whichthe primary insurance payer has paid, but patierit responsibility amounts (generally deductibles
* and co-payments) remain outstanding. Provisions for doubtful accounts are estimated based primarily
upon the age of the patients’ account, the patients’ economic:ability to pay and the effectiveness of
collection efforts. Accounts receivable balances are routinely reviewed in conjunction with historical
“collection rates and other economic conditions which might ultimately affect the collectibifity of patient
accounts when' considering the adequacy of the .amounts recorded as allowances for. doubtful
accounts. Accounts receivable are written off after collection efforts have been followed in accordance
with the Company’s policies. Accounts written off as uncoliectible are deducted from the allowance for
- uncollectible accounts while subsequent recoveries are netted against provision for doubtful accounts
~ expense. Significant changes in payer mix, business office operations, economic conditions or trends
" in federal and state governmental. health care coverage could affect the Companys co!lectlon of
accounts receivable, cash flows and results of operatrons

_ h. Professional l;ab:hty insurance claims. Accruals for self-rnsured professional habmty risks are

-determined’ using -asserted and unasserted claims identified by the Company'’s incident reporting
* system and actuarially-determined estimates based both on industry and the Company’s historical
loss payment patterns and have been discounted to their present value using a discount rate of
4.5%. Although the ultimate settlement of these accruals may vary from these estimates, the
Company believes that the amounts provided in the consohdated financial statements are adequate.
If actual payments of claims exceed the Companys pro jected estimates -of claims, the insurance
accruals could be matenally adversely affected, .

i. Funds held by trustee. Funds held by trustee cons_ist primarily of investments held by the

- Company's insurance subsidiary to be used to pay losses and loss expenses of the insurance

subsidiary. The current and long-term classification of these funds is based on the projected timing
‘of the corresponding professional liability claims payments. These funds are primarily invested in
short term mutual and money market funds

j- M:nonty interestsin consohdated entities. The consolidated fimancial statements include all assets,
" liabilities, révenues and expenses of majority-owned, but less than 100% owned, entities controlled
by the Company. Accordingly, the Company has recorded minority rnterests in the earnmgs and,
" equity of such entities.

k. Income taxes. The’ Company accounts for income taxes under SFAS No. 109, Accounting
for Income Taxes ("SFAS No. 109"). Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined
based upon the. difference between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and
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Jl2 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

- Business and summaw of sugnufucam acc@ummg p@ﬁucues, cemmwed
are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are -
expected to reverse (see Note 5). Management must make estimates in récording the Company’s
provision for income taxes, including determination of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
_and any valuation allowance that might be reqguired against the deferred tax asset. Management
believes that future income will enable the Company to realize these benefits in the future. Therefore,
the Company has not recorded a valuation allowance against the deferred tax asset. X
' The Company operates in muiltiple states with varying tax laws. The Company is subiject to
both federal and state, audits.of tax returns. Management must make estimates to determine that
tax reserves are-adequate to cover any potential audit adjustmenits. Actual resuits of audits, if any,
could vary from the eshmates recorded by management. '

1. Earnings per share, Earnings per share is based on the wenghted average number of common
and common equivalent shares (stock options and convernble debt) outstanding during the periods
presented (see Note 7) :

| m. Segment reporting. The Companys busuness of prowdmg health care services 1o patients in
owned and leased facilities comprises a single reportable operating segment under SFAS No. 131,
Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.

n. Guarantees. The Company has committed to provrde certain fmancral assistance pursuant to
recruiting agreements with various physicians practicing in the communities that the Company
serves. In consideration for a physician relocating to one of its communities in need of the physician’s
services, the Company may advance money to the phiysician in order for such physician to establish
his or her practice. The Company had committed to adv'ance‘appr‘oximately $13.3 million as of
September 30, 2003. The actual amount of such commitments is dependent upon the financial
results of each.physician’s private practice during the guarantee period, which generally does
not exceed twelve months. The net amounts advanced under these recruiting agreements at the
end of the individual's guarantee period are considered loans and are generally forgiven pro rata
over a period of 36 months contingent upon the physician continuing to practice in the respective
community. The Company expenses these advances on a stralght -line basis as they are paid over
the guarantee period. .

o. Stock compensation. The Company has elected to follow Accountmg Prnnolples Board Opinion
No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees ("APB 25”). Under APB 25, since the exercise
price of the Company’s employee stock options equals the market price of the underlying stock
on the date of grant, no compensation expense is recognized. As a result, pro forma disclosure
of alternative fair value accounting is required under SFAS No. 123, Accoum‘fng for Stock-Based
Compensation, tilizing an option valuation model.

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amomzed to
expense over the options’ vesting period. The Companys pro forma information is as follows (in

. thousands, _except per share data)

Year Ended September 30, e - 20083 2002 2001

Net.income, as reported : ‘ - $283,424 . $246,436  $194,978
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation ' .
expense determined under fair value based method -
~ for all awards, net of related tax effects (10,206) (11,175) (10,441)

Pro forma net income . o $273,218  $235,261  $184,537

Pro forma earnings per share: ‘ ‘ _
Basic — as reported $ 119 % 102 % .80
Basic - pro forma $ 114 - § 97 % .75
Diluted — as reported $ 113 % 97 $ 76
Diluted - pro forma $ 108 § 91 $ 72

© The fair value for these options was estimated at the date of grant-using the BIaEk-SohoIes
option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions for 2003, 2002 and 2001: (i)
risk-free interest rate of 2.34%, 4.60%, and 5.51%; (ii) .4% dividend yield for 2003, no dividends for
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2002 and 2001; (i) volatility factor of the expected market price of the Company’s common stock
of .529, .538, and .489; (iv) and weighted-average expected lives of the options of 5, 5 and 7 years.
The weighted-average fair value of . options granted in 2003 2002, and 2001 was $8.59, $10.23,
and $9.59, respectively..

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was. developed for use in estrmatrng the fair value
of traded options which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option
valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock
‘price volatility. Because the Company’s employee stock options have characteristics significantly
different from those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective input assumptions
can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management'’s opinion, the. existing models do not
necessarily provrde a reliable srngle measure of the fair value of its employee stock options.

. p. Recent Accounting Pronouncements. In.November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards
. Board (the "FASB) issued Interpretation No. 45, ‘Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees,” Including. Indirect Guarantses of Indebtedness of Others, an
_Interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 57, and 107 and Rescission of FASB. Interpretation No.
34 (“FIN 4587).-FIN 45 elaborated on the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and
annual-financial statements about its-obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. It
also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a fiability
for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. The initial recognition and
© measurement provisions of this interpretation are applicable, on a prospective basis, to guarantees
issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The Company’s adoption of FIN 45 did not have a
material effect on its consolidated financial statements. (see Note 1.n.)

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretatlon No. 48, Consolidation of Variable interest Entities,
an interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 57 {*FIN 46"). FIN 46 requires the consolidation
of entities in which an enterprise absorbs a majority .of the entity’s expected losses, receives a
" majority of the entity’s' expected residual returns, or both, as a result of ownership, contractual or
other financial interests in the entity. FIN 46 also réquires disclosure about variable interest entities
that'a company is-not required to consolidate, but in which it has a srgnmcant variable interest. The
consolidation requirements of FIN 46 apply immediately to variable interest entities created after
January 31, 2003 and to existing entities in the first fiscal year or interim period ending after December
15, 2008, Certain of the disclosure requirements apply to all financial statements issued after January
31, 2003, regardless of when the variable interest entity was established. The Company’s adoption
of FIN 46 is not expected to have a material effect on its consolidated financial statements. .

On January 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS No. 145 Rescission of FASB Statements No.
4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections (*SFAS No. 145",
SFAS No. 145 rescinds SFAS No. 4 Reporting Gains and Losses From Extinguishment of Debt.
SFAS No. 145 requires any gains or losses on extinguishment of debt that do not meet the criteria
in Accounting Principtes Board Opinion-Neo. 30 Reporting the Results of Operations — Reporting -
-the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently
Occurring Events and Transactions for classification as an extracrdinary item shall be classified in
income from operations. The Company incurred a writeoff of deferred financing costs related to
the early extinguishment of debt in the fourth quarter of the year ended September 30, 2003. This
writeoff of deferred financing costs loss was recorded in.income from operations pursuant to the
requirements of SFAS No. 145, ‘

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, Accounting forStock Based Compensation—
an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123 ("SFAS No. 148”). SFAS No. 148 amends SFAS
No. 1283, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation to provide alternative methods of transition
for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee
* compensation, In addition, SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to

require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of
“accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported
results. -SFAS No. 148 is effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15,
'2002. The Company has elected not to change to the fair value based method of accounting for
stock-based ermployee compensation, therefore, the adoption of SFAS No. 148 did not have an
9mpaot on the Company’s consolidated financial position or consolidated results of operaticns.

q. Reclass:f/catlons Certain’ amounts have been reolassufred in prior years.-to conform with the
current year presentation. '
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L 3. Long-{tevm debt

2 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Acquusutaons and dispositions -

*During the year. ended September 30, 2003 the Company acquwed Cer‘[aln assets of four hospltals
through purchase agreements for $119.1 milion in cash and the assumption of $13.3 miliion in
liabilities. During the year ended September 30, 2002, the Company acquired certain assets of two

-"hospitals and the stock of three hospitals through purchase agreements for $226.2 million in cash
~ and the assumption of $1.0 million in liabilities. During the year ended September 30, 2001, the )
Company acquired certain assets of two hospitals through purchase agreements for $59.4 million '
in cash.and the assumption of $3.6 million in liabilities. The foregoing acquisitions were accounted
for by the Company using the purchase method of accounting. The allocation of the purchase price
was determined by the Company at acquisition based upon available lnformatton and is subject to
further refinement.

As part of a group purchase of four hospstals durlhg the year ended September 30, 2002, the
Company acquired one acute care hospital and sold it on the samie day for $40.0 million in cash.

The operating results of the above hospitals have been included in the accompanying consolidated -
statements of income from the date of each respective hospital’s acquisition. The following unaudited
pro.forma combined summary of operations of the Company for each of the years in the three
year period ended September 30, 2003 give effect to the operation of the hospitals purchased in
the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 .and 2001 as if the acquisitions had occurred as of

"October 1, 2001, 2000 and 1998, respectlvely

Year Endsd September 30, 2003 2002 2001
. ’ ' : (m millions, except per.share data)

, Net patient service revenue o v : $ 2,700.7 $2,559.0 $2,3015
Net income : ' I $ 2774 § 2422  $ 1819
Net income. per share - Basic - % 116 %8 99 $ .74
Net income per share — Diluted - % 110 $ 94 $ 71

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill are as follows (in rhil!iohs):

September 30, . - " o o 2003 2002

Balance at beginning of the year | ) ' . $342113  $ 251,315 .
Goodwill acquired during the year ‘ ‘ ‘ 43,697 98,861
Impairment losses : o o I — . —
Goodwill written off related to disposals - . B — —
‘Adjustments to purchase price allocation ' ‘ ' ) - 12,015 (8,083}

Balanceatend ofyear - =~ . . <, . 3397825  $ 342,113

The Companys Iong -term debt oonS|sts of the follownng {in thousands)

September s, © ' A 2002 2002

Revolving Credit Agreements (a) - S8 — 38 —
" Zero-Coupon Convertible Senior Subordinated Debentures due 2020 - ' :
at 3%, net of discount-of $184.9 million at September 30, 2002 (b) — 303,274
- Zero- Coupon Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2022 at -
10.875%, net of discount of $48.8 million and $51.2 million at '
- September'30, 2003 and 2002, respectively (b)" . - 281,211 278,757
- 1.50% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2023 (b) 575,000 - —
Mortgage notes, secured by real and personal property'(c)  + = = 10,346 © 10,417
-Various. mortgage and instaliment notes and debentures, . L S
some secured by equipment; at interest rates ranging : S o ‘
from prime plus 1% to 6%, payable through 2009 s ' 34,283 28,368 .
Industrial Revenue Bond Issue - , S 4,770 5,160
Capitalized lease obligations (see Note 4) . . 28,551 31,762
o ‘ ‘ ' 934,160 657,768

Less current maturities N T 9447 7.609
‘ . §904,713  $650,159
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*a. Revolving Credit Agreements. The Company currently has a 5-year $450 million Crediit Agreernent
{the “Credit Agreement”) due November 30, 2004. The Crédit Agreement is a term loan agreement
which permits the Company to borfow under an unsecured revolving credit loan at any time through
November 30, 2004, at which time the agreement terminates and all outstanding amounts become
due and payable. The Company may choose a Base Rate Loan (prime interest rate) or a Eurodollar
Rate Loan. The interest rate for a Eurodollar Rate Loan is currently the LIBOR interest rate plus
1.00 percent, and will increase or decrease in relation to a change in the Company’s credit rating.
Monthly or quarterly interest payments are required depending on the type of loan chosen by the
Company. The interest rate at September 30, 2003 and 2002 was 2.1% and 2.8%, respectively. As

- " of September 30, 2003 and 2002, there were no-amounts outstanding under the Credit Agreement.

" In October 2003, the Company borrowed $275.0 ‘million-under the Credit. Agreement to partrany
- finance the acqursntron of certain hospitals. (see Note 12)
The Company. also has a-$15 million unsecured revolving credit commrtment with a bank. The
" $15 million credit commitment is a working capital commitment which'is tied to the Company’s cash
management system and renews annually on November 1. Currently, interest on any outstanding’
balance is payable monthly at a fluctuating rate not to exceed the bank's prime rate less .25%. The
interest rate at September 30, 2003 and 2002 was 3.75% and 4.5%, respectively. As of September
30, 2003 and 2002, there were'no amounts outstanding under this credit commitment.
in addition, the Company is obligated to pay certain commitment.fees based upon amounts
available for borrowrng during the terms of the credit agreements described above.

" The credit agreements described above contain covenants which, without prior consent of the
© banks, limit certain activities, including those relating to mergers, consolidations and the Company’s
ability to secure additional indebtedness, make guarantees, grant security interests and declare
dividends. The Company must also maintain-minimum levels of consolidated tangible net worth,
debt service coverage and interest coverage. At September 30, 2003 and 2002 the Company
was in compliance with these covenants. .

b. Subordinated Convert/ble Notes and Debentures. On August 16 2000, the Company sold
$488.8 milion face value of Zero-Coupon Subordinated Convertible Debentures due 2020 (the _
. “Debentures”) for gross proceeds of $287.7 million. The Debentures were to'mature on August 18,
2020, unless converted or redeemed earfier. The Debentures were convertible into the Company’s
common stock at a conhversion rate of 29:5623 shares of common stock for each $1,000 principal
amount of the Debentures.. Interest on the Debentures was payable semiannually in arrears on
August 16 and February 16 of each year at arate of .25% per year on the principal amount at maturity.
The rate of cash interest and accrual of original issue discount represented & yield to maturity of
'3% per year calculated from August 16, 2000. The Company redeemed all of the Debentures on
August 16, 2003 for $310.8 million in cash, the accreted value of the debentures. A writeoff of $4.9
million for the unamortized, remaining deferred financing costs related to the Debenture issuance
was recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003. ‘
" OnJanuary 28, 2002, the Company sold $330.0 million in faoe value of Zero -Coupon Convertrble'
Senior Subordinated Notes due 2022 (the “2022 Notes”) for gross proceeds of approximately $277.0
- miflion. The 2022 Notes are the Company’s general unsecured obligations and are subordinated
“in-right of payment to the Company’s existing and future senior indebtedness that is not, by its
terms, expressly subordinated or equal in right.of payment to the 2022 Notes. The 2023 Notes,
discussed below, rank equally with the 2022 Notes. The 2022 Notes mature on January 28, 2022,
.unless converted or redeemed earfier. Upon the occurrence of certain events, the 2022 Notes are
convertible into the Company’s common stock at a'conversion rate of 32.1644 shares of common
stoek for each $1,000 principal amount of the 2022 Notes (subject to adjustment in certain events).
The equivalent number of shares associated with the conversion of the 2022 Notes become dilutive
- tand thus included in the Company’s earnings per share calcutation) when the Company’s common
stock trades at-a level of $31.33 for at least 20 trading days of the 30 trading days prior to the
conversion or when the 2022 Notes otherwise becormie convertible. The accrual of the original -
issue discount on the 2022 Notes- répresents a yield to maturity of 0.875% per year célculated
from January 28, 2002, excluding any contxngent interest which. could be payabie under the terms .
. of the 2022 Notes
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3. Long-term dem, continued
Holders may require the Company to purchase alora pomon of their 2022 Notes on January 28,
* 2005, January 28, 2007, January 28, 2012 and January 28, 2017 for a purchase price per note of
$862.07, $377.25, $916.40 and $957.29, respectively, plus accrued and unpaid interest to each
purchase date. The Company-is required to pay cash for all 2022 -Notes so purchased on January
28, 2005. The Company may chooese to pay the purchase price in cash or common stock or a
“combinaticn of cash and common stock for purchases on or after January 28, 2007. In addition,
if the Company undergoss certain types of fundamental changes on or before January 28, 2007,
_each holder may require the Compary to purchase all or a portion of such holder's 2022 Notes.
The Company may redeem all or a portion of the 2022 Notes at any time on or after January 28,
. 2007. The Company has reserved approximately 10.6 milfion shares of common stock for issuance
in the event the 2022 Notes are converted.
On July 29 and August 8, 20083, the Company sold an aggregate of $575.0 million in face value
of 1.50% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2023-(the “2023 Notes”). The 2023 Notes
were sold at their principal faoe‘amount, plus accrued interest from July 29: 2003. The sale of the
2023 Notes resulted in net proceeds to the Company of approximately $563.5 million. The Company
used approximately $310.8 million of the proceeds to redeem all of its Debentures in August 2003.
The 2023 Notes are general unsecured obligations and are subordinated in'right of payment tc the
Company’s existing and future senior indebtédness that is not-expressly subordinated or equal in
right of payment to the 2023 Notes: The 2022 Notes, which are discussed above, rank equally with
the 2023 Notes. The 2023 Notes mature on August 1, 2023, unless they are converted or redeemed
eartfier. Upon the occurrence of certain events, the 2023 Notes. become convertible into shares of
the Company’s common stock at a conversion rate of 36.5097 shares of common stock for each
$1,000 principal amount of 2023 Notes converted (subject to adjustment in certain events). The
equivalent number of shares associated with any conversion of the 2023 Notes will become dilutive
(and thus included in the Company s earnings per share calculation) when the Company’s common
stock trades at a level of $36.097 for at least 20 out of 30 trading days prior to the conversion of the
2023 Notes or the 2023 Notes otherwise become oonvertnb!e Upon certain conditions, contingent
interest could be paid by the Company.
Holders may require the Company 1o purohase all or a portion of their 2023 Notes on August
1, 200€, August 1, 2008, August 1, 2013 and August 1, 2018 for a purchase price per note equal
.. to 100% of its principal face amount, plus accrued but unpaid interest. The Company is required
to pay cash for all 2023 Notes so purchased on August 1, 2006. The Company may choose to
" pay the purchase price in cash or common stock or a combination of cash-and common stock
for purchases on or after August 1, 2008. In addition, if the Company undergoes certain types of
fundamental changes on or before August 1, 2008, each holder of the 2023 Notes may require the
Company to'purchase all or a portion of such holder’s 2023 Notes. The Company may ohoose to
" pay the purchase price in cash or common stock or a combination of cash and common stock.
In addition, the Company may redeem all or a portion of the 2023 Notes at any time on or after
August 5, 2008 for a redemption price per note equal to its principal face amount, plus accrued
but unpaid interest. The Company may choose to pay the redemption price in cash or common
stock or a combination of cash and common stock. The Company has reserved approximately
21.0 million shares of common stock for issuance in the event the 2023 Notes.are converted.

¢. Mortgage Notes. The Company had three mortgage notes outstanding at September 30, 2003 and
four mortgage notes outstanding at September 30, 2002. The mortgage notes are secured by all the
real and personal property related to certain Company facilities with an aggregate net book value of
$53.3 million and $64.5 million at September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The mortgage notes
are payable in various instaliments with maturity dates ranging-through 2007 and carry interest rates
ranging from prime (4.0% and 4.75% at September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively) to 11.5%.

As of September 30, 2003 and 2002, the guoted market price for the 2022 Notes was
+ approximately $293.7 million and $287.9 million, respectively. As of September 30, 2003, the quoted
market price for the 2023 Notes was approximately $603.8 milfion. The fair value of the other debt -
included above, based on available market information, approximates its carrying value.
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Matuntxes of long- term debt and caplta! leases for the next five fiscal years and thereafter are as
follows (in thousands)

2004 - . e , : $ 9,447

2005 x - S - 8785
2008 o , o - 7,936
2007 ' S . 16,143
2008 oo i . v - : 4,280
Thereafter R . o ' e $887,569

The Company pand |nterest of $28 1 mllhon $7.4 miliion, and $14.9 million for the years ended
September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001; respectively. Capitalized interest was $.6 million for the year
ended September 30, 2003. There was no capitalized interest for the years ended September 30
2002 and 2001.  ~ 2

. Leases

The Company leases real estate propemes equment and vehtc!es under cancelable and non-
cancelable leases. Future minimum operating and capital. lease payments, including amounts
“relating to leased hospitals, are as follows at September 30, 2003 (in thousands)

Operating : : Capwtal
‘ ‘ Real ‘Real Property- Real Property
September 30, . -+ . Property  Master Leases Equipment and Equipment Total.

2004 . ‘ o $ 7747 § 48427 $25779 $ 5724 $ 44,092
2005 L E 7,094 4,938 18,267 5,270 35,569
2006 N 6,018 . 4085 . 11,944 . 4,599 27,546
T 2007 S 5509 ¢+ - 5034 6465 3,442 20,450
2008 - St 4,876 ‘5,084 - 2,884 . 2,950 15,794
- Thereafter ' 20,184 41,445 977 34,020 96,626
Total minimum payments $51;428 $66,328 $66,316. 56,005  $240,077
Less amounts representing interest . (27,454) :

© Present value of minimum lease payments : $28,551

The Company entered into several real property master leases with certain non-affiliated entities -
in the ordinary course of business during the year ended September 30, 2003. These Jeases are
for buildings on or near hospital property that the Company subleases to third parties. Amounts
received as rental income are offset against the expense. The Company has not engaged in any
~ transaction with an unconsolidated entity that is reasonably- likely to affect liquidity.

The following summanzes amounts related to assets leased by the Company under capital leases
“(in thousands):

September 30, o . o » : : 2003 2002

- Cost ‘ ' ' _ - $ 80615 $ 76,819
Less accumulated amomzanon » : - (21,874) (18,729)
Net book value . ‘ : ‘ ' $. 58,941  $ 60,090

The Company entered into capltahzed leases for equment of $2.9 million, $5.9 million and $4.0
million for the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

. Income taxes

The significant componénts of the provision for-income taxes are as follows (in thousands):

Year ended September30, . 2003 2002 2001
. Federal: o : ' : ‘
Current ~ = o $125,706  $144,017  $114,109
- Deferred - © o v 33,299 . (11,322) (6,731)
‘ Total Federal - © . 159,005 132,695 107,378 -
State: - : T - »
Current : ‘ 12,548 28,794 19,823
- Deferred I : S 8759 (2,263) (1,228)
Total State S . 16,307 . 26,531 18,595

Total ' ' ' ‘ $175,312  $159,226  $125,973
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5. Income taxes, continued - = -
" An analysis of the Company’s effective income tax rates is as follows:

Year ended September 30, L2008 2002 o 2001

. - o o ‘Amount  Percent . Amount  Percent . Amount  Percent
Statutory income taxrate ~ $160,558 35.0%  $141,982 35.0%. $112,333 35.0% -
- State income taxes, ST S S ‘
" net of Federal benefit . 16,077 35 . 15,824 39 . 12,628 3.9
Other items (each less than = - - « ‘ o

5% of computed tax) SV (1,323) (3). - 1,420 4 1,012 . 4

o ,Total , $1751312, 38.‘2% $159,226 39;3%, $125,973 39.3%

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the Federal and state
deferred income tax assets and liabilities are comprised of the follownng (in thousands)

September 30, , ‘ o o . - 2083 2002 -

Deferred income tax assets: R . o
Allowance for doubtful accounts _ o $.22,152 - § 27,417
~Accrued liabilities . : ‘ ‘ o - 17,435 14,645
Self insurance habnhty nsks . ) _ 14,547 17,505
Other v ‘ . . o _ 6,932 3,606

S ' ._ : 61,066 63,173

Less: Valuation allowance : o . ' - i —

Net daferred income tax assets R - o 61,066 - 63,173

Deferred income tax liabilities: RV , : _
Depreciable assets . o o R . (68,875)  (38,441)
Accrued liabilities and other - S ] (13,348) (6,632)

Net deferred income tax (liability).asset - - - . $(18,857) $ 18,100

SFAS No. 109 requires a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets reported if, based
on the weight of the evidence, -it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred
tax assets will not be réalized. After consideration of all the evidence, both positive and negative,
management has determinied that a valuation allowance is not necessary as of September 30, 2003
and 2002, respectively. ‘

Income taxes paid (net of refunds) amounted to $174.7 mllhon $1 39 7 million, and $126 1 m;lhon
for the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectavely

6. Retirement p! ans :
_The Company has a defined contribution retirement plan which covers substantlally all eligible
employees at its' hospitals and the corporate office. This plan includes a provision for the Company
-to match a portion of employee contributions. Total retirement program expense under this plan
was $6.7 million, $6.0 m||hon and $4 5 million for the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively.
- In addition, the Company maintains asupplemental retirement plan for certain Company executives
" which provides for predetermlned annual payments to these executives after the attainment of -
age 62, if still employed by the Company at that time. These payments generaHy continue for the
remalnder of the executive’s life. (see Note 10) ..

7. - Earnings per share ~
‘The following table sets forth the cornputatlon of basic and dlluted earnlngs per share (in thousands,
except per share data): ‘

 Year ended September 30, o © 2003 2002 2001
Nurmerator: ' ’ '
Numerator for basic earnings. per share— \ 4 o C ' -
net income : : $283,424  $246,436  $194,978 .
Effect of interest expense on convemble debt - 4,900 5,419 5,346

Numerator for diluted earnings per share . $288,324 . $251,855 - $200,324
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YearendedSeptemberSO ... o003 2002 2001

Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per share— o ‘ o
weighted average shares o ' 239,086 . 241,208 244,425
- Effect of dilutive securities: S o ) : .
Employee stock options L o413 . 4,804 5,477
Convertible debt e . 12,667 . 14,449 14,449
- Denominator for drluted earnrngs per share ‘ 255,884 260,641 . 264,351
Basrc earnings per share. R S0% 119§ 102 8 .80
Diluted earnings per share : o % 143 0% . .97 $ . .76

Outstandmg optlons to purchase 2.7 mllhon 2.8 mllhon and 1 2 m|||ton shares of the Company’s
"~ common stock were not included in the computation of earnings per share for the years ended
September 30, 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively, because the options’ exercise prices were
: greater than.the average market price of the Company s common stock. :

. Stockholders equuty

- The Company has a-1991 Stock Optlon Plan a 1993 Stock Optlon Plan and a 1996 Executive
_ Incentive Compensation Plan for the granting of options to its key employees to purchase common
stock. All options granted have 10 year terms and vest and become fully ¢ exermsable atthe end of -
either 3 or 4 years of continued employment. - . .
Pemnent mformatlon covering the plans is summarrzed below ‘ R

) ) Weighted
Shares Price - Average
- : (nthousands) : - .Range-. Price
Balanoe at September 30 2000 R 21,833 - $ 1.24-21.63 $10.87
- Granted o C . 2,804 . . '16.60-2125 . 16.62
Exercised . o7 (2,553) 1.24-13.00 ' 999 -
Terminated ’ {1,508) -+ 12.13-21.63 13.38
Balance at September 30,2001 . . 20,578, | 2.07-21.63 1159
Granted a e - 1,808 19.10-1995 - = 1993
Exercised : o (2,847) 2.07-19.63 4.41
: . Terminated - T (320) 8.25-21.63 1817
- Balance at September 30, 2002 SN 19,219 1 2.07-21.83. © 13.33
Granted - : 2,023 - ¢ 18.56 18.56
Exercised =~ T S - (1,490) 2.07-21.63 12.22
Terminated I (417) . 12.13-:21.63 17.77
Balance at September 30, 2003 19,335 . ' $ 4.49-21.63 $13.89

Stock options exercisable at September BO 2003, 2002, and 2001 were 14,336, 14,073, and

15,144 at weighted average exercise prices of $12.51, $12. 14, and $10.35, respectively. '
" The following table summarizes mformatron concermhg currently outstandmg and exercisable
options: . . )

Op’tions Outstanding . : L ‘ _ Options Exercisable

" Weighted y .

) o ~ Average =~ . Weighted : Weighted

Range of ‘ ~ PRemaining -  Average Average

Exercise - Number - Contractual -~ Exercise Numiber . Exercise
Prices . " Qutstanding - Life Price ' . - Exercisable > -Price
$449-$1213 - 5,166,000" 40 . $.887 . 4737000 $ 8.58

. $12.72-8$17.13 9,471,000 . = --5.1 . $13.74 8,184,000 - $13.30
. $18.56- $21.63 ' 4698 000 . 82/ $19 71 1,415,000 $21 13

At September 30 2003, there were approximately 11.2 million shares of common stock reserved
for future issuance under the plans. In addition, the Company has granted options for shares of its

common stock to seven non-employee directors. At September 30, 2003, there were approxrmately -

170,000 options outstanding at exercuse prices rangrng from 334 49 to $21.63 per share, expiring -
“-in 2004 through 201 3 . .
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8.

e.

Stockholders’ equutty, cenftmued :

The Company also has a Stock Incentive Plan for corporate offrcers and management staff. This
pian provides for the awarding of additional compensation to key personnel in the form of Company
common stock. Under this plan, stock will be issued to the grantee four years after the date of
grant, provided the individual is still an employee of the Company. At September 30, 2003; there
were approximately 450,000 shares reserved under the plan, for which the Company has recorded
$2.9 million, $2.9 million and $2.0 million of compensation expense for the years ended September
30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

In September 2001, the Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program to repurchase
up to 5,000,000 shares of the Company's common stock. On January 29, 2002, the Company
announced that it had completed the stock repurchase program by purchasing a total of 5,000,000
shares of its"’common stock at an average purchase price of $19.29 per share. ,

In February 2002, the Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program to repurchase
up to 5,000,000 shares of the Company's common:stock. On August 8, 2002, the Company
announced that it had completed the stock repurchase program by purchasing a total of 5,000,000
shares of its-common stock at an average purchase price of $18.54 per share.

~ At September 30, 2003 and 2002, there were approximately 10.6 million shares of common stock
reserved for future issuance upon the conversion of the Company’s 2022 Notes. At September 30,
2003, there were approximately 21.0 million shares of common stock reserved for future issuance
upon the conversion of the-Company's 2023 Notes.

Professional Duabututty rusks

Through September 30, 2002, the Company was insured for professronal liability nsks under a
“claims-made” basis policy; whereby each claim was covered up to $1.0 milion per occurrence,
subject to-a $100,000 deductible (with an annual deductible cap of $6.1 miliion). Liabilities in excess

- of these amounts were covered through a combination of limits provided by commercial insurance
- .companies and a self-insurance program.

10.

Accruals for self-insured professional liability risks are determined using asserted and unasserted
claims identified by our incident reporting system and actuarlatly determined estimates based both
on industry and our own historicalloss payment patterns and have been discounted to their present
value using a discount rate of 4.5%. Although the ultimate settlement of these accruals may vary
from these estimates, the Company believes that the amounts provided in the consolidated financial
statements are adequate. If actual payments of claims exceed the Company’s projected estimates
of claims, the insurance accruals could be materially adversely affected.

Effective October 1, 2002, in response to difficulty in'obtaining primary insurance from commercial
companies at reasonable rates, the Company formed a wholly-owned insurance subsidiary in order to
self-insure a greater portion of its primary professional and general liability risk. The captive subsidiary
insures risk up to $1.0 million per claim and $3.0 million in the aggregate per hospital and substantially
all of the Company's approximately. 165 employed physicians, and further acts as an excess insurer
for all hospitals in combination with three commercral'rnsurance companies. If actual payments of

‘claims exceed projected estimates of claims, the Company’s insurance accruals for the insurance

subsrdrary could be materially adversely affected.

Non-cash charge )
The amount recorded as a non-cash oharge of $17 0 milion during the year ended September
30, 2001 consists of $13 & million for the present value .of the future costs of retirement benefits
granted tc the Company’s chairman pursuant to an agreement which became effective January 2,
2001 and $3.4 million for the write down of two hospital assets held for sale in conjunction with their

" reSpective replacement. The two hospital assets that were written down were facilities for which

replacement facilities were completed in June 1999 and March 2000. The charge for the write down

" of these facilities was recorded in the Company’s quarter ended March 31, 2001. During the period

38

between completion of the new facilities and the recording of the charge, the Company was in the
process of evaluating its options for the sale of the facilities that had been replaced. During the
quarter ended March 31, 2001, the Company finalized its plans for the old facilities and obtained
the information necessary o estimate the loss on sale.
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11.

Commitments -
A number of hospnta\ renovation and/or expansion prO)ects were underway at September 30, 2003.

~None of these projects are individually significant nor do they represent a significant commitment

in_ total at September 30, 2003. In addition, the Comipany plans to replace three of its existing

 hospitals (Brooksville, Florida; Carlisle, Pennsylvania; and Lancaster, Pennsylvania) and build one

new hospital (Naples, Florida) over the next four years. As of September 30, 2003, the construction
cost of these four hospitals is expected to be approximately $190.0 million. Regulatory approval,
subject to appeal, to begin construction on all these hospitals has been granted. The Company is
also obligated to construct a new facility at its Monroe, Georgia location within the next five years.

’ The cost for this hosprtal has not yet been determrned

12.

Subsequent events : ‘ .
On October 28, 2003, the Companys Board of Directors declared a quarterly-cash dividend of
$0.02 per share of the Company's common stock payable on December 1, 2003 to stockholders
of record at the close of business on November 7, 2003. ’

On November 1, 2003, the Company acquired five non-urban hospitals from Tenet. Healthcare
Corporation. The five hospitals included Seven Rivers. Community- Hospital, a 128-bed hospital
located in Crystal River, Fiorida; Harton Regional Medical Center, a 137-bed hospital located in
Tullahoma, Tennessee; University Medical Center a two-campus 257-ped hospital located in
Lebanon, Tennessee; Three Rivers Healthcare, a two-campus 423-bed hospital located in Poplar
Bluff, Missouri; and Twin-Rivers Regional Medical Center; a 116-bed hospital located in Kennett,

. Missouri. The aggregate cost of this acquisition was approximately $515.0 million. This transaction
~ was financed through a combination of cash on hand and through borrownng $275 0 million under

13,

the Company’s Credit Agreement

Quarterly data (unaudited)
Years ended September 30 2008 and 2002 (rn thousands except per share data): . .

. Quarter : Year Ended -
“First “Second - Third Fourth " Sept. 30

2003

Net patient service reveriue ~ $609,419  $646,472 - $647,127 $657,568 $2,560,576
income before income taxes $ 97,784 $127,980 '$124,482 $108,48t $ 458,736

Net income - $ 59656 % 78,065 $ 75921. $ 69,782 $ 283,424
" Net income per share; ' R .
.Basic . ' $ 25 §& 33 % 32 % 2 § 1.19
Diluted - ' $ =24 ¢ .31 & 30 $ 28 § 1.18
* Weighted average nurnber :
of shares: , g o : .
- Basic . o - 238,589 238,673 239,108 239,965 239,086
Diluted ) 257,255 256,993 257,379 . 251,863 - 255,884
2002 .
- Net patient service revenue $495,821  $579,948 $592,476 $594,356 $2,262,601
* Income before income taxes  ~ $ 83,072 $113,965 $109,665 $ 98,960 - $ . 405,662
Net income ’ - $-50,466 . $ 69,236 $ 66,616 $ 60,118 $ 246,436
Net income per share: - ‘ C o
Basic : 8 218 20 %8 28 & 25 % 1.02
" Diluted % 20 $ 27 % 26 % 24 8 97
" Weighted average number ’ S : ’ |
of shares: . ‘ ; Lo ‘ : o . _
., Basic ' 243,849 . 241,259 241,227 239,052 241,298

_ Diluted” - 263,365 . 260,661 - 260,821 257,740 260,641
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2 Corporate Information .

Corporate Headguarters.

5811 Pelican Bay Boulevard, Suite 500
Naples, Florida 34108-2710

(239) 598-3131

internet Address
www.hma-corp.com

Annuaﬂ Report to ﬁhe SEC
The Company's annual report filed with the )
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
on Form 10-K, and other filings with the SEC,
may be obtained by writing to the Company at
its address listed above. Additicnal information
filed by the Company with the SEC is avail-
. -able by accessing the Company’s web81te at
“www.hma-corp. com. )

Arnual Meeting :

Shareholders are cordially invited to attend the
Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which will be
held at 1:30 p.m. on February 17, 2004, at the

~ Philharmonic Center for the Arts, Daniels Pavilion,

5833 Pelican Bay Blvd., Naples, Fiorida, 34108.

4 ‘Managenﬁent urges all shareholders to vote their
. proxies and thus participate in the decisions that
will be made at this meetlng

Tmnsﬁen‘Agem ,
Wachovia Bank, N.A.
1525 West W. T. Harns Boulevard
Mail Code 3C3NC1153
Charlotte, North Carohna 28288

; (800) 829 8432

_For change of name, address, or to replace
lost stack certificates, write or call the Transfer
Agent's Securities Transfer Division.

Securities Analyst Gontact

- John C. Merriwether

Vice President of Financial Relatlons
(239) 598 3104
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. Fisoa\ Vear Ended
. September 30

. NYSE Symbol

HMA

deependem Certified Pubﬂﬂc Acc@umams
Ernst & Young LLP -
Tampa, Florida

Gommon Stock Price Range and

Dividend Information .

At September 30, 2003, there were 240 205,209
shares outstanding and approxxmately 1,500

* -shareholders of record.

The range of high and low. prices for the past -
eight quarters ended September 30, 2003, is
shown below L

Price Range
2003 ) 2002
$22.70-$16.50  $21.00-$17.44
'$19.41-$15.89 $21.00-$17.00
$20.10-$16.51 $22.99-$19.50
$22.89-$17.39 $20.75-$16.24

1st.Quarter
2nd Quarter
3rd Quarter
4th Quarter

Analyst Coverage
Avondale Partners o
Banc of America Securities
CIBC World Markets™
Credit Suisse/First Boston
Deutsche Bank Securities

. Dowling & Partners -

Goldman, Sachs & Co.
J.P. Morgan Securities

~ Jefferies & Company

Lehman Brothers

Merrill Lynch & Co.

Morgan Stanley

Raymond James

SG Cowen Securities Corporation
UBS "
Wachovia Securities
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WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549
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X] Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
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OR
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(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)
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As of December 16, 2003, there were 242,786,806 shares of the Registrant’s Class A Common Stock, par value $.01 per share
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Portions of the Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement, to be issued in connection with the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the
Registrant to be held on February 17, 2004, have been incorporated by reference into Part III, Items 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14 of this Report.
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PARTI
Item 1. Business

Overview

Through our subsidiaries, we own and operate general acute care hospitals and psychiatric hospitals in non-urban
communities. As of September 30, 2003, we operated 47 hospitals, consisting of 45 acute care hospitals with a total of 6,337
licensed beds and two psychiatric hospitals with a total of 142 licensed beds. Our fiscal year runs from October 1 through
September 30. During the twelve months ended September 30, 2003, which we refer to as fiscal 2003, we operated facilities
located in Alabama, Arkansas, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, Mississippi, North Carolina, Oklahoma, Pennsylvania, South
Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia, Washington and West Virginia. During fiscal 2003, our general acute care hospitals
contributed substantially all of our consolidated net patient service revenues.

Services provided by our hospitals include general surgery, internal medicine, obstetrics, emergency room care,
radiology, oncology, diagnostic care, coronary care, pediatric services, behavioral health services and psychiatric care and, in
several of our hospitals, specialized services such as open-heart surgery and neuro-surgery. Our facilities benefit from
corporate resources, such as purchasing, information services, finance and control systems, facilities planning, physician
recruitment services, administrative personnel management, marketing and public relations.

Our class A common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “HMA,” and is included
within the Standard and Poor’s 500 Index. On January 7, 2003, for the second consecutive year, we were named to the Forbes
Platinum 400—The Best Big Companies in America. We were incorporated in Delaware in 1979 but began operations through
our current subsidiary, Hospital Management Associates, Inc., which was formed in 1977. We became a public company in
1991.

Recent Transactions

We proactively identify acquisition targets in addition to responding to requests for proposals from entities that are
seeking to sell or lease hospital facilities. As a result, we generally enter into several agreements to acquire additional hospital
facilities during our fiscal year. Generally, at any given time, we are actively involved in negotiations concerning possible
acquisitions. Our recent transactions include the following:

. On November 1, 2003, we acquired five non-urban hospitals from subsidiaries of Tenet Healthcare
Corporation. The five hospitals acquired included Seven Rivers Community Hospital, a 128-bed hospital
located in Crystal River, Florida; Harton Regional Medical Center, a 137-bed hospital located in Tullahoma,
Tennessee; University Medical Center, a two-campus 257-bed hospital located in Lebanon, Tennessee; Three
Rivers Health Care, a two-campus 423-bed hospital located in Poplar Bluff, Missouri; and Twin Rivers
Regional Medical Center, a 116-bed hospital located in Kennett, Missouri. The aggregate cost of this
acquisition was approximately $515.0 million. This acquisition also represented our initial operations in the
State of Missouri.

. On October 3, 2003, we received approval from the State of Florida Agency for Health Care Administration
to construct our proposed 100-bed Collier Regional Medical Center in southeast Collier County, Florida.
Pending any appeal that might be made, we anticipate beginning construction of this hospital in the next 12
months. The cost of the project is expected to be approximately $75.0 million.

. On September 15, 2003, we acquired Walton Medical Center, a 135-bed hospital located in Monroe,
Georgia. The aggregate cost of this acquisition was approximately $40.0 million.

. On August 15, 2003, we acquired the assets of Providence Yakima Medical Center located in Yakima,
Washington and Providence Toppenish Hospital located in Toppenish, Washington, a 289-bed acute care
hospital system. The aggregate cost of this acquisition was approximately $82.7 million. This transaction
also represented our first geographic expansion into the northwestern United States and the State of
Washington.




. On January 1, 2003, we acquired, pursuant to a 40-year lease, the Madison County Medical Center, a 67-bed
acute care hospital located in Canton, Mississippi. The aggregate cost of this acquisition was approximately
$9.7 million.

Market

Our market for operating and acquiring acute care hospitals is primarily non-urban areas of 30,000 to 400,000 people
in the southeastern and southwestern United States. Typically, the acute care hospitals we acquire are, or can become, the sole
or preferred provider of health care services in their market areas. Our target markets generally have the following
characteristics:

o A history of being medically underserved. We believe that we can enhance and increase the level and quality
of health care services in many underserved markets.

o A growing elderly population. We believe that this growing population uses a higher volume of the services
our hospitals provide.

. The existence of patient outmigration trends to urban medical Centers. In many instances, based on
community needs, we believe that we can recruit new physicians based on community need and purchase the
new equipment necessary to reverse outmigration trends.

. States in which a certificate of need is required to construct a new hospital facility or add licensed beds to an
existing hospital facility. We believe that states which require certificates of need have higher barriers to
entry and, in many instances, permit us to be the sole or preferred service provider in a geographic area.

. Areas in which marketing does not play a major role in patients’ selection of health care.

Business Strategy

Our business strategy is to efficiently and profitably operate our existing hospitals, acquire additional hospitals in non-
urban communities and provide quality health care.

Improve Operations of Existing Hospitals

For our existing hospitals, we seek to increase our patient revenue by providing quality health care necessary to
increase admissions and outpatient business. These hospitals are administered and directed on a local basis by each hospital’s
chief executive officer. A key element of our strategy is establishing and maintaining cooperative relationships with our
physicians. We maintain a physician recruitment program that is designed to attract and retain qualified specialists and other
physicians, in conjunction with our existing physicians and community needs, so that we can broaden the services offered by
our hospitals.

Our hospitals also increase admissions and outpatient business through the implementation of selective marketing
programs. The marketing program for each hospital is directed by the hospital's chief executive officer and is generally tailored
to best suit the particular geographic, demographic and economic characteristics of the hospital's particular market area.

In addition, we pursue various clinical means to increase the utilization of the services provided by our hospitals,
particularly emergency and outpatient services. These include our “Nurse First” emergency service program, which provides
for a well- qualified nurse to quickly assess the condition of patients upon arrival in our emergency rooms; our “ProMed”
program, an emergency room clinical pathway support service; “MedKey™”, a plastic identification and patient information
card that streamlines the registration process; and “One Call Scheduling”, a dedicated phone system that physicians and other

medical personnel can use to schedule various diagnostic tests and services at one time.




Acquire Additional Hospitals

For acquisitions, we generally seek to acquire acute care hospitals in market areas consisting primarily of rural and
non-urban areas of 30,000 to 400,000 people in the southeastern and southwestern United States. Typically, the acute care
hospitals we acquire are, or can become, the provider of choice for health care services in their market areas. When we evaluate
potential acquisitions, we require that a hospital’s market service area have a demonstrated need for the hospital, along with an
established physician base that can benefit from our ability to attract additional, qualified physicians to the area, based on
community needs.

Many of the hospitals we acquire are under-performing at the time of acquisition. Upon acquiring a hospital, we
conduct a thorough review and, where appropriate, retain current administrative leadership. We also take several other steps,
including, among other things, employing a well-qualified chief executive officer, chief financial officer and chief nursing
officer, implementing our proprietary management information system (the PULSE System™) and other technological
enhancements, recruiting physicians, establishing additional quality assessment and efficiency measures, introducing volume
purchasing under company-wide agreements, and spending the necessary capital to renovate facilities and upgrade equipment.
Our PULSE System™ and the other technological enhancements that we implement provide each hospital’s chief executive
officer, chief financial officer, and chief nursing officer with the financial and operational information necessary to operate the
hospital efficiently and effectively. Based on the information gathered, we can also assist physicians in appropriate case
management.

We believe that we operate each hospital we acquire in an efficient manner to improve the services it offers. We strive
to provide at least 90% of the acute care needs of each community our hospitals serve as well as reduce the outmigration of
potential patients to hospitals in larger urban areas. Generally, we have been successful in achieving a significant improvement
in the operating performance of our newly acquired facilities within 12-24 months of acquisition, and seek to recover our cash
investment in four years or less. Once a facility has matured, we generally achieve additional growth through the continued
growth of physicians’ practices and the recruitment of physicians based on community needs, expansion of health care services
offered and favorable demographic trends. K

Provide Quality Health Care

We continually seek to improve the quality of the health care services we deliver with the help of our company-wide
proprietary QSM patient quality management program. Surveyed patient’s are asked to fill out a confidential survey that seeks
their perception of the hospital’s health care services, including medical treatment, nursing care, the hospital’s attention to
patient concerns, the administration process, cleanliness of the facility, and the quality of dietary services. Each hospital
management team utilizes information provided by our QSM program to improve and enhance services. The overall results in
our QSM program for fiscal 2003 indicated that 95% of our inpatients and emergency room patients surveyed and 98% of our
outpatients surveyed rated their experience at one of our hospitals as good or excellent.

We believe that our commitment to quality health care is evidenced by the achievements and accomplishments
awarded to our hospitals by independent companies that rate the quality of health care organizations. During fiscal 2003, such
achievements and accomplishments included the following:

. 22 of our hospitals were surveyed by the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Health Care Organizations
(“JCAHO”). The hospitals that were surveyed in fiscal 2003 received an average grade of 94 out of 100.

. " Charlotte Regional Medical Center in Punta Gorda, Florida, was named, for the fourth time, one of the Top
100 Cardiac Hospitals in America by Solucient, Inc., a provider of independent annual studies that measure
the effectiveness of hospitals’ clinical practices, operations and financial management.

. Williamson Memorial Hospital in Williamson, West Virginia, and Jamestown Regional Medical Center in
Jamestown, Tennessee, were selected as two of the United States’ top performing hospitals according to
Solucient, Inc.’s 100 Top Hospitals.

. Community Hospital of Lancaster in Lancaster, Pennsylvania received its first accreditation by the JCAHO
last year. Prior to our acquisition of the hospital in 1999, it had been operating for more than 50 years without
JCAHO accreditation, and within four years of our acquisition of the facility, it became fully accredited.




o Woman’s Hospital at River Oaks in Flowood, Mississippi received a JCAHO score of 98 out of 100,
reflecting our commitment to delivering high quality women’s health care services.

) East Georgia Regional Medical Center’s Cardiopulmonary Services Unit in Statesboro, Georgia received a
perfect score of 100 from the JCAHO last year and was awarded its Gold Seal of Approval™ for its
outstanding achievement.

Utilize Efficient Management

We consider our management structure to be decentralized. Our hospitals are run by experienced chief executive
officers, chief financial officers and chief nursing officers who have both the authority and responsibility for day-to-day
hospital operations. Incentive compensation programs have been implemented to reward such managers for accomplishing
established goals. We employ a relatively small corporate staff to provide services such as systems design and development,
training, human resource management, reimbursement, technical accounting support, purchasing, risk management and
construction management. We maintain centralized financial control through fiscal and accounting policies established at the
corporate level for use at all of our hospitals. Financial information is consolidated at the corporate level through our
proprietary PULSE System™ and is monitored daily by our management team. We also participate in a group purchasing
organization with other proprietary hospital systems for the purchase of medical equipment and supplies. This participation
allows us to obtain lower costs for medical equipment and supplies by leveraging the buying power of the organization’s
members.

Selected Operating Statistics

The following table sets forth selected operating statistics for our hospitals for the periods and dates indicated.

Year Ended September 30,
2003 2002 2001

Total hospitals owned or leased as of the end of each period............ 47 43 38
Licensed beds as of the end of each period (1) .cco.ovveviviiivrinnnns. 6,479 5,903 5318
AdMISSIONS (2) 1overvreereereieriiierereereree e ersee e e s s saesenaerasee s s ea s eaee 235,434 216,256 187,062
Adjusted admissions (3)......vvviriiiiiiii 373,936 344,155 291,545
SULZETIES (4).eerveerrereeeiereerceisesreeetreseetsereessesssessessesesenssessesessnsnmnsnsens 209,103 203,502 173,528
PALENE AAYS (5):1rermeeererrerereresereesesseressesssssessesesssesesessessesseeeeeess e eeeeenee s 1,079,865 1,000,480 880,624
Acute care average length of stay in days (6)......ccocvcevevevveicnciir e 44 44 4.5
OccUPANCY TALE (7)) oevvirrrreeiirirrereeiereeeseereessaseeiesaesssbesse s s s enanesneesnn 48.5% 47.9% 47.2%
Outpatient Utilization (8) .......cccvvverreierrerriererereireirrsrciesee s e eree e ee e 37.0% 37.2% 35.7%
Earnings margin, before interest , taxes, depreciation, .

23.0% 22.8% 23.0%

and amortization (9).............coiiiiiii
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Licensed beds are beds for which a hospital has obtained approval to operate from the applicable state licensing
agency.

Admissions are patients admitted to our hospitals for inpatient treatment. This statistic is used both by our
management and by investors as a measure of inpatient volume.

Adjusted admissions are total admissions adjusted for outpatient volume. Adjusted admissions are computed by
multiplying admissions (inpatient volume) by the sum of gross inpatient charges and gross outpatient charges and then
dividing the resulting amount by gross inpatient charges. The adjusted admissions computation “equates” outpatient
charges to the volume measure (admissions) used to measure inpatient volume, resulting in a general measure of
combined inpatient and outpatient volume. This statistic is used both by our management and by investors as a
measure of inpatient and outpatient volume.

The number of surgeries includes both inpatient and outpatient surgeries. This statistic is used by our management
and by investors as one component of overall patient volumes and business trends.

Patient days is the number of inpatient days a patient is admitted into a hospital. This statistic is used by our
management and by investors as a measure of inpatient volume.

Represents the average number of days admitted patients stay in our hospitals. This statistic is used by our
management and by investors as a measure of our utilization of resources.

Hospital occupancy rates are affected by many factors, including the population size and general economic conditions
within a market service area, the degree of variation in medical and surgical products, outpatient use of hospital
services, quality and treatment availability at competing hospitals, and seasonality.

Represents outpatient revemue as a percent of total patient service revenue. Total patient service revenue is defined as
revenue from all sources before deducting contractual allowances and discounts from established billing rates.

Our earnings margin, before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, is referred to as EBITDA. EBITDA does
not represent cash flows from operations as defined by generally accepted accounting principles in the United States,
commonly known as GAAP, and should not be considered as an alternative to net income as an indicator of our
operating performance or as an alternative to cash flows as a measure of our liquidity. Nevertheless, we believe that
providing non-GAAP information regarding EBITDA is important for investors, as it provides a measure of liquidity
and performance. The table below reconciles the GAAP information to EBITDA.

Year Ended September 30,
2003 2002 2001
(in thousands)

Net patient SErvice IEVENUE .....c.ocvvvevirivrrrereceecreierenieererereeiesssreens $2,560,576 $2,262,601 $1,879,801

Income before income taxes ..........coviviivviiiiiiiiree s 458,736 405,662 320,951

Add:

INTEIESE, NEL.eiiri ittt eecrrer et et reee s e e s eaees 14,915 15,543 19,970
Depreciation and amortization (8).........ceeccoemivinivcrinccaninnne 114,795 95,328 90,646
EBITDA ..ottt eve sttt oo $ 588,446 $ 516,533 $ 431,567

EBITDA margin = EBITDA/net patient service revenue ........... 23.0% 22.8% 23.0%

(a) Includes writeoff of deferred financing costs for fiscal 2003.




Competition
Existing hospitals

In many of the geographic areas in which we operate, there are other hospitals that provide services comparable to
those offered by our hospitals. Generally, such competition is limited to a single or small number of competitors in each
hospital’s respective market service area. In fact, with respect to the delivery of general acute care services, we believe that
most of our hospitals face less competition in their immediate market service areas than they would likely face in larger
communities. In market service areas where our hospitals do face increased competition, we believe that they distinguish
themselves based on the quality and scope of medical services they provide.

Certain of our competitors may have greater resources than we do, may be better equipped than we are and could offer
a broader range of services than we do. For example, some hospitals that compete with us are owned by governmental agencies
and are supported by tax revenues, and others are owned by not-for-profit corporations and may be supported to a large extent
by endowments and charitable contributions. Such support is not available to our hospitals. In addition, outpatient treatment
and diagnostic facilities, outpatient surgical centers and freestanding ambulatory surgical centers also affect the health care
marketplace.

A majority of our hospitals are located in states that have certificate of need laws. These laws limit competition by
placing regulations on the construction of new hospital or health care facilities, the addition of new beds, or the addition of
significant new services. We believe that such states have higher barriers to entry and, in many instances, permit us to be the
sole or preferred service provider in a geographic area.

The competitive position of our hospitals is also increasingly affected by our ability to negotiate service contracts with
purchasers of group health care services. Such purchasers include employers, preferred provider organizations, or PPOs, and
health maintenance organizations, or HMOs. PPOs and HMOs attempt to direct and control the use of hospital services by
managing care and either receive discounts from a hospital's established charges or pay based on a fixed per diem or a capitated
basis, where hospitals receive fixed periodic payments based on the number of members of the organization regardless of the
actual services provided. To date, HMOs have not affected the competitive position of our hospitals. In addition, employers
and traditional health insurers are increasingly interested in containing costs through negotiations with hospitals for managed
care programs and discounts from established charges. In return, hospitals secure commitments for a larger number of
potential patients. We believe that we have been proactive in establishing or joining such programs to maintain, and even
increase, hospital services. We also believe that we are able to compete effectively in our markets, and do not believe such
programs will have a significant adverse impact on our business or operations.

We are in an industry that has a competitive labor market. We face competition for attracting and retaining health
care professionals. In recent years there has been a nationwide shortage of qualified nurses. In order to address this shortage,
we have been improving hospital working conditions, fostering relationships with local nursing schools, and implementing our
NurseSelect™ internal nursing agency in four of our markets.

Another important factor contributing to a hospital’s competitive advantage is the number and quality of the
physicians on its staff. Physicians make admitting decisions and decisions regarding the appropriate course of a patient’s
treatment which, in turn, affects the revenue of the hospital. Admitting physicians may be on the medical staffs of other
hospitals in addition to those of our hospitals. By offering quality services and facilities, convenient locations, and state-of-the-
art medical equipment, we attempt to attract our physicians’ patients. Our hospitals attempt to increase the number, quality and
different specialties of physicians in their respective communities based on community needs. Often times, in consideration
for a physician relocating to one of our communities and agreeing to engage in private practice, we may advance money to the
physician to provide financial assistance pursuant to a recruiting agreement for the physician to establish a practice. The
amounts advanced are dependent upon the financial results of each physician’s practice during a certain period (the “guarantee
period”) which generally does not exceed twelve months. The net amounts advanced under these recruiting agreements at the
end of the physician’s guarantee period are considered loans and are generally forgiven prorata over a 36 month period
contingent upon the physician continuing to practice in the respective community.




Acquisitions

We face competition for the acquisition of hospitals from both proprietary and not-for-profit multi-hospital groups.
Some of these competitors may have greater financial and other resources than we do. Historically, we have been able to
acquire hospitals at prices we believe to be reasonable. However, increased competition for the acquisition of non-urban acute
care hospitals could have an adverse impact on our ability to acquire additional hospitals on favorable terms.

Sources of Revenue

We record gross patient service charges on a patient-by-patient basis in the period in which services are rendered and
patient accounts are billed after the patient is discharged. When a patient’s account is billed, our accounting system calculates
the reimbursement we expect to receive based on the type of payor and the contractual terms of such payor. We record the
difference between gross patient service charges and expected reimbursement as a contractual adjustment.

At the end of each month, we estimate expected reimbursement for all unbilled accounts. Estimated reimbursement
amounts are made on a payor-specific basis and are recorded based on the best information we believe is available to us at the
time regarding applicable laws, rules, regulations, and contract terms. We continually review our contractual adjustment
estimation process to consider and incorporate updates to laws, rules and regulations as well as changes to managed care
contract terms that result from renegotiations and renewals.

We receive payment for services rendered to patients from:
e the federal government under the Medicare program;
s each of the states in which our hospitals are located under the Medicaid program;
e commercial insurance; and

e  private insurers and patients.

Co-payments and deductibles are a portion of the patient’s bill that many private and governmental payors require the
patient to pay for their medical services. Co-payment and deductible amounts vary among payors and are based upon the
provisions of the plan in which the patient participates. We do not track and segregate the percentages of co-payments or
deductibles we collect at the time of service, nor do we separately track the subsequent collections of these amounts as a
percentage of net revenue. Co-payments and deductibles are subject to the same collection practices as any patient accounts
receivable.

Our policy is to verify insurance coverage prior to rendering service in order to facilitate timely identification of payor
and benefits covered. However, adherence to this policy is not required when the necessity of service and patient condition
(i.e., emergency room services, active labor and other like situations) are present. These conditions preclude the verification of
coverage. We do not quantify the percentage of encounters where coverage is not verified prior to service being rendered.
Substantially all aspects of our billing system are computerized via our proprietary PULSE System™

The following table sets forth the approximate percentage of net patient service revenue, defined as revenue from all
sources after deducting contractual allowances and discounts from established billing rates, which we derive from the various
sources of payment for the periods indicated:

Year Ended September 30,

2003 2002 2001

MEAICATE .....ooveciiecie et ree e bbb e 35% 38% 38%
MedICAIA .ooviiieiee ettt e 9 9 8
Commercial INSUTANCE. ......c.eivvveiiiieerree e ser st aee s eas 47 45 46
Private and other SOUICES ..........coeviviemieviivie e e _9 _8 _8

TOAL oo 100% 100% 100%




Hospital revenues depend upon inpatient occupancy levels, the extent to which ancillary services and therapy
programs are ordered by physicians and provided to patients, and the volume of outpatient procedures. Reimbursement rates
for routine inpatient services vary significantly depending on the type of service (e.g., acute care, intensive care or psychiatric)
and the geographic location of the hospital. The percentage of patient revenues attributable to outpatient services has generally
increased in recent years, primarily as a result of advances in medical technology that allow more services to be provided on an
outpatient basis as well as from increased pressures from Medicare, Medicaid and private insurers to reduce hospital stays and
provide services, where possible, on a less expensive outpatient basis. We believe that our experience with respect to increased
outpatient levels mirrors the general trend occurring in the health care industry.

Medicare and Medicaid

Medicare is a federal health insurance program, administered by the United States Department of Health and Human
Services, that provides hospital and other medical benefits to individuals age 65 and over, to certain disabled persons, and to
individuals with end-stage renal disease. Medicaid is a joint federal-state health care benefit program, operating pursuant to a
state plan administered by each participating state and subject to broadly defined federal requirements, that provides hospital
and other medical benefits to individuals who are unable to afford health care services. Our hospitals derive a substantial
portion of their net revenues from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Both programs are heavily regulated and subject to
frequent changes that typically limit increases in the payments to participating hospitals.

The Medicare program provides payment for inpatient and outpatient hospital services under a prospective payment
system, or PPS. Under the inpatient PPS system, hospitals are paid a prospectively determined fixed amount for each hospital
discharge. The fixed payment amount per inpatient discharge is established based upon each patient’s diagnosis related group,
or DRG. Each patient admitted for care is assigned to a DRG based upon his or her primary admitting diagnosis. Every DRG
is assigned a payment rate based upon the estimated intensity of hospital resources necessary to treat the average patient with
that particular diagnosis. The DRG payment rates are based upon national average costs from an historic base period and do
not consider the actual costs incurred by a hospital in providing care. Although based upon national average costs, the DRG
and capital payment rates are adjusted by the predetermined geographic adjustment factor for the geographic region in which a
particular hospital is located and are weighted based upon a statistically normal distribution of severity. DRG rates are usually
adjusted by an update factor each federal fiscal year, which begins on October 1. For federal fiscal years 2003 and 2002, the
update factors were 2.95% and 2.75%, respectively. For federal fiscal year 2004, the update factor is 3.4%.

Medicare’s outpatient PPS groups services are clinically related and use similar resources into Ambulatory Payment
Classifications, or APCs. Depending on the service rendered during an encounter, a patient may be assigned to a single or
multiple group. Medicare pays a set price or rate for each group, regardless of the costs incurred in providing care. Medicare
sets the payment rate for each APC based on historical median cost data, subject to geographic modification. The APC
payment rates are updated each year. For federal fiscal years 2003 and 2002, the payment rate update factors were 2.3% and
3.5%, respectively. For federal fiscal year 2004, the update factor is 3.4%.

Changes in government reimbursement programs have resulted in limitations on the growth rates of the
reimbursement programs and, in some cases, in reduced levels of reimbursement for health care services and we anticipate that
additional changes in government reimbursement programs will occur. The Balanced Budget Act of 1997 included significant
reductions in spending levels for the Medicare and Medicaid programs, including:

. changes in reimbursement for hospital services; and

. repeal of the federal payment standard, which is often referred to as the “Boren Amendment” for hospitals
and nursing facilities, which resulted in lower Medicaid reimbursement rates.

The Balanced Budget Refinement Act of 1999 reduced the adverse effects of the Balanced Budget Act of 1997
through a “corridor reimbursement approach”, where a percentage of losses under the Medicare outpatient prospective payment
system will be reimbursed through December 31, 2003. Some of our acute care hospitals qualify for relief under this
provision.




On December 21, 2000, the Medicare, Medicaid and SCHIP (State Children's Health Insurance Program) Benefits
Improvement Act of 2000, known as BIPA, was enacted. BIPA made a number of changes to Medicare and Medicaid affecting
payments to hospitals. All of our acute care hospitals qualify for some relief under BIPA. Some of the changes made by BIPA
that affect our hospitals include:

o the lowering of the threshold by which hospitals qualify as rural or small urban disproportionate share
hospitals;

e a decrease in reductions in payments to disproportionate share hospitals that had been mandated by the
Balanced Budget Act of 1997 and other Congressional enactments;

e  anincrease in inpatient payments to hospitals;

e anincrease in certain Medicare payments to certain psychiatric hospitals and units;
¢ anincrease in Medicare reimbursement for bad debt;

e capping Medicare beneficiary ambulatory service co-payment amounts; and

e anincrease in the categories and items eligible for increased reimbursement to hospitals for certain outpatient
services rendered on and after April 1, 2001 (which increase includes such items as current cancer therapy
drugs, biologicals, and certain medical devices).

The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act of 2003, or the 2003 Act, which was signed
into law on December 8, 2003 made a number of significant changes to the Medicare program. In addition to a highly
publicized prescription drug benefit that will provide direct relief to Medicare beneficiaries, the 2003 Act provides a number of
direct benefits to hospitals including, but not limited to: a provision for an update factor for federal fiscal year 2004 that is the
full market basket; a permanent increase in the base payment rate for rural and small urban hospitals by 1.6% up to the large
urban payment rate; the cap on disproportionate share payments for rural and small urban hospitals, as of April 1, 2004, is
increased to 12.0% of total inpatient payments; extension until January 1, 2006 of the hold harmless provisions for small rural
hospitals and sole community hospitals under the OPD (Outpatient Department) reform provisions; and establishment of a
physician incentive program for primary care and certain specialty physicians who provide services to individuals in areas
having the fewest physicians available to serve Medicare beneficiaries, among others. In addition, for federal fiscal years
2005, 2006, and 2007, hospitals will receive full market basket updates if they provide the Center for Medicare and Medicaid
Services with specific quality data relating to the quality of services provided. We intend to comply with this requirement. We
believe that the 2003 Act will have a positive impact on our financial operations.

In addition to the DRG and capital payments, our hospitals may qualify for and receive “outlier” payments. Outlier
payments are made for those inpatient discharges where the total cost of care (as determined by using the gross charges
adjusted by the hospital’s cost-to-charge ratio) exceeds the total DRG payment plus a fixed threshold amount. In determining
the cost-to-charge ratio, Medicare uses the latest of either a hospital’s most recently submitted or most recently settled cost
report. The threshold amount used in the outlier computation for federal fiscal years 2003 and 2002 was $33,560 and $21,025,
respectively. The amount for federal fiscal year 2004 is $31,000. Approximately 3.8% of our Medicare inpatient payments
were from outliers in fiscal 2003. :

Medicare fiscal intermediaries have been given specific criteria for identifying hospitals that may have received
inappropriately high outlier payments. The intermediaries are authorized to recover overpayments, including interest, if the
actual cost of the DRG stay (which was reflected in the settled cost report) was less than claimed, or if there were indications of
abuse. In order to avoid overpayment or underpayment of outlier cases, hospitals may request changes to their cost-to-charge
ratio in much the same way that an individual taxpayer can adjust the amount of withholding from income.




Each state is responsible for administering its own Medicaid program and payment rates and methodologies as well as
covered services vary from state to state. Approximately 50% of Medicaid funding comes from the federal government, with
the balance shared by state and local governments. The most common payment methodologies include prospective payment
systems and programs that negotiate payment rates with individual hospitals. Generally, Medicaid payments are less than
Medicare payments and are often less than a hospital's cost of services. In 1991 Congress passed legislation limiting the states'
use of provider-specific taxes, donated funds to bolster the states’ share and obtained increased federal Medicaid matching
funds. Certain states in which we operate adopted broad-based provider taxes to fund their Medicaid programs in response to
the 1991 legislation.

Hospitals that have an unusually large number of low-income patients (i.e. those with a Medicaid utilization rate of at
least one standard deviation above the mean Medicaid utilization, or having a low income patient utilization rate exceeding
25%) are eligible to receive a disproportionate share adjustment. Congress has also established a national limit on
disproportionate share hospital adjustments. Although this legislation and the resulting state broad-based provider taxes have
affected the payments we receive under the Medicaid program, to date the net impact has not materially adversely affected us.

Given increasing budget deficits, the federal government and many states are currently considering additional ways in
which to limit increases in levels of Medicaid funding, which could also adversely affect future levels of Medicaid payments
received by our hospitals. In addition, the uncertainty and fiscal pressures placed upon the federal government as a result of,
among other things, the ongoing military engagement in Iraq, the War on Terrorism, economic recovery stimulus packages, or
the deficit in general may affect the availability of federal funds to provide additional relief in the future.

Because we cannot predict what action the federal government or the states will eventually take under existing and
future legislation, we are unable to assess the effect any such legislation might have on our business. Like Medicare funding,
Medicaid funding may also be affected by health care reform legislation, and it is impossible to predict the effect future
legislation could have on our business.

In addition to statutory changes, the Medicare and each of the Medicaid programs are subject to regulatory changes,
administrative rulings, interpretations and determinations, requirements for utilization review and new governmental funding
restrictions, all of which may materially increase or decrease program payments as well as affect the cost of providing services
and the timing of payments to our facilities. The final determination of amounts we earn under Medicare and Medicaid often
takes many years, because of audits by the program representatives, providers' rights of appeal and the application of numerous
technical reimbursement provisions. We believe that we have made adequate provisions for such adjustments. Nevertheless,
until final adjustments are made, certain issues remain unresolved and previously determined allowances could become either
inadequate or more than ultimately required.

We expect that efforts to impose reduced reimbursements, greater discounts and more stringent cost controls by
government and other payors will continue and believe that if additional reductions in the payments we receive for our services
occur, our overall revenues will be affected.

Commercial Insurance

Our hospitals also provide services to individuals covered by private health care insurance. Private insurance carriers
typically reimburse the hospital directly after the claim is filed, however, reimbursement can be sent directly to the patient
based on the stipulations outlined in the said policy. Reimbursement from private insurance carriers is often based on
negotiated rates such as prospective payment systems, per diems, or other discounted fee schedules. Private insurance
reimbursement varies among payers and states and is based on the negotiated contract between the hospital and payer.

In recent years, a number of commercial insurers have undertaken efforts to limit the costs of hospital services by
adopting prospective payment or DRG-based systems. To the extent such efforts are successful, and to the extent that the
insurers' systems fail to reimburse hospitals for the costs of providing services to their beneficiaries, such efforts may have a
negative impact on the results of operations of our hospitals.
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Private Pay and Other Sources

Our hospitals provide services to individuals that do not present any form of health care coverage. Due to the absence
of health care coverage, charges are not subject to prospective payment systems, per diem systems, or other discounted fee
systems which provide for discounts and adjustments. Such patients are evaluated, at the time of service or shortly thereafter,
for their ability to pay based upon federal and state poverty guidelines, qualifications for Medicaid or other state assistance
programs, as well as our local hospital’s policy for indigent care. Patients without health care coverage who do not qualify for
Medicaid or indigent care writeoffs are offered substantial discounts in efforts to settle their outstanding account balance.

In addition, our hospitals provide health care services to individuals covered under workers compensation programs,
CHAMPUS (for retired military personnel), and other private and governmental programs. These programs pay under
prospective payment systems, per-diem systems, or other discounted fee systems.

Regulation and Other Factors

Companies such as ours that compete in the health care industry are required to comply with many laws, rules and
regulations at federal, state and local government levels. These laws, rules and regulations require health care facilities to meet
various requirements, including, but not limited to, those relating to the adequacy of medical care, billing for services,
equipment, personnel, operating policies and procedures, maintenance of adequate records, compliance with building codes,
and environmental protection. In addition, federal and state laws, rules and regulations that govern the health care industry are
extremely complex and the industry often does not have the benefit of adequate regulatory or judicial interpretation of many
such laws, rules or regulations.

Health care, as one of the largest industries in the United States, continues to attract much legislative interest and
public attention. In recent years, an increasing number of legislative initiatives have been introduced or proposed in Congress
and in state legislatures that would affect the health care industry. We cannot predict whether any significant legislative
initiatives or proposals will be adopted or, if adopted, whether they will have an adverse effect on our business. In addition, in
recent years, significant media and public attention has been focused on the health care industry as a result of investigations
related to certain referral, cost reporting and billing practices, laboratory and home health care services and physician
ownership of joint ventures involving hospitals. Both federal and state government agencies have announced heightened and
coordinated civil and criminal enforcement efforts. Furthermore, the Office of the Inspector General of the United States
Department of Health and Human Services and the United States Department of Justice have from time to time established
enforcement initiatives that focus on specific billing practices or other suspected areas of fraud and abuse.

Although we believe that we are in material compliance with all such laws, rules and regulations, if we fail to comply
with applicable laws, rules or regulations, we could suffer civil and criminal penalties, including the loss of our licenses to
operate facilities and our ability to participate in Medicare, Medicaid, and other federal and state health care programs.

Licensure, Certification and Accreditation

Health care facility construction and operation is subject to federal, state and local regulation relating to, among other
things, the adequacy of medical care, equipment, personnel, operating policies and procedures, fire prevention, rate-setting and
compliance with building codes and environmental protection laws. Facilities are subject to periodic inspection by
governmental and other authorities to assure continued compliance with the various standards necessary for licensing and
accreditation. Our health care facilities are accredited, meaning that they are properly licensed under appropriate state laws, and
that they are certified under the Medicare program and accredited by the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Health Care
Organizations or the American Osteopathic Association. We believe that all of our health care facilities are in material
compliance with all other applicable federal, state, local and independent review body regulations and standards. The effect of
maintaining accredited facilities is to permit such facilities to participate in Medicare and Medicaid. Should any health care
facility of ours cease to be accredited, and therefore lose certification under Medicare or Medicaid, such facility would be
unable to receive reimbursement from either of these programs. The requirements for licensure, certification and accreditation
are subject to change and, in order for all of our facilities to remain accredited, it may be necessary for us to effect changes in
our facilities, equipment, personnel and services.
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Utilization Review

In order to ensure efficient utilization of facilities and services, federal regulations require that admissions to, and the
utilization of, health care facilities by Medicare and Medicaid patients be reviewed by a federally funded peer review
organization, or PRO. Pursuant to federal law, PROs must review, where appropriate, the need for hospitalization and the
utilization of services, the denial of admission of a patient or the denial of payment for services provided. Each of our facilities
has contracted with a PRO and has a quality assurance program that provides for retrospective patient care evaluation and
utilization review.

Certificates of Need

The construction of new facilities, the acquisition of existing facilities, and the addition of new beds or services at
existing facilities may be reviewed by state regulatory agencies under certificate of need laws or related laws. Except for
Arkansas, Oklahoma, Pennsylvania, and Texas, all of the states in which our health care facilities are located have certificate of
need or equivalent laws. These laws generally require appropriate state agency determination of public need and approval prior
to beds or significant services being added to a hospital, or a related capital amount being spent. Failure to obtain necessary
state approval could result in our inability to complete a particular proposed hospital acquisition, the imposition of civil or, in
some cases, criminal sanctions, our inability to receive Medicare or Medicaid reimbursement and the revocation of a facility's
license.

State Hospital Rate-Setting Activity

We currently operate a facility in West Virginia. The West Virginia Health Care Authority requires that requests for
increases to hospital charges be submitted annually. Requests for rate increases are reviewed by the West Virginia Health Care
Authority and are either approved at the amount requested, approved for lower amounts than requested, or are rejected. As a
result, in West Virginia, our ability to increase our rates to compensate for increased costs per admission is limited and the
operating margins our hospital located in West Virginia may be adversely affected if we are not able to increase our rates as
our expenses increase. We can provide no assurance that other states in which we operate hospitals will not enact similar rate-
setting laws.

Anti-kickback and Self-Referral Regulation

The health care industry is subject to many laws, rules and regulations designed to deter and prevent practices deemed
by the government to be fraudulent or abusive. In particular, the Medicare and Medicaid anti-kickback statute (codified under
the Social Security Act) prohibits certain business practices and relationships that might affect the provision and cost of health
care services reimbursable under Medicare and Medicaid, such as payment or receipt of remuneration in exchange for the
referral of patients whose care will be paid for by Medicare, Medicaid or other government programs. Sanctions for violating
the anti-kickback amendments include criminal penalties and civil sanctions, such as fines and possible exclusion from
Medicare and Medicaid.

The United States Department of Health and Human Services has issued regulations, known as “safe harbors,” that
describe conduct and business relationships that will be protected from prosecution even though they may violate the anti-
kickback statute. The fact that a given business arrangement does not fall within a safe harbor does not automatically render
the arrangement illegal. However, business arrangements of health care service providers that fail to clearly satisfy the
applicable safe harbor criteria are subject to increased scrutiny by enforcement authorities

In addition, the Social Security Act contains the Federal Self-Referral Statute, more commonly known as the “Stark
Law”. The Stark Law prohibits physicians from referring patients to certain entities for which payment may be made, in whole
or in part, by Medicare if the physician or an immediate family member has an ownership or other financial relationships with
that entity. Many states have adopted or are considering similar legislative proposals, some of which extend beyond the
Medicaid program to prohibit the payment or receipt of remuneration for the referral of patients and physician self-referrals
regardless of the source of the payment for the care. Our participation in and development of joint ventures and other financial
relationships with physicians could be adversely affected by these laws and similar state enactments. We systematically review
all of our operations on an ongoing basis and believe that we are in compliance with the Social Security Act and similar state
statutes. [n addition, we maintain a company-wide compliance program in order to monitor and promote continuing
compliance with these and other statutory prohibitions and requirements. See “Compliance Program and Ethics Program” for
further discussion.
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HIPAA

The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, known as HIPAA, among other things, mandates
the adoption of security and integrity standards related to patient information. These standards include requirements regarding
the handling and exchange of electronic health information and mandates requiring the implementation of new security
measures regarding patient information. HIPAA also sets standards for electronic signatures and standardizes the method for
identifying providers, employers, health plans and patients. HIPAA has significantly changed the manner in which hospitals
communicate with payors and other health care providers.

Final rules implementing the security and integrity portions of HIPAA were adopted on February 20, 2003 with a
mandatory implementation date of April 20, 2005, at which time all of our facilities must comply with the security and
integrity rules and requirements. We believe that we are in compliance with final rules implementing the privacy portions of
HIPAA, which became effective for us April 14, 2003, The privacy rules give patients greater access to their own medical
records and more control over how their personal health information is used and disclosed as well as address the obligations of
health care providers to protect health information. Implementation of HIPAA is significant and the cost of continued
compliance with HIPAA will be significant. In addition, HIPAA contains criminal and civil penalties for violators and
expands the reach of existing fraud and abuse laws to cover private as well as governmental health insurance programs.

Conversion Legislation

Many states have enacted or from time to time consider enactment of laws that affect the conversion or sale of not-
for-profit hospitals. These laws generally require prior approval from state attorney’s general, advance notification and
community involvement. In addition, state attorney’s general in states without specific conversion legislation may exercise
authority over such transactions based upon existing law. We believe that states are showing an increased interest in overseeing
the sales or conversions of not-for-profit hospitals. The adoption of conversion legislation and the increased review of not-for-
profit hospital conversions may make it more difficult for us to acquire not-for-profit hospitals, or could increase our
acquisition costs.

Environmental Regulation

Our health care operations generate medical waste that must be disposed of in compliance with federal, state and local
environmental laws, rules and regulations. Our operations, as well as our purchases and sales of health care facilities, are also
subject to compliance with various other environmental laws, rules and regulations. Such compliance costs are not significant
and we do not anticipate that such compliance costs will be significant in the future.

Compliance Program and Ethics Program

In 1997, we implemented a corporate compliance program to supplement and enhance our then existing corporate
ethics program. Our corporate compliance program, which includes our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, covers our
employees, officers (including our chief executive officer, chief financial officer, and persons performing similar functions)
and directors. Our corporate compliance program contains standards designed, among other things, to promote honest and
ethical conduct and compliance with all the applicable laws, rules and regulations. As part of this program, we provide ethics
and compliance training to each of our employees, officers, and directors. The program also requires the reporting, without
fear of retaliation, of any suspected illegal or ethical violation. Our corporate compliance program is updated by us from time
to time to comply with applicable laws, rules and regulations. Most recently, we updated our Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics and Corporate Governance Guidelines to comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and recently adopted New York
Stock Exchange rules. '
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Employees and Medical Staff

As of September 30, 2003, we had approximately 24,000 full-time and part-time employees, approximately 1,300 of
whom were covered by six collective bargaining agreements. Our corporate office staff consisted of approximately 100 people
at that date. We believe that our relations with employees are satisfactory.

In general, although our medical staff consists of physicians with certain services and specialities, the staff physicians
at our hospitals are not our employees. Such physicians may also be staff members of other hospitals. Nevertheless, we do
employ approximately 165 physicians, approximately one-half of whom are primary care physicians located at clinics we own
and operate. In addition, our hospitals provide emergency room, radiology, pathology and anesthesiology services by entering
into service contracts with physician groups, which contracts are generally cancelable on 90 days notice.

Liability Insurance

As is typical in the health care industry, we are subject to claims and legal actions by patients in the ordinary course of
business. The health care industry has seen a significant increase in malpractice insurance expense due to unfavorable pricing
and a decreasing number of insurers in the professional liability markets. We expect that this trend will continue.

In response to such unfavorable pricing and a decreasing number of insurers, on October 1, 2002, we formed a
wholly-owned insurance subsidiary to self-insure a substantial portion of our professional and general liability risk. This
captive subsidiary reinsures risk up to $1.0 million per claim and $3.0 million in the aggregate per hospital and also acts as an
excess insurer for all of our hospitals in combination with three commercial insurance companies.

In addition to the reserves recorded by our captive insurance subsidiary, we maintain reserves for our self-insured
professional liability risks. We determine these accruals using asserted and unasserted claims identified by our incident
reporting system and actuarially-determined estimates based on both our and industry historical loss payment patterns and have
discounted such accruals to their present value using a discount rate of 4.5%. Although the ultimate settlement of these
accruals may vary from our estimates, we believe that the amounts provided in our consolidated financial statements are
adequate. If actual payments of claims exceed our projected estimates of claims, our insurance accruals could be materially
adversely affected.

We also maintain directors and officers, property and other typical insurance coverages with commercial carriers
subject to certain self-insurance retention levels. We believe that our insurance is adequate in amount and coverage. However,
in the future, insurance may not be available at reasonable prices or we may have to increase our levels of self-insurance.

Available Information

We maintain an internet website located at www.hma-corp.com. On our website we make available, free of charge,
our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and any amendments to
those reports filed with or furnished to the SEC. We make this information available as soon as reasonably practicable after we
electronically file such material with, or furnish such information to, the SEC. Our SEC reports can be accessed through the
Investor Relations section of our website. The other information found on our website is not part of this or any other report we
file with or furnish to the SEC.

Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and Corporate Governance Guidelines is posted on our website under the
heading “Investor Relations™.
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Item 2. Properties

Our acute care hospitals offer a broad range of medical and surgical services, including general surgery, internal
medicine, obstetrics, emergency room care, radiology, oncology, diagnostic care, coronary care, pediatric services, behavioral
health services and psychiatric care and, in several of our hospitals, specialized services such as open-heart surgery and neuro-
surgery. We also provide outpatient services such as one-day surgery, laboratory, x-ray, respiratory therapy, cardiology and
physical therapy. Some of our hospitals provide specialty services such as oncology, radiation therapy, CT scanning, MRI
imaging, lithotripsy and full-service obstetrics.

The following table presents certain information with respect to our facilities as of September 30, 2003. For more
information regarding the utilization of our facilities, see Item 1 “Business - Selected Operating Statistics”.

Licensed  Operational

State Facility ‘ City Beds Status Date Acquired
Alabama Riverview Regional Medical Center Gadsden 281 Owned July 1991
Stringfellow Memorial Hospital Anniston 125 Managed January 1997

Arkansas Crawford Memorial Hospital Van Buren 103 Leased May 1987
Southwest Regional Medical Center Littie Rock 125 Owned November 1997

Florida Highlands Regional Medical Center Sebring 126 Leased August 1985
Fishermen's Hospital Marathon 58 Leased August 1986

University Behavioral Center Orlando 80 Owned January 1989

SandyPines Tequesta 74 Owned January 1990

Heart of Florida Regional Medical Center Greater Haines City 115 Owned August 1993

Sebastian River Medical Center Sebastian 129 Owned September 1993

Charlotte Regional Medical Center Punta Gorda 156 Owned December 1994

Riverside Behavioral Center Punta Gorda 52 Owned December 1994

Brooksville Regional Hospital Brooksville 91 Leased June 1998

Spring Hill Regional Hospital Spring Hill 75 Leased June 1998

Lower Keys Medical Center Key West 167 Leased May 1999

Pasco Regional Medical Center Dade City 120 Owned September 2000

Lehigh Regional Medical Center Lehigh Acres 88 Owned December 2001

Santa Rosa Medical Center Milton 129 Owned January 2002

Georgia East Georgia Regional Medical Center Statesboro 150 Owned October 1995
Walton Regional Medical Center Monroe 135 Owned September 2003

Kentucky Paul B. Hall Regional Medical Center Paintsville 72 ‘Owned January 1979
Mississippi Bi]oxi Regional Medical Center Biloxi 153 Leased September 1986
Natchez Community Hospital Natchez 101 Owned September 1993

Nonh\yest Mississippi Regional Clarksdale 195 Leased January 1996

Medical Center

Rankin Medical Center Brandon 134 Leased January 1997

Riley Hospital Meridian 180 Owned January 1998

River Oaks Hospital Flowood 110 Owned January 1998

Woman'’s Hospital at River Oaks Flowood 111 Owned January 1998

Central Mississippi Medical Center Jackson 473 Leased April 1999

Madison Regional Medical Center Canton 67 Leased Januvary 2003
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Licensed  Operational
State Facility City Beds Status Date Acquired
North Carolina Franklin Regional Medical Center Louisburg 85 Owned August 1986
Lake Norman Regional Medical Center Mooresville 105 Owned January 1986
Sandhills Regional Medical Center Hamlet 64 Owned August 1987
Davis Regional Medical Center Statesville 149 Owned October 2000
Oklahoma Medical Center of Southeastern Oklahoma Durant 120 Owned May 1987
Midwest Regional Medical Center Midwest City 247 Leased June 1996
Pennsylvania Community Hospital of Lancaster Lancaster 154 Owned July 1999
Lancaster Regional Medical Center Lancaster 261 Owned July 2000
Carlisle Regional Medical Center Carlisle 200 Leased June 2001
South Carolina Upstate Carolina Medical Center Gaffney 125 Owned March 1988
Carolina Pines Regional Medical Center Hartsville 116 Owned September 1995
Tennessee Jamestown Regional Medical Center Jamestown 85 Owned January 2002
Texas Medical Center of Mesquite Mesquite 176 Owned January 2002
Mesquite Community Hospital Mesquite 172 Owned May 2002
Virginia Lee Regional Medical Center Pennington Gap 80 Owned September 2001
Washington Yakima Regional Medical & Heart Center Yakima 226 Owned August 2003
Toppenish Community Hospital Toppenish 63 Owned August 2003
West Virginia Williamson Memorial Hospital Williamson 76 Owned June 1979
Total licensed beds
owned, leased, or
managed at
September 30, 2003 6,479

As indicated in the above table, we currently lease certain facilities pursuant to long-term leases which provide us with
the exclusive right to use and control each respective hospital’s operations. The facilities we lease and the year of lease expiration
are as follows: Highlands Regional Medical Center (2025), Fishermen's Hospital (2011), Biloxi Regional Medical Center (2040),
Crawford Memorial Hospital (2027), Northwest Mississippi Regional Medical Center (2025), Midwest Regional Medical Center
(2026}, Rankin Medical Center (2026), Brooksville Regional Hospital/Spring Hill Regional Hospital (2028 provided however this
lease will be extended by ten (10) years upon completion of a replacement hospital in Brooksville), Central Mississippi Medical
Center (2040), Lower Keys Medical Center (2029), Carlisle Regional Medical Center (2006 — this lease can be extended until our
replacement facility is completed), and Madison Regional Medical Center (2042).

Our corporate headquarters are located in an office building complex in Naples, Florida, which we purchased during
our fiscal year ended September 30, 2002. We use approximately 20% of the complex and lease the remaining space. We

have an outside property management company that manages this complex on our behalf.’

We believe that all of our facilities are suitable and adequate for our needs. Certain of our hospitals are subject to
mortgages securing various borrowings. See Note 3.c. of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8.

16




Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are subject to claims and legal actions by patients and others in the ordinary course of business. We believe that
all such claims and actions are either adequately covered by insurance or are unlikely, individually or in the aggregate, to have
a material adverse effect on our financial condition. See “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates - Professional Liability
Insurance Claims” in Item 7.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003.

Executive Officers of the Registrant
Below is information regarding our executive officers:

William J. Schoen, age 68, has served as our Chairman of the Board since April 1986. He joined our Board of
Directors in February 1983, became our President and Chief Operating Officer in December 1983, Co-Chief Executive Officer
in December 1985 and Chief Executive Officer in April 1986. He served as our President until April 1997 and Chief Executive
Officer until January 2001. From 1982 to 1987, Mr. Schoen was Chairman of Commerce National Bank, Naples, Florida, and
from 1973 to 1981 he was President, Chief Operating Officer and Chief Executive Officer of The F&M Schaefer Corporation,
a consumer products company. From 1971 to 1973, Mr. Schoen was President of the Pierce Glass subsidiary of Indian Head,
Inc., a diversified company.

Joseph V. Vumbacco, age 58, became our Chief Executive Officer in January 2001. Prior to that and since April
1997, he has been our President, and has also served as our Chief Administrative Officer and Chief Operating Officer. He
joined us as an Executive Vice President in January 1996 after 14 years with The Turner Corporation (construction and real
estate), most recently as an Executive Vice President. Prior to joining Turner, he served as the Senior Vice President and
General Counsel for The F&M Schaefer Corporation, and previously was an attorney with the Manhattan law firm of Mudge,
Rose, Guthrie & Alexander. Mr. Vumbacco joined our Board of Directors in May 2001.

Robert E. Farnham, age 48, became our Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer in March 2001. He joined
us in 1985 and most recently served as our Senior Vice President and Controller. Prior to joining us, Mr. Farnham, who is a
C.P.A., was employed by the accounting firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, formerly known as Coopers & Lybrand LLP.

Timothy R. Parry, age 49, is our Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary. He joined us in
February 1996 as a Divisional Vice President and Assistant General Counsel after 12 years with the law firm of Harter, Secrest
& Emery LLP, the last seven years as a partner. He became our General Counsel in 1997. Prior to joining Harter, Secrest &
Emery LLP, he was an Assistant Ohio Attorney General for two years and before that a law clerk for the United States District
Court for the Southern District of Ohio.

Peter M. Lawson, age 41, became one of our Executive Vice Presidents-Hospital Operations in January 2003. He
previously and since January 2000 served as a Senior Vice President, overseeing our regional hospitals in the Midwest. Prior
to that, Mr. Lawson was a Divisional Vice President-Operations and served as Executive Director of our 255-bed Midwest
Regional Hospital in Midwest City, Oklahoma. Before joining us, Mr. Lawson worked with several proprietary health care
companies. In 1995, Mr. Lawson received the Modern Healthcare "Up and Comer" Award.

Jon P. Vollmer, age 45, became one of our Executive Vice Presidents-Hospital Operations in January 2003. He
previously and since January 2000 served as a Senior Vice President, overseeing our regional hospitals in the Southeast. Prior
to that, Mr. Vollmer was a Divisional Vice President-Operations, having joined us in 1991 as the Executive Director of our
281-bed Riverview Regional Medical Center in Gadsden, Alabama. Prior to joining us, Mr. Vollmer worked with several
proprietary health care companies.
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PART 11

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “HMA”. At December 16, 2003
there were approximately 242,786,806 shares of our common stock outstanding held by approximately 1,500 record holders.
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sale prices per share of our common stock on the

New York Stock Exchange:

High
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002
First QUATET ..c.oovveveviiernicree et et $21.00
Second QUATET ........ccvvvvvrmrererenierorersvceeeeninees s $21.00
Third QUATET .....cvcveeereiereeiceeerr e s oo $22.99
Fourth QUarter ........ccocvevvnereeienmnnnsssinin e e e $20.75
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2003
First QUarter ........ccoecveencvivinescnnevaneernecnennens $22.70
Second QUATTET .......cocveeveiioeere et $19.41
Third QUATLEr ......cccvvvvereeceeeec e een s $ 20.10
Fourth QUarter ..........ccceeveeecieereiernreeereee e $22.89

On October 29, 2002, we initiated a quarterly cash dividend policy. We declared cash dividends of $0.02 per share on
our common stock on each of October 29, 2002, January 28, 2003, April 29, 2003, July 29, 2003, and October 28, 2003. We
can provide no assurance that we will pay cash dividends for any future period or that our cash dividends will remain constant.

At September 30, 2003 and 2002, we had approximately 10.6 million shares of our common stock reserved for future
issuance upon the conversion of our Zero-Coupon Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2022 and approximately 21.0
million shares of our common stock reserved for future issuance upon conversion of our 1.50% Senior Subordinated

Low

§17.44
$17.00
$19.50
$16.24

$16.50
$15.89
$16.51
$17.39

Convertible Debentures due 2023. See Note 3.b. to our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8.

Plan category
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders....

Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders....

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities
to be issued
upon exercise of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Number of securities
remaining available for future
issuance under equity
compensation plans (excluding
securities reflected in column (a))

(a) (b)
19,955,000 $13.89
19,955,000 $13.89
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table summarizes certain of our selected financial data and should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes in Item 8.

HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Net patient service revenue

Costs and expenses(1)

Income before income taxes(2)

Net income(2)

Net income per share-diluted(2)

Weighted average number of
shares outstanding-diluted

Cash dividends per common share

Working capital

Total assets

Short-term debt

Long-term debt

Stockholders' equity

Book value per common share

Year Ended September 30,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
$ 2,560,576 $ 2,262,601 $ 1,879,801 $ 1,577,767 $ 1,355,707
2,101,840 1,856,939 1,558,850 1,301,772 1,109,054
458,736 405,662 320,951 275,995 246,653
283,424 246,436 194,978 167,667 149,845
$ 1.13 $ 0.97 $ 076 $ 0.68 b 0.59
255,884 260,641 264,351 247,277 255,067
$ 0.08 - - - -

As of September 30,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
$ 820,373 $ 422,043 $ 377,144 § 317,181 $ 250,549
2,979,487 2,364,317 1,941,577 1,772,065 1,527,381
9.447 7,609 6,752 6,523 9,351
924,713 650,159 428,990 520,151 401,522
1,637,075 1,346,752 1,253,649 1,030,066 890,523
$ 6.82 $ 5.65 $ 5.11 $ 4.24 $ 3.62

(1) For the year ended September 30, 2003 and 2002, amount includes minority interests in earnings of consolidated

entities.

(2) As discussed in Note 1 to our consolidated financial statements in Item 8, in accordance with SFAS No. 142, we
discontinued the amortization of goodwill effective October 1, 2001. The selected financial data summarized for the years
ended September 30, 1999 through September 30, 2001 has not been adjusted for the effect of this accounting change.

The above table reflects acquisitions made by us in furtherance of our business strategy. See “Business-Recent

Transactions” in Item 1.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Overview

At September 30, 2003 we owned and operated 47 acute care and psychiatric hospitals in non-urban
communities located in Alabama, Arkansas, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, Mississippi, North Carolina, Oklahoma,
Pennsylvania, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia, Washington and West Virginia.

Forward-Looking Statements

This report and other documents we file with the SEC contain “forward-looking statements” within the
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause
our actual results, performance, achievements or industry results to be materially different from any future results,
performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors include, among
other things, the following:

. possible changes in the levels and terms of reimbursement for our charges by government programs,
including Medicare or Medicaid or other third party payors;

. existing laws and government regulations and changes in or failure to comply with laws and
governmental regulations;

. our ability to successfully integrate recent and future acquisitions;

o competition;

. demographic changes;

) technological and pharmaceutical improvements that increase the cost of providing, or reduce the

demand for, our services;
. our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel, including physicians; and

. our ability to finance growth on favorable terms.
Undue reliance should not be placed on our forward-looking statements. Except as required by law, we
disclaim any obligation to update any such factors or to publicly announce the results of any revisions to any of the

forward-looking statements contained in this report in order to reflect future events or developments.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in our consolidated

financial statements and accompanying notes.

We consider our critical accounting policies to be those that require us to make more significant judgments and
estimates when we prepare our financial statements, including the following:
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Net Patient Service Revenues

We derive a significant portion of our revenues from the Medicare and Medicaid programs and from managed
care health plans. Payments for services we render to patients covered by these programs are generally less than billed
charges. For Medicare and Medicaid revenues, provisions for contractual adjustments are made to reduce the charges to
these patients to estimated receipts based upon the programs’ principles of payment or reimbursement (either
prospectively determined or retrospectively determined costs). Final payment under these programs is subject to
administrative review and audit, and we currently make provisions for any adjustments which may result. Our
provisions for contractual allowances under managed care health plans are based primarily on payment terms of
contractual arrangements such as predetermined rates per diagnosis, per diem rates or a discounted percent from
charges. We closely monitor our historical collection rates as well as changes in applicable laws, rules and regulations
and contract terms to help assure that provisions are made using the most accurate information we believe to be
available. However, due to the complexities involved in these estimations, actual payments we receive could be
different from the amounts we estimate and record.

Provision for Doubtful Accounts

Collection of receivables from third party payors and patients is our primary source of cash and is critical to
our operating performance. QOur primary collection risks relate to uninsured patient accounts and patient accounts for
which the primary insurance payor has paid, but patient responsibility amounts (generally deductibles and co-payments)
remain outstanding. We estimate provisions for doubtful accounts based primarily upon the age of patient’s account,
the economic ability of patients to pay and the effectiveness of our collection efforts. We routinely review accounts
receivable balances in conjunction with our historical collection rates and other economic conditions which might
ultimately affect the collectibility of patient accounts when we consider the adequacy of the amounts we record as
reserves for doubtful accounts. Significant changes in payer mix, business office operations, economic conditions or
trends in federal and state governmental health care coverage could affect our collection of accounts receivable, cash
flows and results of operations.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets — In accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets, we review our long-lived assets, including amortizable intangible assets, for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of these assets may not be fully recoverable. The
assessment of possible impairment is based on our ability to recover the carrying value of our asset based on our
estimate of its undiscounted future cash flows. If these estimated future cash flows are less than the carrying value of the
asset, an impairment charge is recognized for the difference between the asset’s estimated fair value and its carrying
value. As of the date of these financial statements, we were not aware of any items or events that would cause us to
adjust the recorded value of our long-lived assets, including amortizable intangible assets, for impairment.

Goodwill — In accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, goodwill is not
amortized. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at the reporting unit level, as defined by SFAS No. 142, on an annual
basis or sooner if indicators of impairment arise. We periodically evaluate each reporting unit for potential impairment
indicators. Qur judgments regarding the existence of impairment indicators are based on market conditions and
operational performance of €ach reporting unit. During the fourth quarter of 2003, we completed our annual impairment
review of our goodwill. The impairment review indicated that our goodwill was not impaired. Future changes in the
estimates used to conduct the impairment review, including revenue and profitability projections or market values could
cause our analysis to indicate that our goodwill is impaired in subsequent periods and result in a write-off of a portion or
all of our goodwill.
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Income Taxes

We must make estimates in recording provision for income taxes, inciuding determination of deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities and any valuation allowances that might be required against the deferred tax assets.
We believe that future income will enable us to realize these benefits, and, therefore, we have not recorded any
valuation allowance against the deferred tax asset.

We operate in multiple states with varying tax laws. We are subject to both federal and state audits of tax
returns. Our federal income tax returns have been examined by the Internal Revenue Service through fiscal year 1999,
which resulted in no material adjustments. Our fiscal year 2000 and 2001 federal income tax returns are currently being
audited by the Internal Revenue Service. We make estimates we believe are accurate in order to determine that tax
reserves are adequate to cover any potential audit adjustments.

Professional Liability Insurance Claims

In response to the difficulty we encountered in obtaining primary insurance from commercial companies at
reasonable rates, on October 1, 2002 we formed a wholly-owned insurance subsidiary in order to self-insure a greater
portion of our primary professional and general liability risk. Our captive subsidiary reinsures risk up to $1.0 million
per claim and $3.0 million in the aggregate per hospital, and further acts as an excess insurer for all of our hospitals in
combination with three commercial insurance companies. The total cost of our professional liability program was
approximately 1.4% of net revenue in fiscal 2003 and 1.3% in fiscal 2002.

We determine our accruals for self-insured professional liability risks using asserted and unasserted claims
identified by our incident reporting system as well as by using actuarially-determined estimates based on our internal as
well as industry-wide historical loss payment patterns. We have discounted our accruals for self-insured professional
liability risks to their present value using a discount rate of 4.5%. Although the ultimate settlement of these accruals
may vary from our estimates, we believe that the amounts provided in our consolidated financial statements are
adequate. However, if the actual payments of claims exceed our projected estimates of claims, our insurance accruals
could be materially adversely affected.

Results of Operations
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2003 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002

Our net patient service revenue for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003, or fiscal 2003, was $2,560.6
million. This compares to $2,262.6 million in net revenue for our fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, or fiscal 2002.
This represented an increase in our net patient service revenue of $298.0 million, or 13.2%. Hospitals in operation for
the entire period of fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2002, which we refer to as same hospitals, provided $164.0 million of the
increase in net patient service revenue, which resulted both from an increase in inpatient and outpatient volumes and
from rate increases. Net revenue per adjusted admission at our same hospitals increased 4.9% for fiscal 2003. A
contributing factor to the rate increases and the net revenue per adjusted admission increase was the renegotiation of
209 managed care contracts during fiscal 2003, or 17% of the total number of contracts. The average increase was
approximately 9%. Commercial and managed care revenue represented approximately 41% of our total net revenue
during fiscal 2003. The source of the remaining net increase of $134.0 million in net patient service revenue included:

. $128.6 million in net patient service revenue from our acquisitions of an 88-bed hospital in December
2001, an 85-bed hospital, a 129-bed hospital, and a 176-bed hospital in January 2002, a 172-bed
hospital in May 2002, a 67-bed hospital in January 2003, a 226-bed hospital and a 63-bed hospital in
August 2003, and a 135-bed hospital in September 2003; and

. a $5.4 million increase in net patient service revenue from our psychiatric hospitals and other
corporate revenue,




In fiscal 2003, our hospitals generated 1,079,865 patient days of service, which produced an overall occupancy
rate of 48.5%. During fiscal 2002, our hospitals generated 1,000,480 patient days of service, which produced an overall
occupancy rate of 47.9%. Admissions in same hospitals for fiscal 2003 increased 2.9%, from 198,214 to 203,875. Same
hospital adjusted admissions, which adjusts admissions for outpatient volume, for our hospitals during fiscal 2003 were
325,137, up 2.8% from 316,239 adjusted admissions during fiscal 2002.

Our salaries and benefits, supplies and other expenses and provision for doubtful accounts for fiscal 2003 were
$1,917.4 million, or 74.9% of net patient service revenue, as compared to $1,698.0 million, or 75.0% of net patient
service revenue for fiscal 2002. Of the total $219.4 million increase, approximately $111.2 million related to same
hospitals and is largely attributable to increased inpatient and outpatient volumes. Another $96.7 million of our
increased operating expenses related to the acquisitions, described above, which we completed in fiscal 2003. The
remaining increase of $11.5 million represented an increase in our corporate and miscellaneous other operating
expenses. In addition, during fiscal 2003, our rent expense increased by $3.4 million primarily as a result of the
acquisitions we completed during the year and the expansion of services provided in our hospitals.

During fiscal 2003, our depreciation and amortization costs increased by $14.5 million. This increase in
depreciation and amortization resulted primarily from the acquisitions we completed during fiscal 2003. As a result of
the repayment of our Convertible Senior Subordinated Debentures due 2020 on August 16, 2003 and lower interest rates
on our remaining debt, our interest expense decreased $0.6 million. Our writeoff of $4.9 million of unamortized
deferred financing costs is a result of the repayment of our Convertible Senior Subordinated Debentures due 2020 on
August 16, 2003. ’

Our income before income taxes was $458.7 million for fiscal 2003 and $405.7 million for fiscal 2002, an
increase of $53.0 million or 13.1%. Our increased profitability resulted from increased volumes, rate increases, and
from the acquisitions we completed in fiscal 2003. Our provision for income taxes was $175.3 million for fiscal 2003
as compared to $159.2 million for fiscal 2002. Our provision for income taxes reflected an effective income tax rate of
approximately 38.2% for fiscal 2003 and 39.3% for fiscal 2002. As a result, our net income was $283.4 million for
fiscal 2003 and $246.4 million for fiscal 2002,

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2002 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2001

Our net patient service revenue for fiscal 2002 was $2,262.6 million, as compared to $1,879.8 million for our
fiscal year ended September 30, 2001, or fiscal 2001. This represented an increase in net patient service revenue of
$382.8 million, or 20.4%. Hospitals in operation for all of fiscal 2002 and 2001, which we refer to as same hospitals,
provided $139.7 million of the increase in our net patient service revenue, which resulted primarily from inpatient and
outpatient volume and rate increases. Net revenue per adjusted admission at our same hospitals increased 3.5% for
fiscal 2002. A contributing factor to the rate increases and the net reverue per adjusted admission increase was the
renegotiation of 81 managed care contracts during fiscal 2002, or 8% of the total number of contracts. The average
increase exceeded 10%. Commercial and managed care revenue represented approximately 40% of our total net revenue
during fiscal 2002. The source of our remaining net increase of $243.1 million included:

. $240.4 million in net patient service revenue from our acquisitions of a 200-bed hospital in June 2001,
an 80-bed hospital in September 2001, an 88-bed hospital in December 2001, an 85-bed hospital, a
129-bed hospital, and a 126-bed hospital in January 2002, and a 172-bed hospital in May 2002; and

) $2.7 million increase in net patient service revenue from psychiatric hospitals and corporate.

Our hospitals generated 1,000,480 patient days of service in fiscal 2002, which produced an overall occupancy
rate of 47.9%. During fiscal 2001, our hospitals generated 880,624 patient days of service for an overall occupancy rate
of 47.2%. Admissions in same hospitals for fiscal 2002 increased 2.2%, from 184,533 to 188,576. Same hospital
adjusted admissions, which adjusts admissions for outpatient volume, for our hospitals during fiscal 2002 were 298,348,
up 4.0% from 287,000 adjusted admissions during fiscal 2001.

23



Our salaries and benefits, supplies and other expenses and provision for doubtful accounts for fiscal 2002 were
$1,698.0 million, or 75.0% of our net patient service revenue, as compared to $1,390.4 million, or 74.0% of net patient
service revenue for fiscal 2001. Of the total $307.6 million increase, approximately $94.9 million related to same
hospitals and was largely attributable to increased inpatient and outpatient volumes. Another $199.5 million of the
increase related to the acquisitions, described above, which we completed in fiscal 2002. The remaining increase of
$13.2 million represented an increase in our corporate and miscellaneous other operating expenses. Our fiscal 2002 rent
expense increased by $6.2 million, primarily as a result of the acquisitions we completed during the year as well as our
expansion of services provided in our hospitals.

Between fiscal 2001 and 2002 our depreciation and amortization costs increased by $4.7 million. The increase
primarily resulted from the acquisitions described above, offset by a decrease in amortization expense related to our
adoption of SFAS No. 142 on October 1, 2001. Our interest expense decreased $4.4 million due to paydowns on higher
interest rate debt and lower interest rates on our remaining overall outstanding debt. Our non-cash charge of $17.0
million consists of $13.6 million for the present value of the future costs of retirement benefits granted to our chairman
pursuant to an agreement which became effective January 2, 2001 and $3.4 million for the write down of two hospital
assets held for sale in conjunction with their respective replacement. The two hospital assets that were written down
were facilities for which replacement facilities were completed in June 1999 and March 2000. The charge for the write
down of these facilities was recorded in our quarter ended March 31, 2001. During the period between completion of
the new facilities and the recording of the charge, we were evaluating our options for the sale of the facilities that had
been replaced. During the period ended March 31, 2001, we finalized our plans for the old facilities and obtained the
information necessary to estimate the loss on sale.

Our income before income taxes was $405.7 million for fiscal 2002 as compared to $321.0 million for fiscal
2001. This represents an increase of $84.7 million or 26.4%. Excluding the non-recurring charge for retirement benefits
and write down of assets held for sale of $17.0 million in fiscal 2001, our income before taxes was $338.0 million in
fiscal 2001 as compared to $405.7 million for fiscal 2002, an increase of $67.7 million or 20.0%. Our increased
profitability resulted from increased volumes, rate increases, and from the acquisitions we completed in fiscal 2002.
Our provision for income taxes was $159.2 million for fiscal 2002 as compared to $126.0 million for fiscal 2001. Our
provision for income taxes reflected an effective income tax rate of approximately 39.3% for both fiscal 2002 and 2001.
As a result, our net income was $246.4 million for fiscal 2002 and $195.0 million for fiscal 2001, including the non-
cash charge, and $205.3 million excluding such charge.

Liquidity, Capital Resources, and Capital Expenditures

Liquidity
Fiscal 2003 Cash Flows Compared to Fiscal 2002 Cash Flows

Our working capital increased to $820.4 million at September 30, 2003 from $422.0 million at September 30,
2002. This increase resulted from our receipt of proceeds from the sale of our 1.50% Convertible Senior Subordinated
Notes due 2023, or 2023 Notes, as well as from increased business volumes and our continued efficient management of
working capital. Our cash flows from operating activities decreased by $20.2 million from $354.1 million in fiscal 2002
to $333.9 million in fiscal 2003. Our improved profitability was offset by a decrease in working capital which resulted
in an overall decrease in cash flows from operations in fiscal 2003 compared to fiscal 2002. Our use of cash in
investing activities decreased by $23.4 million from $343.5 million in fiscal 2002 to $320.1 million in fiscal 2003. This
decrease resulted primarily from our acquisition of four hospitals in fiscal 2003 compared to our acquisition of five
hospitals in fiscal 2002. Our cash flows provided by financing activities increased $214.9 million from $42.9 million
in fiscal 2002 to $257.8 million in fiscal 2003. The increase is primarily the result of borrowings of $575.0 million in
connection with the issuance of the 2023 Notes, offset by $310.8 million used for the repayment of our Convertible
Senior Subordinated Debentures due 2020.
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Fiscal 2002 Cash Flows Compared to Fiscal 2001 Cash Flows

Our working capital increased to $422.0 million at September 30, 2002 from $377.1 million at September 30,
2001. This increase resulted primarily from increased business volumes as well as from continued efficient
management of our working capital. Our cash flows from operating activities increased by $57.9 million from $296.2
million in fiscal 2001 to $354.1 million in fiscal 2002, Our improved profitability contributed to the majority of this net
increase. Our use of cash in investing activities increased from $170.1 million in fiscal 2001 to $343.5 million in fiscal
2002. This increase resulted from our acquisition of five hospitals in fiscal 2002 compared to two hospitals in 2001.
Our cash flows from financing activities increased $115.1 million from $72.2 million used in fiscal 2001 to $42.9
million provided in fiscal 2002. The increase is primarily the result of net proceeds on borrowing of $215.8 million
which was offset by $186.4 million used for stock repurchases in fiscal 2002.

Effect of Legislative and Regulatory Action on Liquidity

The Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement programs are subject to ongoing changes as a result of legislative
and regulatory actions. We believe that these changes will continue to limit payment increases under these programs.
However, we do not believe that these changes will have a material adverse effect on our future revenue or our liquidity.
Nevertheless, within the statutory framework of the Medicare and Medicaid programs, there are substantial areas
subject to administrative rulings, interpretations and discretion which may further affect payments made under those
programs. In the future, both the federal and state governments might reduce the funds available under those programs
or require more stringent utilization and quality reviews of hospital facilities, either of which could have a material
adverse effect on our future revenue and our liquidity. Additionally, any future restructuring of the financing and
delivery of health care in the United States and the continued rise in managed care programs could have an effect on our
future revenue and liquidity.

Capital Resources
Credit Facilities

We currently have a 5-year $450 million credit agreement due November 30, 2004. This credit agreement is a
term loan agreement which permits us to borrow under an unsecured revolving credit line at any time through
November 30, 2004, at which time the agreement will terminate and all outstanding amounts owed by us will become
due and payable. If we choose to borrow under the credit agreement, we may choose a loan based on an interest rate
equal to the prime interest rate or an interest rate based on the LIBOR interest rate. Under the credit agreement, the
interest rate for a loan based on the LIBOR interest rate is currently the LIBOR rate plus 1.00 percent. This interest rate
under the credit agreement is subject to change should our credit rating change. Assuming we were to choose an
interest rate based on the LIBOR interest rate, the applicable interest rate under the credit agreement would have been -
2.1% and 2.8% at September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. As of September 30, 2003 and 2002, we did not have
any outstanding borrowings under the credit agreement. In October 2003, we borrowed $275.0 million under the credit
agreement to partially finance the acquisition of five hospitals on November 1, 2003. See “Business — Recent
Transactions” in Item 1.

We also have a $15 million unsecured revolving working capital credit commitment with a commercial bank.
This credit commitment is tied to our cash management system and renews annually each November 1. We must pay
interest on any outstanding balance monthly at a fluctuating rate not to exceed the bank’s prime rate less 0.25%. The
interest rate at September 30, 2003 and 2002 was 3.75% and 4.5%, respectively. As of September 30, 2003 and 2002,
we did not have any amounts outstanding under the credit commitment.

During the term of the credit agreement, we are obligated to pay certain commitment fees based upon amounts
available to us for borrowing. In addition, each of the above credit facilities contains covenants which, without prior
consent of the lenders under such facilities, limit certain of our activities, including those relating to mergers,
consolidations and our ability to borrow additional money, make guarantees, grant security interests and declare
dividends. Furthermore, each of the credit facilities requires us to maintain minimum levels of consolidated tangible net
worth, debt service coverage and interest coverage. At September 30, 2003 and 2002, we were in compliance with all of
these covenants.
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Outstanding Debt Securities

2022 Notes. On January 28, 2002, we sold $330.0 million in face value of our Zero-Coupon Convertible Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2022, or 2022 Notes. Our sale of 2022 Notes resulted in gross proceeds to us of approximately
$277.0 million. The 2022 Notes are our general unsecured obligations and are subordinated in right of payment to our
existing and future indebtedness that is not expressly subordinated or equal in right of payment to the 2022 Notes. Our
2023 Notes, which are discussed below, rank equally with our 2022 Notes. The 2022 Notes mature on January 28,
2022, unless they are converted or redeemed earlier. Upon the occurrence of certain events, the 2022 Notes become
convertible into shares of our common stock at a conversion rate of 32.1644 shares of common stock for each $1,000
principal amount of 2022 Notes converted (which conversion rate is subject to adjustment in certain events). The
equivalent number of shares of our common stock associated with any conversion of the 2022 Notes will become
dilutive (and thus included in our earnings per share calculation) when our common stock trades at a level of $31.33 for
at least 20 out of 30 trading days prior to the conversion of the 2022 Notes or the 2022 Notes otherwise become
convertible. The accrual of the original issue discount on the 2022 Notes represents a yield to maturity of 0.875% per
year calculated from January 28, 2002, excluding any contingent interest which could be payable under certain
circumstances in accordance with the terms of the Notes.

Holders may require us to purchase all or a portion of their 2022 Notes on January 28, 2005, January 28, 2007,
January 28, 2012 and January 28, 2017 for a purchase price per note of $862.07, $877.25, $916.40 and $957.29,
respectively, plus accrued and unpaid interest to each purchase date. We will pay cash for all 2022 Notes so purchased
on January 28, 2005. We may choose to pay the purchase price in cash or common stock or a combination of cash and
common stock for purchases on or after January 28, 2007. In addition, if we undergo certain types of fundamental
changes on or before January 28, 2007, each holder of the 2022 Notes may require us to purchase all or a portion of
their 2022 Notes. We may choose to pay the purchase price in cash or common stock or a combination of cash and
common stock. In addition, we may redeem all or a portion of the 2022 Notes at any time on or after January 28, 2007
for cash. We have reserved approximately 10.6 million shares of our common stock for issuance in the event the 2022
Notes are converted.

2023 Notes. On July 29 and August 8, 2003, we sold an aggregate of $575.0 million in face value of our
-1.50% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2023. The 2023 Notes were sold at their principal face amount, pius
accrued interest, if any, from July 29, 2003. Our sale of 2023 Notes resulted in gross proceeds to us of approximately
$563.5 million. We used $310.8 million of the proceeds to redeem all of our Convertible Senior Subordinated
Debentures due 2020 on August 16, 2003. The balance of the proceeds was used to partially fund our acquisition of five
hospitals on November 1, 2003. The 2023 Notes are our general unsecured obligations and are subordinated in right of
payment to our existing and future indebtedness that is not expressly subordinated or equal in right of payment to the
2023 Notes. Our 2022 Notes, which are discussed above, rank equally with our 2023 Notes. The 2023 Notes mature on
August 1, 2023, unless they are converted or redeemed earlier. Upon the occurrence of certain events, the 2023 Notes
become convertible into shares of our common stock at a conversion rate of 36.5097 shares of common stock for each
$1,000 principal amount of 2023 Notes converted (which conversion rate is subject to adjustment in certain events). The
equivalent number of shares of our common stock associated with any conversion of the 2023 Notes will become
dilutive (and thus included in our earnings per share calculation) when our common stock trades at a level of $36.5097
for at least 20 out of 30 trading days prior to the conversion of the 2023 Notes or the 2023 Notes otherwise become
convertible.

Holders may require us to purchase all or a portion of their 2023 Notes on August 1, 2006, August 1, 2008,
August 1, 2013 and August 1, 2018 for a purchase price per note equal to 100% of its principal face amount, plus
accrued but unpaid interest. We will pay cash for all 2023 Notes so purchased on August 1, 2006. We may choose to
pay the purchase price in cash or common stock or a combination of cash and common stock for purchases on or after
August 1, 2008. In addition, if we undergo certain types of fundamental changes on or before August 1, 2008, each
holder of the 2023 Notes may require us to purchase all or a portion of their 2023 Notes. We may choose to pay the
purchase price in cash or common stock or a combination of cash and common stock. In addition, we may redeem all
or a portion of the 2023 Notes at any time on or after August 5, 2008 for a redemption price per note equal to its
principal face amount, plus accrued but unpaid interest. We may choose to pay the redemption price in cash or common
stock or a combination of cash and common stock. We have reserved approximately 21.0 million shares of our
common stock for issuance in the event the 2023 Notes are converted.
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Capital Expenditures

Our business strategy calls for us to continue to acquire hospitals that meet our acquisition criteria. The
acquisition of hospitals accounted for a significant portion of our capital expenditures in each of fiscal 2002 and fiscal
2003. We generally fund acquisitions, replacement hospitals and other ongoing capital expenditure requirements from
cash on hand generated from our operating cash flows and from availability under our credit agreement. During fiscal
2004, excess proceeds from the 2023 Notes sold in July and August 2003 also provided a source of funding for our five
hospital acquisition completed on November 1, 2003,

Transactions Completed or Pending for Fiscal 2004

On November 1, 2003, we announced the acquisition of five non-urban hospitals from subsidiaries of
Tenet Healthcare Corporation. The five hospitals acquired included Seven Rivers Community
Hospital, a 128-bed hospital located in Crystal River, Florida; Harton Regional Medical Center, a
137-bed hospital located in Tullahoma, Tennessee; University Medical Center, a two-campus 257-bed
hospital located in Lebanon, Tennessee; Three Rivers Health Care, a two-campus 423-bed hospital
located in Poplar Bluff, Missouri; and Twin Rivers Regional Medical Center, a 116-bed hospital
located in Kennett, Missouri. The purchase price was approximately $515.0 million in cash.

In October 2003, we received approval from the State of Florida Agency for Health Care
Administration to construct our proposed 100-bed Collier Regional Medical Center in southeast
Collier County, Florida. Pending any appeal that might be made, we anticipate beginning
construction in the next 12 months. The cost of the project is expected to be approximately $75.0
million.

We currently have several hospital renovation and expansion projects underway. We do not believe

that any of these projects are individually significant or that they represent in the aggregate a significant
commitment of our resources. In addition to our ongoing renovation and expansion projects, over the course of
the next three years we plan to replace three of our existing hospitals (Brooksville, Florida; Carlisle,
Pennsylvania; and Lancaster, Pennsylvania) and complete our proposed Collier Regional Medical Center in
southeast Collier County, Florida. Regulatory approval to begin construction has been granted. As of
September 30, 2003, we had invested approximately $30.0 million in these projects. We anticipate spending
between approximately $155 and $165 million for capital equipment, renovations, and replacement hospitals
during fiscal 2004.

Transactions Completed in Fiscal 2003

On September 15, 2003, we acquired Walton Medical Center, a 135-bed hospital located in Monroe,
Georgia, for approximately $38.7 million in cash and $1.3 million in assumed liabilities.

On August 15, 2003, we acquired the assets of Providence Yakima Medical Center located in
Yakima, Washington and Providence Toppenish Hospital located in Toppenish, Washington, a 289-
bed acute care hospital system, for approximately $70.8 million in cash and $11.9 million in assumed
liabilities. This transaction represented our first geographic expansion into the northwestern United
States. ‘

On January 1, 2003, we acquired, pursuant to a 40-year lease, the Madison County Medical Center, a
67-bed acute care hospital located in Canton, Mississippi, for approximately $9.7 million in cash.
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Transactions Completed in Fiscal 2002

. On August 1, 2002, we purchased an office complex in Naples, Florida consisting of two commercial
office buildings, including the building that houses our corporate headquarters. We paid $25.8 million
for this office complex, consisting of $5.8 million in cash and $20.0 million financed using a 5-year
note, from a commercial bank, bearing interest at the LIBOR rate plus .75%.

) Effective May 1, 2002, we acquired all of the assets of Mesquite Community Hospital from Manor
Care, Inc. for $80.0 million in cash and subsequently sold back to Manor Care, Inc. a 20% equity
interest in such hospital for $16.0 million in cash. As part of this transaction, we also sold to Manor
Care, Inc. a 20% equity interest in the Medical Center of Mesquite (which was acquired by us on
December 31, 2001) for $16.0 million in cash.

. In February 2002, we initiated a stock repurchase program to repurchase up to 5,000,000 shares of our
common stock. On August 8, 2002, we announced the completion of this stock repurchase program.
Under this program we used cash on hand to repurchase a total of 5,000,000 shares of our common
stock at an average purchase price of $18.54 per share.

. Effective January 1, 2002, we acquired the stock of four acute care hospitals from Clarent Hospital
Corporation for approximately $170.0 million in cash. Later the same day we sold one of these
hospitals to a third party for $40.0 million in cash.

. Effective December 1, 2001 we acquired the assets of East Pointe Hospital, including substantially all
of the hospital’s property, plant and equipment, for approximately $16.5 million in cash.

. In September 2001, we initiated a stock repurchase program to repurchase up to 5,000,000 shares of
our common stock. On January 29, 2002, we announced the completion of this stock repurchase
program. Under this program we used cash on hand to repurchase a total of 5,000,000 shares of our
common stock at an average price of $19.29 per share.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At September 30, 2003, we were party to certain off balance sheet arrangements. These consisted of
obligations under standby letters of credit, lease transactions and contractual obligations to provide financial assistance
to physicians relocating to our communities.

Standby letters of credit

Standby letters of credit outstanding, as of September 30, 2003, were approximately $38.4 million. These
outstanding letters of credit consisted of the following:

e  $16.2 million related to the self insured portions of our insurance programs as security for the payment of
claims;

e $22.1 million in performance guarantees for the construction of our Carlisle, Pennsylvania, and Lancaster,
Pennsylvania, replacement hospitals;

e 3.1 million for obligations related to certain utility companies.
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Lease Transactions

Obligations under operating leases for real property, real property master leases and equipment totaled
approximately $184.1 million. The real property master leases are leases for buildings on or near hospital property for
which we guarantee a certain level of rental income. We sublease space in these buildings and any amounts received
under these subleases are offset against the expense. The minimum payments under all operating lease arrangements
are detailed in note 4 in the notes to our consolidated financial statements in Item 8.

Physician Guarantees

In consideration for a physician relocating to one of our communities and agreeing to engage in private
practice, we may advance money to the physician to assist in the establishment of the physician’s practice. We have
committed to advance approximately $13.3 million at September 30, 2003 under these arrangements. The actual
amount of these commitments is dependent upon the financial resuits of each physician’s private practice during the
guarantee period, which generally does not exceed twelve months. The net amounts advanced under these recruiting
agreements at the end of the individual’s guarantee period are considered loans and are generally forgiven pro rata over
a period of 36 months contingent upon the physician continuing to practice in the respective community. Our practice
is to expense these advances on a straight-line basis as they are paid over the guarantee period.

Days Sales Qutstanding

At the beginning of each fiscal year, we announce a number of financial and quality objectives for the coming
fiscal year, including days sales outstanding (“DSO”). Our DSO is calculated by dividing the quarterly net revenue by
the number of days in the quarter. The result is divided into the accounts receivable balance at the end of the quarter to
obtain the DSO. This statistic is an important measure of collection of our accounts receivable. Below is a table of
actual days compared to our objectives.

September 30,
2003 2002 2001
Actual days sales outstanding................ccoovvviiiriiinnineninn 74* 70 71
Objective for days sales outstanding..................ocoeevvvennnn. 65-73 65-73 65-73

* The variance from the prior year and our objective resulted from the acquisitions we completed during the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2003. We are currently in the process of obtaining Medicare and Medicaid provider numbers for these
newly acquired hospitals. Until provider numbers are obtained, these hospitals will continue to treat patients under the
Medicare and Medicaid programs, but will be unable to bill Medicare and Medicaid. Once we obtain these provider
numbers, we will be able to bill for all Medicare and Medicaid patients previously treated. This contributed 3 days of
the 4 day increase. Net of such acquisitions, our DSO would have been 71 days.

Our PULSE System ™ provides a weekly aging of our outstanding accounts receivable. The primary uses of
this aging are to manage and evaluate the collectibility of our receivables and calculate the adequacy of allowances.
Our hospitals provide services to patients with health care coverage as well as those without health care coverage.
Those patients with health care coverage are often responsible for a portion of the bill referred to as the co-payment or
deductible. This portion is determined by the specific plan in which the patient participates. Patients without health
care coverage are evaluated at the time of service or shortly thereafter, for their ability to pay based on federal and state
poverty guidelines, qualification for Medicaid or other state assistance programs, as well as the local hospital's policies
for indigent care. After payment is received from a third party, if any, statements are sent indicating the outstanding
balance on the account. If the account is still outstanding after a period of time, the account is referred to a primary
collection agency for assistance in collecting the amount due. The primary collection agency begins the process of debt
collection to include contact with the patient via mail and phone. The purpose of this process is to work with the
patient to resolve the outstanding debt.. All non-governmental accounts over 150 days old from date of discharge are
100% reserved for in our allowance for bad debts.
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The following table is an aging of our gross (prior to allowances for contractual adjustments and doubtful
accounts) discharged accounts receivable:

September 30,
2003 2002
(in thousands)
151 days 151 days
0-150 days  and over 0-150 days and over
Due from third party payors........ $608,214 $ 40,581 $515,007 $ 49,154
Private Pay ........ovvverurevnniennin. 239,697 101,877 188,714 103,605
Total gross discharged
accounts receivable ................. $847.911 $142,458 $703,721 $152.759

Impact of Seasonality and Inflation
Seasonality

We typically experience higher patient volumes and net patient service revenue in the second and third quarters
of each fiscal year. We typically experience such seasonal volume and revenue peaks because more people generally
become ill during the winter months, which in turn results in significant increases in the number of patients we treat
during those months.

Inflation

The health care industry is labor intensive and is subject to wage and other expense increases, especially during
periods of inflation and when shortages of skilled labor occur. There is currently a shortage of skilled nursing staff
industry-wide, which has caused nursing salaries to increase. We have addressed the nursing staffing needs in our
markets through increasing wages, improving hospital working conditions, fostering relationships with local nursing
schools, and implementing our NurseSelect’™ internal nursing agency program in four of our markets. We do not
believe that the inflationary trend in nursing salaries or the nursing shortage will have an adverse effect on our net
income.

In addition, suppliers pass along rising costs to us in the form of higher prices. Thus far, we believe that we
have been able to offset increases in our operating costs through a combination of increasing prices, achieving quantity
discounts for purchases under our group purchasing agreement, and by more efficient utilization of resources.
Although we have implemented cost control measures to curb increases in operating costs and expenses, we cannot
predict our ability to cover or offset future cost increases.
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Item 7A.Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Interest Rates

We are exposed to interest rate fluctuations, primarily as a result of our $450 million credit agreement that has
an interest rate subject to market fluctuations. However, we do not currently use derivative instruments to alter the
interest rate characteristics of any of our debt. The following table summarizes principal cash flows and related
weighted average interest rates by expected maturity dates. At September 30, 2003 the fair value of our fixed rate debt
was $957.9 million, while the carrying value was approximately $916.7 million. At September 30, 2003 the fair value
of our variable rate debt was $17.5 million, while the carrying value was approximately $17.5 million.

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter Total

(in millions, except interest rates)
Long term debt:
Fixed rate long-term debt $7.4 $6.8 $59 $4.6 $43 $ 315 $ 60.5
Average interest rates 5.4% 5.8% 5.9% 5.6% 5.6% 6.2% 5.9%
Fixed rate convertible
long-term debt - - - - - $ 856.2 $856.2
Average interest rate 1.3% 1.3%

Variable rate :
long-term debt $2.0 $2.0 $2.0 $11.5 - - $175
Average interest rate * * * * * *

* The interest rate is LIBOR plus 0.75 %. The interest rate on the outstanding balance at September 30, 2003
was 1.9%. .
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Health Management Associates, Inc.
Consolidated Financial Statements:
Report of Independent Certified Public ACCOURLANTS........ccocerirriirrerrirere st reneeaeas
Consolidated Statements of Income - for the years ended
September 30, 2003, 2002 and 20071 .......ccooveivivecniirieereeiie et
Consolidated Balance Sheets - September 30, 2003 and 2002
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity - for the
years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 .......ccoveorevererveioreeerreererrierinsn s
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - for the years
ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Health Management Associates, Inc.

‘We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Health Management Associates, Inc. as of
September 30, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 2003. Our audits also included the financial statement
schedule listed in the Index at Item 15. These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company's
management. QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Health Management Associates, Inc. at September 30, 2003 and 2002 and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended September 30,
2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in our opinion, the related
financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents
fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of
accounting for the excess of cost over acquired net assets during the year ended September 30, 2002.
Ernst & Young LLP
Tampa, Florida
October 21, 2003, except for

Note 12, as to which the
date is November 1, 2003
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HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year ended September 30,

2003 2002 2001
Net patient SErvice TEVEMUE ........ccceveririeeririnireeeeneserneesesaesareesens $2,560,576  $2,262,601 $1,879,801
Costs and expenses:
Salaries and Benefits .....c.oeeeveerieirieiieieericeereereereerere s eenes 989,075 874,729 710,535
Supplies and Other ... 741,487 650,852 535,926
Provision for doubtful accounts ...........cccveveeveciiinnild evveeneeens 186,826 172,430 143,923
Depreciation and amortization ..........ccceeveeverieeieveeeienreseesnesnnss 109,864 95,328 90,646
RENE EXPENSE ..coviiiieriiieiieeierer e ettt e s sn st senenens 50,401 . 47,048 40,850
TNLEIESt, MEL 1.vevereereiiiieeiee e e ere e st st eene e s eae b sraesnnee e 14,915 15,543 19,970
Writeoff of deferred financing costs..........cccccovveveieiviniereeineen, 4,931 - -
Non-cash charge for retirement benefits and write down of
assets held for sale.......coovieeiiiciiicec e - - 17,000
Total costs and eXPeNSes .......c..occvevevierenreescerenierensrreeeenens 2,097.499 1.855.930 _1.558.850
Income before minority interests and income taxes .............oe...... 463,077 406,671 320,951
Minority interests in earnings of consolidated entities.................. 4.341 1,009 -
Income before INCOME taXES......civivreirieeererieireereeriereeere s eas 458,736 405,662 320,951
Provision for iNCOME tAXES .......coveieeevrerrerieieenrrirereereeneeereeneenns 175,312 . 159,226 125,973
Net income ......... feerrbiriireeseitbeeaa—trsrabr bt s aaanrsbenrtaesanrnr et b s eennresrnnneas $ 283,424 246.4 $§ 194978
Net income per share:
BASIC 1veiviiicre ettt et er et r st re et s eene $ 119 S 102 % .80
DHIULEA ©ovvveeeveevecercrieerecet e esr et eerertnesesasseresresbesseanesessessens § 113 % 97 § .76
Dividends per share...............ovveiiiniiiiiiie e S 08 8 - 3 -
Weighted average number of
shares outstanding:
BASIC .oovierietierie ettt ettt ere et eaeere v ens 239.086 241,298 244,425
DHIUE ..ottt ve ettt sr e s 255,884 260,641 264,351

See accompanying notes.
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HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands)

September 30,
2003 2002

ASSETS

Current assets;
Cash and cash eqUIVAIEILS ........cccveveeerierinieteeeniieee e es s $ 395,338 $ 123,736
Accounts receivable, less allowances for doubtful
accounts of $151,015 and $138,616 at September

30, 2003 and 2002, 1eSPECLIVELY ..eeiivrreiriieeeirreiese et eas e e 492,787 418,264
Accounts teceivable = Other ..o s 34,467 36,163
SUPPLIES, L COSE .viiiireeriririeeaiiee ettt sttt et e v st esbereneas 65,342 59,412
Prepaid expenses and other @SSets ......c.covviceceiieniiieierceesei e 57,905 19,622
Funds held by trustee ......ccoevuriiiiiieeircie e et e e 17,470 2,628
Deferred INCOME LAXES ..vovvviveiiiiiirieereeereieire et ereesreereetsessesre e sreneereearenas 30,027 35,961

TOtal CUITENE @SSELS ©vivvvereireiiriiiieresree ettt sttt aesbe e enes 1,093,336 695,786
Property, plant and equipment:
Land and iMpProvements ..........c..ecoireieriereeninrieierenencneereeetene e 94,141 78,879
Buildings and improvements ..........ccvvevcrnmrecennnaseresenesiserercreneons 1,077,638 964,100
Leaseholds .ovocveeeieriericiiie ettt st er e e 116,327 104,672
EQUIDIMENT ..ottt et sttt eee s 617,818 518,129
CONSLIUCHION 11 PIOZTESS eevvrvrerrrirereereerrerrriaseesrernessenssesessesencosaresseseessessenns 77,227 57.563
1,983,151 1,723,343
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization ..............ccoceverecriienenees (555.436) (441.561)
Net property, plant and equipment ..........cccovernecrniinnninniiees e, 1,427,715 1,281,782
Funds held By trUStEe .....ccoveiviiiieiere it s 15,924 1,450
Excess of cost over acquired net assets, Net ..........cccovevrieriereceeninncnecenenenes 397,825 342,113
Deferred charges and Other aSSets ..........coeverernrenreiircne e 44,687 43,186

$2.979,487 $2,364.317

See accompanying notes.
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HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands)

September 30,
2003 2002
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:
ACCOUNLS PAYADLE ..ottt et et $136,136 $ 132,228
Accrued payroll and related taXes .......cocooerveirinintiiee e 48,560 39,397
Accrued expenses and other Habilities .........cccvoeviieiiieniiinciicne s 63,401 61,381
Due to third Party PAYOIS ..ccecvveeriereerecierieresinieiecrreteseniesae e saeteresie e e sesresesssevesens 10,019 21,900
Income taxes - currently payable........cccooiiniiicnniiincc e 5,400 11,228
Current maturities of long-term debt ..........ooveiiiiviiiiiccenec e 9.447 7.609
Total current HabilItIes ......ccviiviiiiiiee e ieteecrer e cre e s e see e srresabeseresanaee e 272,963 273,743
Deferred INCOME LAXES ...cuveeee it eeee e et eeeee e ettt e e e st eesre e 48,984 17,861
Other long-term Habilities .......ccoooiviiiiiiiic e 58,402 42,793
Long-termm debl ..oveviireiciieiii et 924,713 650,159
Minority interests in consolidated entities................cocoiiiiiiii i 37,350 33,009

Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 5,000 shares
AULNOTIZEW ...ttt et et s e s rae et e e eaaestb s eabe s sbneesbesre e sabeaesare e - -
Common stock, Class A, $.01 par value, 750,000
shares authorized, 262,705 and 261,067
shares issued September 30, 2003

and 2002, TeSPECLIVELY c1iiireiieiereiie ettt ere s 2,627 2,611
Additional paid-in-Capital ...........ccoceoierrieeirrie et s 399,782 373,214
REtaiNed CAIMINGES ...eooerviiirerereiri e see st ate e e e bestaesresbas e seeebaetesaresnssnneenneseis 1,535,322 1,271,583

1,937,731 1,647,408

Less: treasury stock, 22,500 shares at both

September 30, 2003 and 2002, reSpectiVely .veecvuiiviiinierr et e (300,656) (300.656)
Total stockholders’ €qUILY .......cccvrrirrriiiiiccr e _1,637.075 1,346,752

$2,979,487 $2,364,317

See accompanying notes.
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HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001

(in thousands)

Balance at September 30, 2000.........c.cccoevimnnenen.

Exercise of stock options and issuance of stock
incentive plan shares........ccccceoveverninennnnn.
Income tax benefit from exercise
of stock options and issuance of stock
incentive plan shares.........cc.ccoccvviicnnnenceennn
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost.. .....c..cooeeeneve.
Net INCOME. ...

Balance at September 30, 2001........cccoooviiiinnnnn,

Exercise of stock options and issuance of stock
incentive plan Shares .........ccceovvvrecnenrininees
Income tax benefit from exercise
of stock options and issuance of stock
incentive plan Shares..........ccccevevveenverennne
Purchase of treasury stock, at cost .....ccceceerner.
NEtINCOIME .evrerrerreie i reenrrertrte e ee e

Balance at September 30, 2002 .......ocooviririvnennens

Exercise of stock options and issuance of stock
incentive plan shares..........ccocovevieerriecnenen.
Income tax benefit from exercise
of stock options and issuance of stock
incentive plan shares.......coooveveveiiininnnnionnnn.
Payment of dividends............c..oceiiiceniinnnee,
Net INCOME.......ooeiieiiriiee e ctibe s

Balance at September 30,2003........c.c.ccoinnenne.

Common Stock

Par

Shares Value
255,357 $2,554
2,717 27
258,074 2,581
2,993 30

261,067 2,611
1,638 16
262,705 32,627

See accompanying notes.
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Additional
Paid-in Retained Treasury
Capital Earnings Stock
$308,834 $830,169 (3111,491)
25,245 - -
6,113 - -
- - (2,780)
- 194,978 -
340,192 1,025,147 (114,271)
14,629 - -
18,393 - -
- - (186,385)
- 246,436 -
373,214 1,271,583 (300,656)
21,248 - -
5,320 - -
- (19,685) -
- 283.424 -
$399.782  3L335322  (8300,656)




HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year ended September 30,
__ 2003 2002 2001

Cash flows from operating activities:
INEE INCOME Lottt viese s sre e e $283,424 $246,436 $194,978

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization ...........ccoevirreiviecenens 109,864 95,328 90,646
Provision for doubtful accounts..........cocevcvvernverernrnens 186,826 172,430 143,923
Minority interest in earnings of consolidated entities 4,341 1,009 -
(Gain)loss on sale of fixed assets .........cceervrvvirennnn (826) 62 (6)
Change in deferred income taxes..........cooooeeviiererinenns 37,057 (8,585) (6,600)
Writeoff of deferred financing costs.......c..cccocevinenras 4,931 - -
Charges for retirement benefits and write down of

assets held for sale ....oovvveeoiiieiiciire e - - 17,000

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of

acquisitions:
Accounts receivable ... (265,830) (209,972) (149,288)
SUPPLIES ©verieerreeieiie e (3,973) (4,656) (9,993)
Prepaid expenses and other assets ..........cccooeeeiiiene (38,383) 479 257)
Deferred charges and other assets .....c....ccccocvviiiiiienne 2,168 (1,035) (6,018)
Accounts payable ..o 5,666 29,746 13,315
Accrued expenses and other liabilities ... (6,504) 7,915 2,053
Income taxes — currently payable ...........ccocviieviinienn (509) 28,260 5,347
Other long-term liabilities ........cccovverrmerivrrcrnriinenes 15,610 (3.281) 1,055

Net cash provided by operating activities ...........cococevrvvenrnns 333.862 _ 354,136 296.155

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of facilities, net of cash acquired and

purchase price adjustments...........cooevrriveviiviiinnenenecnens (126,477) (300,179) (100,894)
Additions to property, plant and equipment ...............cevne. (165,571) (116,047) (73,473)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment ......... 1,260 41,074 3,357
(Increase) decrease in funds held by trustee ...........cooeenee. (29,316) (395) 884
Proceeds from sale of minority interests in

consolidated entities ......cocvvereririneiicniine s - 32.000 -

Net cash used in investing activities .........cccvovmeerercveriins ($320,104) (8343.547) ($170.126)

See accompanying notes.
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HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(in thousands)

Year ended September 30,

2003 2002 2001
Cash flows from financing activities: ‘
Proceeds from long-term borrowings .........ccoceevevveveerinieniinnenene $ 575,805 $479,314 $ 35,591
Principal payments on debt ..........ccovveeerieeneriennneirense e (318,318) (263,482) (129,098)
Purchase of treasury stock, at COSt....ovmirrininiiciiinii s - (186,385) (2,780)
Proceeds from issuance of common Stock .......ocovevvverveererveeeenn. 21,264 14,659 25,272
Payment of interest on debenfures ...........cccocviivivinenccncneennn, (1,222) (1,222) (1,222)
Payment of dividends............cooviiiiiini i (19,685) - -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ..........c.......... 257.844 42.884 (72.237)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents............c.ococerveveeieennan, 271,602 53,473 53,792
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year .........cococeevinnneee 123,736 70,263 16471
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year .........c.ccooovvvvvviierrecnenn. $ 395,338 $123.736 $70.263
Supplemental schedule of noncash
investing and financing activities:
Fair value of assets acquired (including cash) .....c..cocecerirnnnns $ 132,419 $ 292,456 $ 63,049
Consideration: Cash paid ..........ccecrermeremrnrcnnnseeccrnae 119.136 291.435 59.436
Liabilities assumed .........ccoco.evvveverieveiineeninnene $ 13283 s 1,021 $ 3613

See accompanying notes.
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HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2003

1. Business and summary of significant accounting policies

Health Management Associates, Inc. (the “Company”), through its subsidiary companies, substantially all of which
are wholly-owned, provides health care services to patients in owned and leased facilities primarily in the southeast and
southwest United States. The Company consistently applies the following significant accounting policies:

a. Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries, all of which are
controlled by the Company through majority voting control. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated.

b.  Cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with a maturity of less than three months to be cash
equivalents. The Company's cash equivalents consist principally of investment grade instruments.

¢. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost and include major expenditures which increase their values or
extend their useful lives. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method based on estimated
useful lives. Estimated useful lives for buildings and improvements range from twenty to forty years and for equipment
range from three to ten years. Leaseholds are amortized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the respective leases.
Depreciation expense was $105.0 million, $91.9 million and $77.3 million for the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively.

d.  Excess aof cost over acquired net assets, net and deferred charges and other assets

Prior to October 1, 2001, excess of cost over acquired net assets (goodwill) had been amortized on a straight-line
basis over lives ranging from three to twenty-five years. As of October 1, 2001, the Company adopted the provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (“SFAS No. 1427).
SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives no longer be amortized, but instead
be tested for impairment at least annually in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142. The transition provisions of
SFAS No. 142 required the completion of a transitional impairment test within six months of adoption of SFAS No. 142.
The Company tests goodwill annually for impairment. There was no goodwill impairment for the years ended September
30, 2003, 2002 or 2001. During the year ended September 30, 2001, the Company recorded $9.2 million of goodwill
amortization expense which reduced earnings by $5.5 million (net of tax expense of approximately $3.7 million) or
approximately $0.02 per share on a diluted basis.

Deferred charges and other assets consist principally of deferred financing costs and certain non-productive assets
held for sale. The financing costs are being amortized over the life of the related debt. The accumulated amortization of
deferred financing costs was $2.5 million and $4.5 million at September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Certain long-lived assets may become impaired, requiring a write down of the assets to their estimated fair values,
The Company periodically reviews future cash flows related to these assets and, if necessary, will reduce such assets to
their estimated fair values.

e. Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States requires management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. Business and summary of significant accounting pblicies (continued)

[ Net patient service revenue and cost of revenue

The Company recognizes gross patient service charges on the accrual basis in the period that services are rendered.
Net patient service revenue represents gross patient service charges less provisions for contractual adjustments.
Approximately 57%, 59% and 59% of gross patient service charges for the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively, related to services rendered to patients covered by the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Payments for
services rendered to patients covered by these programs are generally less than billed charges. Provisions for contractual
adjustments are made to reduce the charges to these patients to estimated receipts based upon the programs' principles of
payment/reimbursement (either prospectively determined or retrospectively determined costs). Final settlements under
these programs are subject to administrative review and audit, and provision is currently made for adjustments which may
result. Such adjustments were not material to the Company’s operations for the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002, and
2001. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are extremely complex and subject to
interpretation. As a result, there is a possibility that recorded estimates may change in the future. Revenues and receivables
from government programs are significant to the Company’s operations, but the Company does not believe that there are
significant credit risks associated with these government programs.

The Company grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local to the area where the
hospitals reside and are insured under third-party payor agreements. The Company does not charge interest on accounts
receivable. The credit risk for non-government program concentrations of receivables is limited due to the large number of
insurance companies and other payors that provide payments for services. Accounts receivable are reported net of an
estimated allowance for uncollectible accounts in the accompanying financial statements.

Estimates for contractual allowances under managed care health plans are based primarily on the payment terms of
contractual arrangements such as predetermined rates per diagnosis, per diem rates or discounted fee for service rates.

Net patient service revenue is presented net of provisions for contractual adjustments and other allowances of
$5,427 million, $4,121 million and $2,981 million for the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, in
the accompanying consolidated statements of income. In the ordinary course of business, the Company renders services in
its facilities to patients who are financially unable to pay for their hospital care. The value of these services to patients who
are unable to pay is not material to the Company's consolidated results of operations.

The Company’s presentation of costs and expenses does not differentiate between cost of revenues and non-cost of
revenues because substantially all of the Company’s costs and expenses are related to providing health care services.
Furthermore, the Company believes that the natural classification of expenses is a more meaningful presentation of the
Company’s cost of doing business.

g Accounts receivable and provision for doubtful accounts

The collection of receivables from third party payors and patients is the Company’s primary source of cash and is
critical to its operating performance. The primary collection risks relate to uninsured patient accounts and patient accounts
for which the primary insurance payer has paid, but patient responsibility amounts (generally deductibles and co-payments)
remain outstanding. Provisions for doubtful accounts are estimated based primarily upon the age of the patients’ account,
the patients’ economic ability to pay and the effectiveness of collection efforts. Accounts receivable balances are routinely
reviewed in conjunction with historical collection rates and other economic conditions which might ultimately affect the
coliectibility of patient accounts when considering the adequacy of the amounts recorded as allowances for doubtful
accounts. Accounts receivable are written off after collection efforts have been followed in accordance with the
Company’s policies. Accounts written off as uncollectible are deducted from the allowance for uncollectible accounts while
subsequent recoveries are netted against provision for doubtful accounts expense. Significant changes in payer mix,
business office operations, economic conditions or trends in federal and state governmental health care coverage could
affect the Company’s collection of accounts receivable, cash flows and results of operations.
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1. Business and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
h.  Professional liability insurance claims

Accruals for self-insured professional liability risks are determined using asserted and unasserted claims identified
by the Company’s incident reporting system and actuarially-determined estimates based both on industry and the
Company’s historical loss payment patterns and have been discounted to their present value using a discount rate of 4.5%.
Although the ultimate settlement of these accruals may vary from these estimates, the Company believes that the amounts
provided in the consolidated financial statements are adequate. If actual payments of claims exceed the Company’s
projected estimates of claims, the insurance accruals could be materially adversely affected.

i.  Funds held by trustee

Funds held by trustee consist primarily of investments held by the Company’s insurance subsidiary to be used to
pay losses and loss expenses of the insurance subsidiary. The current and long-term classification of these funds is based
on the projected timing of the corresponding professional liability claims payments. These funds are primarily invested in
short-term mutual and money market funds.

J. Minority interests in consolidated entities

The consolidated financial statements include all assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of majority-owned, but
less than 100% owned, entities controlled by the Company. Accordingly, the Company has recorded minority interests in
the earnings and equity of such entities.

k. Income taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (“SFAS No. 109”).
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined based upon the difference between financial reporting and tax
bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the
differences are expected to reverse (see Note 5). Management must make estimates in recording the Company’s provision
for income taxes, including determination of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities and any valuation allowance that
might be required against the deferred tax asset. Management believes that future income will enable the Company to
realize these benefits in the future. Therefore, the Company has not recorded a valuation allowance against the deferred tax
asset.

The Company operates in multiple states with varying tax laws. The Company is subject to both federal and state
audits of tax returns. Management must make estimates to determine that tax reserves are adequate to cover any potential
audit adjustments. Actual results of audits, if any, could vary from the estimates recorded by management.

I Earnings per share

Earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of common and common equivalent shares (stock
options and convertible debt) outstanding during the periods presented. (see Note 7)
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1. Business and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
m. Segment reporting

The Company’s business of providing health care services to patients in owned and leased facilities comprises a
single reportable operating segment under SFAS No. 131, Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information.

n. Guarantees

The Company has committed to provide certain financial assistance pursuant to recruiting agreements with various
physicians practicing in the communities that the Company serves. In consideration for a physician relocating to one of its
communities in need of the physician’s services, the Company may advance money to the physician in order for such
physician to establish his or her practice. The Company had committed to advance approximately $13.3 million as of
September 30, 2003. The actual amount of such commitments is dependent upon the financial results of each physician’s
private practice during the guarantee period, which generally does not exceed twelve months. The net amounts advanced
under these recruiting agreements at the end of the individuals guarantee period are considered loans and are generally
forgiven pro rata over a period of 36 months contingent upon the physician continuing to practice in the respective
community. The Company expenses these advances on a straight-line basis as they are paid over the guarantee period.

0. Stock compensation

The Company has elected to follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees (“APB 25"). Under APB 25, since the exercise price of the Company's employee stock options equals the
market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant, no compensation expense is recognized. As a result, pro forma
disclosure of alternative fair value accounting is required under SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,
utilizing an option valuation model.

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to expense over the
options' vesting period. The Company's pro forma information is as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

A Year Ended

September 30.
2003 2002 2001
Net income, as reported............cc.oevernnen. $ 283,424 $246,436 $ 194,978
Deduct: Total stock-based employee
compensation expense determined under
fair value based method for all awards,
net of related tax effects........................ (10,206) _(11,175) _(10.441)
Pro forma net inCome..............ccvveveninen. $273218 $235261 §$184537
Pro forma earnings per share:
Basic —as reported.................. $ 119 § 102 § .80
Basic — pro forma................... $ 114 S 97 % 75
Diluted — as reported................ $§ 113 § 97 $ 76
Diluted — pro forma.................. $ 108 §% 91 % 72
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1. Business and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

The fair value for these options was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
with the following weighted-average assumptions for 2003, 2002 and 2001: (i) risk-free interest rate of 2.34%, 4.60%, and
5.51%; (ii) .4% dividend yield for 2003, no dividends for 2002 and 2001 ; (iii) volatility factor of the expected market price
of the Company's common stock of .529, .536, and .489; (iv) and weighted-average expected lives of the options of 5, § and
7 years. The weighted-average fair value of options granted in 2003, 2002, and 2001 was $8.59, $10.23, and $9.59,
respectively. ‘

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options
which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of
highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility. Because the Company's employee stock
options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management's opinion, the existing models do not necessarily
provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its employee stock options.

p. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 45,
Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others, an Interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 57, and 107 and Rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34 (“FIN 45™).
FIN 45 elaborated on the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its
obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at the
inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. The initial
recognition and measurement provisions of this interpretation are applicable, on a prospective basis, to guarantees issued or
modified after December 31, 2002. The Company’s adoption of FIN 45 did not have a material effect on its consolidated
financial statements. (see Note 1.n.)

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an
interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51 (“FIN 46™). FIN 46 requires the consolidation of entities in which an
enterprise absorbs a majority of the entity’s expected losses, receives a majority of the entity’s expected residual returns, or
both, as a result of ownership, contractual or other financial interests in the entity. FIN 46 also requires disclosure about
variable interest entities that a company is not required to consolidate, but in which it has a significant variable interest. The
consolidation requirements of FIN 46 apply immediately to variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003 and to
existing entities in the first fiscal year or interim period ending after December 15, 2003. Certain of the disclosure
requirements apply to all financial statements issued after January 31, 2003, regardiess of when the variable interest entity
was established. The Company’s adoption of FIN 46 is not expected to have a material effect on its consolidated financial
statements.

On January 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS No. 145 Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections (“SFAS No0.145”). SFAS No.145 rescinds SFAS No. 4
Reporting Gains and Losses From Extinguishment of Debt. SFAS No. 145 requires any gains or losses on extinguishment
of debt that do not meet the criteria in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 30 Reporting the Results of Operations —
Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring
Events and Transactions for classification as an extraordinary item shall be classified in income from operations. The
Company incurred a writeoff of deferred financing costs related to the early extinguishment of debt in the fourth quarter of
the year ended September 30, 2003. This writeoff of deferred financing costs loss was recorded in income from operations
pursuant to the requirements of SFAS No. 145,
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1. Business and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—an amendment
of FASB Statement No. 123 (“SFAS No. 148”). SFAS No. 148 amends SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure requirements of
SFAS No. 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of
accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. SFAS No. 148 is
effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2002. The Company has elected not to change to the
fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation, therefore, the adoption of SFAS No. 148
did not have an impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position or consolidated results of operations.

q. Reclassifications

Certain amounts have been reclassified in prior years to conform with the current year presentation.
2. Acquisitions and dispositions

During the year ended September 30, 2003, the Company acquired certain assets of four hospitals through
purchase agreements for $119.1 million in cash and the assumption of $13.3 million in liabilities. During the year ended
September 30, 2002, the Company acquired certain assets of two hospitals and the stock of three hospitals through purchase
agreements for $226.2 million in cash and the assumption of $1.0 million in liabilities. During the year ended September
30, 2001, the Company acquired certain assets of two hospitals through purchase agreements for $59.4 million in cash and
the assumption of $3.6 million in liabilities, The foregoing acquisitions were accounted for by the Company using the
purchase method of accounting. The allocation of the purchase price was determined by the Company at acquisition based
upon available information and is subject to further refinement.

As part of a group purchase of four hospitals during the year ended September 30, 2002, the Company acquired
one acute care hospital and sold it on the same day for $40.0 million in cash.

The operating results of the above hospitals have been included in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income from the date of each respective hospital’s acquisition. The following unaudited pro forma combined summary of
operations of the Company for each of the years in the three year period ended September 30, 2003 give effect to the
operation of the hospitals purchased in the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 as if the acquisitions had
occurred as of October 1, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively: '

Year Ended September 390,
2003 2002 2001
(in millions, except per share data)
Net patient SErvice FEVENUE........coverrvrrrreerereernrrrnrirercssennens $ 2,700.7 $ 2,559.0 $ 2,301.5
NELINCOME 11viveereeeieieieeeterrereieise st erseassners e es et enesesinee s s $ 2774 $ 2422 $ 1819
Net income per share - Basic............cccooovveevieriiceiienrnenns . $ 1.16 $ .99 $ 74
Net income per share - Diluted ....ooocvoveeiiiiecirencen e, $ 1.10 b 94 3 71
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill are as follows:
September 30,
2003 2002
(in thousands)
Balance at beginning of the year...................... $342,113 $ 251,315
Goodwill acquired during the year ................ 43,697 98,861
Impairment [0SSeS ....c.occvrverirvecerirerieniarene - -
Goodwill written off related to disposals....... - -
Adjustments to purchase price allocation....... » 12,015 (8.063)
Balance atend of year...............ccevevveeee. $ 397,825 $ 342,113
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3. Long-term debt

The Company's long-term debt consists of the following:

September 30,
2003 2002
(in thousands)
Revolving Credit AGreements (2) .....ccoooveererevmeriners e eveernireesesereens $ - 5 -
Zero-Coupon Convertible Senior Subordinated Debentures due 2020 at
3%, net of discount of $184.9 million at September 30, 2002 (b).... - 303,274

Zero-Coupon Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2022
at 0.875%, net of discount of $48.8 million and $51.2 million at

September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively (b).......c.ooiiiiiiinilL 281,211 278,757
1.50% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2023 (b)................. 575,000 -
Mortgage notes, secured by real and personal property (¢) .....co..vveeene... 10,345 10,417

Various mortgage and installment notes and debentures, some
secured by equipment, at interest rates ranging from

prime plus 1% to 6%, payable through 2009 ............cceeievecririinnenns 34,283 28,368
Industrial Revenue Bond ISSUE .....cccccioiiiiiiiie e evn e e s e 4,770 5,190
Capitalized lease obligations (se€ NOte 4) .......cvcevrveerieierirerinieririerens e e 28,551 31.762

934,160 657,768
LSS CUTTENE MNATUTITIES ..vvvivvieeieiiiie s ereeeeeiieeeireeerene e evbeesstaresanreseraseene et aes 9.447 7.609

$924,713  $650,159

a. Revolving Credit Agreements

The Company currently has a 5-year $450 million Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) due November 30,
2004. The Credit Agreement is a term loan agreement which permits the Company to borrow under an unsecured revolving
credit loan at any time through November 30, 2004, at which time the agreement terminates and all outstanding amounts
become due and payable. The Company may choose a Base Rate Loan (prime interest rate} or a Eurodoliar Rate Loan. The
interest rate for a Eurodollar Rate Loan is currently the LIBOR interest rate plus 1.00 percent, and will increase or decrease
in relation to a change in the Company’s credit rating. Monthly or quarterly interest payments are required depending on
the type of loan chosen by the Company. The interest rate at September 30, 2003 and 2002 was 2.1% and 2.8%,
respectively. As of September 30, 2003 and 2002, there were no amounts outstanding under the Credit Agreement. In
October 2003, the Company borrowed $275.0 million under the Credit Agreement to partially finance the acquisition of
certain hospitals. (see Note 12)

The Company also has a $§15 million unsecured revolving credit commitment with a bank. The $15 million credit
commitment is a working capital commitment which is tied to the Company’s cash management system and renews
annually on November 1. Currently, interest on any outstanding balance is payable monthly at a fluctuating rate not to
exceed the bank’s prime rate less .25%. The interest rate at September 30, 2003 and 2002 was 3.75% and 4.5%,
respectively. As of September 30, 2003 and 2002, there were no amounts outstanding under this credit commitment.

In addition, the Company is obligated to pay certain commitment fees based upon amounts available for borrowing
during the terms of the credit agreements described above.

The credit agreements described above contain covenants which, without prior consent of the banks, limit certain
activities, including those relating to mergers, consolidations and the Company’s ability to secure additional indebtedness,
make guarantees, grant security interests and declare dividends. The Company must also maintain minimum levels of
consolidated tangible net worth, debt service coverage and interest coverage. At September 30, 2003 and 2002, the
Company was in compliance with these covenants.
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3. Long-term debt (Continued)

b.  Subordinated Convertible Notes and Debentures

On August 16, 2000, the Company sold $488.8 million face value of Zero-Coupon Subordinated Convertible
Debentures due 2020 (the “Debentures”) for gross proceeds of $287.7 million. The Debentures were to mature on August
16, 2020, unless converted or redeemed earlier. The Debentures were convertible into the Company’s common stock at a
conversion rate of 29.5623 shares of common stock for each $1,000 principal amount of the Debentures. Interest on the
Debentures was payable semiannually in arrears on August 16 and February 16 of each year at a rate of .25% per year on
the principal amount at maturity. The rate of cash interest and accrual of original issue discount represented a yield to
maturity of 3% per year calculated from August 16, 2000. The Company redeemed all of the Debentures on August 16,
2003 for $310.8 million in cash, the accreted value of the debentures. A writeoff of $4.9 million for the unamortized,
remaining deferred financing costs related to the Debenture issuance was recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003.

On January 28, 2002, the Company sold $330.0 million in face value of Zero-Coupon Convertible Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2022 (the “2022 Notes™) for gross proceeds of approximately $277.0 million. The 2022 Notes are
the Company’s general unsecured obligations and are subordinated in right of payment to the Company’s existing and
future senior indebtedness that is not, by its terms, expressly subordinated or equal in right of payment to the 2022 Notes.
The 2023 Notes, discussed below, rank equally with the 2022 Notes. The 2022 Notes mature on January 28, 2022, unless
converted or redeemed earlier. Upon the occurrence of certain events, the 2022 Notes are convertible into the Company’s
common stock at a conversion rate of 32.1644 shares of common stock for each $1,000 principal amount of the 2022 Notes
(subject to adjustment in certain events). The equivalent number of shares associated with the conversion of the 2022
Notes become dilutive (and thus included in the Company’s earnings per share calculation) when the Company’s common
stock trades at a level of $31.33 for at least 20 trading days of the 30 trading days prior to the conversion or when the 2022
Notes otherwise become convertible. The accrual of the original issue discount on the 2022 Notes represents a yield to
maturity of 0.875% per year calculated from January 28, 2002, excluding any contingent interest which could be payable
under the terms of the 2022 Notes.

Holders may require the Company to purchase all or a portion of their 2022 Notes on January 28, 2005, January
28, 2007, January 28, 2012 and January 28, 2017 for a purchase price per note of $862.07, $877.25, $916.40 and $957.29,
respectively, plus accrued and unpaid interest to each purchase date. The Company is required to pay cash for all 2022
Notes so purchased on January 28, 2005. The Company may choose to pay the purchase price in cash or common stock or
a combination of cash and common stock for purchases on or after January 28, 2007. In addition, if the Company
undergoes certain types of fundamental changes on or before January 28, 2007, each holder may require the Company to
purchase all or a portion of such holder’s 2022 Notes. The Company may redeem all or a portion of the 2022 Notes at any
time on or after January 28, 2007. The Company has reserved approximately 10.6 million shares of common stock for
issuance in the event the 2022 Notes are converted.

On July 29 and August 8, 2003, the Company sold an aggregate of $575.0 million in face value of 1.50%
Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2023 (the “2023 Notes”). The 2023 Notes were sold at their principal face
amount, plus accrued interest from July 29, 2003. The sale of the 2023 Notes resulted in net proceeds to the Company of
approximately $563.5 million. The Company used approximately $310.8 million of the proceeds to redeem all of its
Debentures in August 2003. The 2023 Notes are general unsecured obligations and are subordinated in right of payment to
the Company’s existing and future senior indebtedness that is not expressly subordinated or equal in right of payment to the
2023 Notes. The 2022 Notes, which are discussed above, rank equally with the 2023 Notes. The 2023 Notes mature on
August 1, 2023, unless they are converted or redeemed earlier. Upon the occurrence of certain events, the 2023 Notes
become convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock at a conversion rate of 36.5097 shares of common stock
for each $1,000 principal amount of 2023 Notes converted (subject to adjustment in certain events). The equivalent number
of shares associated with any conversion of the 2023 Notes will become dilutive (and thus included in the Company’s
earnings per share calculation) when the Company’s common stock trades at a level of $36.097 for at least 20 out of 30
trading days prior to the conversion of the 2023 Notes or the 2023 Notes otherwise become convertible. Upon certain
conditions, contingent interest could be paid by the Company.
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3. Long-term debt (Continued)

Holders may require the Company to purchase all or a portion of their 2023 Notes on August 1, 2006, August 1,
2008, August 1, 2013 and August 1, 2018 for a purchase price per note equal to 100% of its principal face amount, plus
accrued but unpaid interest. The Company is required to pay cash for all 2023 Notes so purchased on August 1, 2006. The
Company may choose to pay the purchase price in cash or common stock or a combination of cash and common stock for
purchases on or after August 1, 2008. In addition, if the Company undergoes certain types of fundamental changes on or
before August 1, 2008, each holder of the 2023 Notes may require the Company to purchase all or a portion of such
holder’s 2023 Notes. The Company may choose to pay the purchase price in cash or common stock or a combination of
cash and common stock. In addition, the Company may redeem all or a portion of the 2023 Notes at any time on or after
August 5, 2008 for a redemption price per note equal to its principal face amount, plus accrued but unpaid interest. The
Company may choose to pay the redemption price in cash or common stock or a combination of cash and common stock.
The Company has reserved approximately 21.0 million shares of common stock for issuance in the event the 2023 Notes
are converted.

¢. Mortgage Notes

The Company had three mortgage notes outstanding at September 30, 2003 and four mortgage notes outstanding at
September 30, 2002. The mortgage notes are secured by all the real and personal property related to certain Company
facilities with an aggregate net book value of $53.3 million and $64.5 million at September 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The mortgage notes are payable in various installments with maturity dates ranging through 2007 and carry
interest rates ranging from prime (4.0% and 4.75% at September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively) to 11.5%.

As of September 30, 2003 and 2002, the quoted market price for the 2022 Notes was approximately $293.7 million
and $287.9 million, respectively. As of September 30, 2003, the quoted market price for the 2023 Notes was approximately
$603.8 million. The fair value of the other debt included above, based on available market information, approximates its
carrying value.

Maturities of long-term debt and capital leases for the next five fiscal years and thereafter are as follows (in
thousands):

2004 $ 9,447
2005 8,785
2006 7,936
2007 16,143
2008 4,280
Thereafter $ 887,569

The Company paid interest of $28.1 million, $7.4 million, and $14.9 million for the years ended September 30,
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Capitalized interest was $.6 million for the year ended September 30, 2003. There was
no capitalized interest for the years ended September 30, 2002 and 2001.
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4. Leases
The Company leases real estate properties, equipment and vehicles under cancelable and non-cancelable leases.

Future minimum operating and capital lease payments, including amounts relating to leased hospitals, are as follows at
September 30, 2003 (in thousands):

Operating Capital
Real Real Property Real Property

September 30, Property Master Leases Equipment and Eguipment Total
2004 ..o, $ 7,747 $4,842 $25,779 $ 5,724 $44,092
2005 e 7,094 4,938 18,267 5,270 35,569
2006 ..o 6,018 4,985 11,944 4,599 27,546
2007 oo, 5,509 5,034 6,465 3,442 20,450
2008 ..o 4,876 5,084 2,884 2,950 15,794
Thereafter .........cccoevveennnn. 20,184 41.445 977 34,020 96.626
Total minimum payments $51,428 $66.328 $66,316 56,005 $240,077
Less amounts

Tepresenting INtETeSt.........oivvviviiiii i (27.454)
Present value of minimum

1€ASE PAYITIENILS .vovveree vt eteeeitetet ettt et ettt et ie e e e $28,551

The Company entered into several real property master leases with certain non-affiliated entities in the ordinary course of
business during the year ended September 30, 2003. These leases are for buildings on or near hospital property that the
Company subleases to third parties. Amounts received as rental income are offset against the expense. The Company has
not engaged in any transaction with an unconsolidated entity that is reasonably likely to affect liquidity.

The following summarizes amounts related to assets leased by the Company under capital leases (in thousands):

September 30,

2003 2002
COStu ettt s sttt e a et sn et saase b eab s $80,615 $76,819
Less accumulated amortization .......coeoe. o vevvesenerennes (21.674) (16.729)
Net Dok VAIUE .....ocevreieirereeri et sener e $58,941 $£60.090

The Company entered into capitalized leases for equipment of $2.9 million, $5.9 million and $4.0 million for the
years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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5. Income taxes
The significant components of the provision for income taxes are as follows (in thousands):

Year ended September 30,

: 2003 2002 2001
Federal: ' ,
CUITENE oot eera e srnee e e e e $125,706 $144,017 $114,109
Deferted ..o s 33,299 (11.322) {6.731)
Total Federal .......c.cocoooviiivieiiinniiceeece e 159,005 132,695 107,378
State: ,
CUITEIL ocovviieie ettt eseeirreree e srrre e e et sesssnbareseses 12,548 28,794 19,823
Deferted ..ottt e 3,759 (2.263) (1,228)
Total SLALE ..o e 16,307 26,531 18,595
TOtal oot e $175312  $159.226 $125,973

An analysis of the Company's effective income tax rates is as follows:

Year ended September 30,

2003 2002 2001
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

Statutory income

TAX TBIE croereeeeccvceviecreeesveeeeee e asereaes $160,558 35.0% $141,982 35.0% $112,333 35.0%
State income taxes, net

of Federal benefit .............occvvveeennnn. 16,077 35 15,824 3.9 12,628 39
Other items (each less than 5%

of computed tax) ......cooreevvrenrrennenns (1.323) _(.3) 1.420 A 1,012 4

TOtal .o 175312 38.2%  $159,226 39.3% 8125973 39.3%

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the Federal and state deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are comprised of the following:

September 30,

2003 2002
(in thousands)

Deferred income tax assets:

Allowance for doubtful accounts $22,152 $ 27,417

Accrued liabilities 17,435 14,645

Seif insurance liability risks 14,547 17,505

Other 6.932 3,606

61,066 63,173

Less: Valuation allowance - -
Net deferred income tax assets 61,066 63,173
Deferred income tax liabilities:

Depreciable assets (66,675) (38,441)

Accrued liabilities and other (13.348) (6,632)
Net deferred income tax (liability) asset ($18.957) $18.100

SFAS No. 109 requires a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets reported if, based on the weight of
the evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. After
consideration of all the evidence, both positive and negative, management has determined that a valuation allowance is not
necessary as of September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Income taxes paid (net of refunds) amounted to $174.7 million, $139.7 million, and $126.1 million for the years
ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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6. Retirement plans

The Company has a defined contribution retirement plan which covers substantially all eligible employees at its
hospitals and the corporate office. This plan includes a provision for the Company to match a portion of employee
contributions. Total retirement program expense under this plan was $6.7 million, $6.0 million and $4.5 million for the
years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

In addition, the Company maintains a supplemental retirement plan for certain Company executives which
provides for predetermined annual payments to these executives after the attainment of age 62, if still employed by the
Company at that time. These payments generally continue for the remainder of the executive’s life. (see Note 10)

7. Earnings per share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share (in thousands, except per share data):

Year ended September 30,

2003 2002 2001
Numerator:
Numerator for basic earnings
per share - net income $283,424  $246,436  $194,978
Effect of interest expense on convertible debt 4.900 5.419 5,346

Numerator for diluted

earnings per share 288,324  $251.855  $200,324

Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings

per share-weighted average shares 239,086 241,298 244,425
Effect of dilutive securities:
Employee stock options 4,131 4,894 5,477
Convertible debt 12,667 14.449 14,449
Denominator for diluted
earnings per share 255,884 260,641 264,35]
Basic earnings per share § 1.19 § 102 § .80
Diluted earnings per share § 1.13 $ 97 § 6

Outstanding options to purchase 2.7 million, 2.8 million, and 1.2 million shares of the Company’s common stock
were not included in the computation of earnings per share for the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002, and 2001,
respectively, because the options’ exercise prices were greater than the average market price of the Company’s common
stock.
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HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. Stockholders’ equity

The Company has a 1991 Stock Option Plan, a 1993 Stock Option Plan and a 1996 Executive Incentive
Compensation Plan for the granting of options to its key employees to purchase common stock. All options granted have
10 year terms and vest and become fully exercisable at the end of either 3 or 4 years of continued employment.

Pertinent information covering the plans is summarized below:

Price Weighted‘
Shares Range Average Price
(in thousands)

Balance at September 30, 2000 21,833 $1.24 -$21.63 $10.87
Granted 2,804 16.60 - 21.25 16.62
Exercised (2,553) 1.24 - 13.00 9.99
Terminated (1.506) 12.13 - 21.63 13.38

Balance at September 30, 2001 20,578 2.07 - 21.63 11.59
Granted 1,808 19.10 - 19.95 19.93
Exercised (2,847) 2.07 - 19.63 441
Terminated (320) 8.25 - 21.63 18.17

Balance at September 30, 2002 19,219 207 - 21.63 13.33
Granted 2,023 18.56 18.56
Exercised (1,490) 2.07 - 21.63 12.22
Terminated (417) 12.13- 21.63 17.77

Balance at September 30, 2003 19,335 $4.49 -$21.63 $13.89

Stock options exercisable at September 30, 2003, 2002, and 2001 were 14,336, 14,073, and 15,144 at weighted average
exercise prices of $12.51, $12.14, and $10.35, respectively.

The following table summarizes information concerning currently outstanding and exercisable options:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Range of Remaining Average Average
Exercise Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Prices Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price
$ 449-512.13 5,166,000 4.0 $8.87 4,737,000 $8.58
$12.72-%17.13 9,471,000 5.1 $13.74 8,184,000 $13.30
$18.56 - $21.63 4,698,000 8.2 $19.71 1,415,000 $21.13
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HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Stockholders' equity (continued)

At September 30, 2003, there were approximately 11.2 million shares of common stock reserved for future
issuance under the plans. In addition, the Company has granted options for shares of its common stock to seven non-
employee directors. At September 30, 2003, there were approximately 170,000 options outstanding at exercise prices
ranging from $4.49 to $21.63 per share, expiring in 2004 through 2013.

The Company also has a Stock Incentive Plan for corporate officers and management staff. This plan provides for
the awarding of additional compensation to key personnel in the form of Company common stock. Under this plan, stock
will be issued to the grantee four years after the date of grant, provided the individual is still an employee of the Company.
At September 30, 2003, there were approximately 450,000 shares reserved under the plan, for which the Company has
recorded $2.9 million, $2.9 million and $2.0 million of compensation expense for the years ended September 30, 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

In September 2001, the Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program to repurchase up to 5,000,000
shares of the Company’s common stock. On January 29, 2002, the Company announced that it had completed the stock
repurchase program by purchasing a total of 5,000,000 shares of its common stock at an average purchase price of $19.29
per share.

In February 2002, the Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program to repurchase up to 5,000,000
shares of the Company’s common stock. On August 8, 2002, the Company announced that it had completed the stock
repurchase program by purchasing a total of 5,000,000 shares of its common stock at an average purchase price of $18.54
per share.

At September 30, 2003 and 2002, there were approximately 10.6 million shares of common stock reserved for

future issuance upon the conversion of the Company’s 2022 Notes. At September 30, 2003, there were approximately 21.0
million shares of common stock reserved for future issuance upon the conversion of the Company’s 2023 Notes.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9.  Professional liability risks

Through September 30, 2002, the Company was insured for professional liability risks under a “claims-made”
basis policy, whereby each claim was covered up to $1.0 million per occurrence, subject to a $100,000 deductible (with an
annual deductible cap of $6.1 million). Liabilities in excess of these amounts were covered through a combination of limits
provided by commercial insurance companies and a self-insurance program.

Accruals for self-insured professional liability risks are determined using asserted and unasserted claims identified
by our incident reporting system and actuarially-determined estimates based both on industry and our own historical loss
payment patterns and have been discounted to their present value using a discount rate of 4.5%. Although the ultimate
settlement of these accruals may vary from these estimates, the Company believes that the amounts provided in the
consolidated financial statements are adequate. If actual payments of claims exceed the Company’s projected estimates of
claims, the insurance accruals could be materially adversely affected.

Effective October 1, 2002, in response to difficulty in obtaining primary insurance from commercial companies at
reasonable rates, the Company formed a wholly-owned insurance subsidiary in order to self-insure a greater portion of its
primary professional and general liability risk. The captive subsidiary insures risk up to $1.0 million per claim and $3.0
million in the aggregate per hospital and substantially all of the Company’s approximately 165 employed physicians, and
further acts as an excess insurer for all hospitals in combination with three commercial insurance companies. If actual
payments of claims exceed projected estimates of claims, the Company’s insurance accruals for the insurance subsidiary
could be materially adversely affected.

10. Non-cash charge

The amount recorded as a non-cash charge of $17.0 million during the year ended September 30, 2001 consists of
$13.6 million for the present value of the future costs of retirement benefits granted to the Company’s chairman pursuant to
an agreement which became effective January 2, 2001 and $3.4 million for the write down of two hospital assets held for
sale in conjunction with their respective replacement. The two hospital assets that were written down were facilities for
which replacement facilities were completed in June 1999 and March 2000. The charge for the write down of these
facilities was recorded in the Company’s quarter ended March 31, 2001. During the period between completion of the new
facilities and the recording of the charge, the Company was in the process of evaluating its options for the sale of the
facilities that had been replaced. During the quarter ended March 31, 2001, the Company finalized its plans for the old
facilities and obtained the information necessary to estimate the loss on sale.

11. Commitments

A number of hospital renovation and/or expansion projects were underway at September 30, 2003. None of these
projects are individually significant nor do they represent a significant commitment in total at September 30, 2003. In
addition, the Company plans to replace three of its existing hospitals (Brooksville, Florida; Carlisle, Pennsylvania; and
Lancaster, Pennsylvania) and build one new hospital (Naples, Florida) over the next four years. As of September 30, 2003,
the construction cost of these four hospitals is expected to be approximately $190.0 million. Regulatory approval, subject
to appeal, to begin construction on all these hospitals has been granted. The Company is also obligated to construct a new
facility at its Monroe, Georgia location within the next five years. The cost for this hospital has not yet been determined.
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12. Swubsequent events

On October 28, 2003, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.02 per share of
the Company’s common stock payable on December 1, 2003 to stockholders of record at the close of business on
November 7, 2003.

On November 1, 2003, the Company acquired five non-urban hospitals from Tenet Healthcare Corporation. The
five hospitals included Seven Rivers Community Hospital, a 128-bed hospital located in Crystal River, Florida; Harton
Regional Medical Center, a 137-bed hospital located in Tullahoma, Tennessee; University Medical Center, a two-campus
257-bed hospital located in Lebanon, Tennessee; Three Rivers Healthcare, a two-campus 423-bed hospital located in Poplar
Bluff, Missouri; and Twin Rivers Regional Medical Center, a 116-bed hospital located in Kennett, Missouri. The aggregate
cost of this acquisition was approximately $515.0 million. This transaction was financed through a combination of cash on
hand and through borrowing $275.0 million under the Company’s Credit Agreement.
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13. Quarterly data (unaudited)
Years ended September 30, 2003 and 2002
(in thousands, except per share data)
Quarter Year Ended
First Second Third Fourth September 30,

2003
Net patient

service revenue..................  $609,419 $646,472 $647,127 $657,558 $2,560,576
Income before income

TAXES. i iveiiee e e eraeeaneas $ 97,784 $127,989 $124,482 $108,481 $ 458,736
Net inCome....cocoeevvvvvvinnnn.nn $ 59,656 $ 78,065 $ 75,921 $ 69,782 $ 283,424
Net income per share:

BasiCocvvveenineinnnnn, $ 25 $ 33 $ 32 $ .29 $ 1.19
Diluted...........ovveene $ 24 8 31 $ .30 $ 28 $ 1.13
Weighted average

number of shares:

BasiC...ccovvieneininnns 238,589 238,673 239,108 239,965 239,086
Diluted.................... 257,255 256,993 257,379 251,863 255,884

2002
Net patient

Service revenue.................. $495,821 $579,948 $592,476 $594,356 $2,262,601
Income before income..........

17:3 ¢SO $ 83,072 $113,965 $109,665 $ 98,960 $ 405,662
Net inCome....ovevevvvvveininnnnn. $ 50,466 $ 69,236 $ 66,616 $ 60,118 $ 246,436
Net income per share:

BasiC..cccvvivennieniinnns $ 21 $ 29 $ .28 $ 25 $ 1.02
Diluted....cc..cvevvennen $ 20 $ 27 $ .26 $ 24 $ 97
Weighted average

number of shares:

BasiC...oooviiiiniiiniins 243,649 241,259 241,227 239,052 241,298

Diluted.................... 263,365 260,661 260,821 257,740 260,641




Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

(a)  Evaluation Of Disclosure Controls And Procedures. Our President and Chief Executive Officer (principal
executive officer) and Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer) evaluated
our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e) as of the end
of the period covered by this Form 10-K. Based on this evaluation, our President and Chief Executive Officer and
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were
effective as of such date.

b) Changes In Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting. There has been no change in our internal control over
financial reporting that occurred during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this Form 10-K that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART IIT
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this Item 10 is: (i) incorporated into this Form 10-K by reference to our proxy
statement to be issued in connection with our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on February 17, 2004 under the
headings “Election of Directors,” "Election of Directors — Board Meetings and Committees of the Board,” and “Election of
Directors ~ Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance”, which proxy statement will be filed within 120
days after the end of our fiscal year ended September 30, 2003; and (ii) set forth under "Executive Officers of the
Registrant” in Part I, Item 4 of this Form 10-K.

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, principal
financial officer, principal accounting officer, controller and persons performing similar functions. Our Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics also applies to all of our other employees and, to the extent set forth therein, to our directors. Our Code
of Business Conduct and Ethics is posted on our website located at www.hma-corp.com under the heading “Investor
Relations.” We intend to satisfy any disclosure requirements under Item 10 of Current Report on Form 8-K regarding any
amendment to, or a waiver from, certain provisions of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics by posting such
information on our website under the “Investor Relations” heading. '

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item 11 is incorporated into this Form 10-K by reference to our proxy statement
to be issued in connection with our Annual Meeting of the Stockholders to be held on February 17, 2004 under the heading
"Executive Compensation", which proxy statement will be filed within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended
September 30, 2003.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The information required by this Item 12 is incorporated into this Form 10-K by reference to our proxy statement
to be issued in connection with our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on February 17, 2004 under the heading
"Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management", which proxy statement will be filed within 120 days
after the end of our fiscal year ended September 30, 2003.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this Item 13 is incorporated into this Form 10-K by reference to our proxy statement
to be issued in connection with our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on February 17, 2004 under the heading
"Certain Transactions", which proxy statement will be filed within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended
September 30, 2003.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14 is incorporated into this Form 10-K by reference to our proxy statement
to be issued in connection with our Annual Meeting of the Stockholders to be held on February 17, 2004 under the heading
"Relationship with Independent Accountants”, which proxy statement will be filed within 120 days after the end of our
fiscal year ended September 30, 2003.
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PART 1V

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule, and Reports on Form 8-K
Item 15(a)(1) and 15(a)(2):

We have filed our consolidated financial statements in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K. In addition, the financial
statement schedule entitled “Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts” is filed as part of this Form 10-K under Item
15(d).

All other schedules have been omitted since the required information is not present or is not present in amounts
sufficient to require submission of the schedule, or because the information required is included in the consolidated
financial statements and notes thereto.

tem 15(a)(3) and 15(c):

The exhibits filed as part of this Form 10-K are listed in the Index to Exhibits immediately following the signature
page of this Form 10-K.

Item 15(b):
Reports on Form §-K:

(a) Form 8-K - Reporting Date July 22, 2003
Item Reported — Item 9. Regulation FD Disclosure

b Form 8-K - Reporting Date July 24, 2003
Item Reported — Item 5. Other Events and Regulation FD Disclosure

(c) Form 8-K - Reporting Date August 25, 2003
Item Reported — Item 5. Other Events and Regulation FD Disclosure

Item 15(d):
HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.

SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(in thousands)

Balance at Acquisitions Charged Balance at
Beginning of and Charges to to other End of
Period Dispositions Operations(a) Accounts Deductions(b) Period
Year ended September 30, 2001
allowance for doubtful accounts.......cocveer. 3118602 $ 5,482 $154,114 S_- (3161,413) 3116785
Year ended September 30, 2002
allowance for doubtful accounts...................... 3116785 $33.143 $179.347 s _- ($190.659) $138,616
Year ended September 30, 2003
allowance for doubtful accounts.................... $138.616 $.1.061 $212.320 - ($200.982) 8151015
(a) Charges to operations include amounts related to provisions for doubtful accounts, before
recoveries.
(b) Includes amounts written-off as uncollectible, net of revenues.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant

SIGNATURES

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

HEALTH MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES, INC.

By _/s/ Joseph V. Vumbacco

Joseph V. Vumbacco

Pursuarnt to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by

President and Chief
Executive Officer

December 3, 2003

the following persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

/s/ William J. Schoen

William J. Schoen

/s/ Joseph V. Vumbacco

Joseph V. Vumbacco

/s/ Robert E. Farnham
Robert E. Farnham

/s/ Kent P. Dauten
Kent P. Dauten

/s/ Donald E. Kieman
Donald E. Kiernan

/s/ Robert A. Knox
Robert A. Knox

/s/ Kenneth D. Lewis
Kenneth D. Lewis

/s/ William E. Mayberry
William E. Mayberry, M.D.

/s/ William C. Steere, Jr.
William C. Steere, Jr.

/s/ Randolph W. Westerfield |

Randolph W. Westerfield, Ph.D.

Chairman of the Board
of Directors

President, Chief Executive Officer,
and Director (Principal
Executive Officer)

Senior Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer
and Principal Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

December 3, 2003

December 3, 2003

December 3, 2003

December 3, 2003

December 3, 2003

December 3, 2003

December 3, 2003

December 3, 2003

December 3, 2003

December 3, 2003




2

3

S

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Plan of acquisition, reorganization, arrangement, liquidation or succession

Not applicable.

)] Articles of Incorporation

3.1 Fifth Restated Certificate of Incorporation, previously filed and included as Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1995 (SEC File No.
000-18799), is incorporated herein by reference.

32 Certificate of Amendment to Fifth Restated Certificate of Incorporation, previously filed and
included as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 1999, is incorporated herein by reference.

(ii) By-laws

33 By-laws, as amended, previously filed and included as Exhibit 3.3 to the Company’s Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2001, is incorporated herein by reference.

Instruments defining rights of security helders, including indentures

The Exhibits referenced under (3) of this Index to Exhibits are incorporated herein by reference.

4.1

4.2

43

4.4

4.5

Specimen Stock Certificate, previously filed and included as Exhibit 4.11 to the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1992 (SEC File No. 000-
18799), is incorporated herein by reference.

Credit Agreement by and among the Company, as Borrower, Bank of America, N.A., as
Administrative Agent and as Lender, First Union National Bank, as Syndication Agent and as
Lender, and the Chase Manhattan Bank, as Syndication Agent and as Lender, and the Lenders
party thereto from time to time, dated November 30, 1999, previously filed and included as
Exhibit 4.5 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September
30, 1999, is incorporated herein by reference.

Credit Agreement dated March 23, 2000 between First Union National Bank and Health
Management Associates, Inc. pertaining to a $15 million working capital and cash management
line of credit, previously filed and included as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter year ended March 31, 2000, is incorporated herein by reference.

Indenture dated as of January 28, 2002, by and between the Company and Wachovia Bank,
National Association (formerly First Union National Bank), as Trustee, pertaining to the $330.0
million face value of Zero-Coupon Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2022 (includes
form of Zero-Coupon Convertible Senior Subordinated Note due 2022), previously filed and
included as Exhibit 4(a) to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 28, 2002, is
incorporated herein by reference.

Indenture dated as of July 29, 2003 between the Company and Wachovia Bank, National
Association, as Trustee, pertaining to the $575.0 million face value of 1.50% Convertible Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2023 (includes form of 1.50% Convertible Senior Subordinated Note due
2023), previously filed and included as Exhibit 4.5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-3 (Registration No. 333-109756), is incorporated herein by reference.
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®

10)

Voting Trust Agreement

Not applicable.

Material Contracts

Exhibits 4.2 through 4.5 referenced under (4) of this Index to Exhibits are incorporated herein by reference.

10.1

10.2

10.3

104

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

Health Management Associates, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan for Corporate Officers and Management
Staff, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.56 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1991 (SEC File No. 000-18799), is incorporated herein by

reference.

Amendment No. 1 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan for Corporate
Officers and Management Staff, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1995 (SEC File No. 000-18799),
is incorporated herein by reference.

Health Management Associates, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, dated July 12,
1990, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.22 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1993 (SEC File No. 000-18799), is incorporated herein
by reference.

First Amendment to the Health Management Associates, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement
Plan, dated January 1, 1994, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.51 to the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1994 (SEC File No. 000-
18799), is incorporated herein by reference.

Registration Agreement dated September 2, 1988 between HMA Holding Corp., First Chicago
Investment Corporation, Madison Dearborn Partners IV, Prudential Venture Partners, Prudential
Venture Partners I, William J. Schoen, Kelly E. Curry, Stephen M. Ray, Robb L. Smith, George
A. Taylor and Earl P. Holland, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.23 to the Company's
Registration Statement on Form S-1(Registration No. 33-36406), is incorporated herein by
reference.

Health Management Associates, Inc. 1991 Non-Statutory Stock Option Plan, previously filed and
included as Exhibit 10.67 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No.
33-43193), is incorporated herein by reference.

Amendment No. 1 and Amendment No. 2 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1991 Non-
Statutory Stock Option Plan, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.44 to the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1992 (SEC File No. 000-
18799), is incorporated herein by reference.

Health Management Associates, Inc. 1993 Non-Statutory Stock Option Plan, previously filed and
included as Exhibit 10.45 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 1992 (SEC File No. 000-18799), is incorporated herein by reference.

Health Management Associates, Inc. Stock Option Plan for Qutside Directors, previously filed and
included as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 1995 (SEC File No. 000-18799), is incorporated herein by reference.

Amendment No. 5 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1991 Non-Statutory Stock Option
Plan, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.57 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1995 (SEC File No. 000-18799), is incorporated herein
by reference.

62




10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

Amendment No. 3 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1993 Non-Statutory Stock Option
Plan, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.58 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1995 (SEC File No. 000-18799), is incorporated herein
by reference.

Amendment No. 1 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. Stock Option Plan for Outside
Directors, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.59 to the Company's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1995 (SEC File No. 000-18799), is
incorporated herein by reference.

Amendment No. 6 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1991 Non-Statutory Stock Option
Plan, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 1995 (SEC File No. 000-18799), is incorporated herein
by reference.

Amendment No. 7 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1991 Non-Statutory Stock Option
Plan, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 1995 (SEC File No. 000-18799), is incorporated herein
by reference.

Amendment No. 4 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1993 Non-Statutory Stock Option
Plan, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 1995 (SEC File No. 000-18799), is incorporated herein
by reference.

Amendment No. 5 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1993 Non-Statutory Stock Option
Plan, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 1995 (SEC File No. 000-18799), is incorporated herein
by reference. :

Health Management Associates, Inc. 1996 Executive Incentive Compensation Plan, previously
filed and included as Exhibit 99.15 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-8
(Registration No. 33-80433), is incorporated herein by reference.

Amendment No. 1 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1996 Executive Incentive
Compensation Plan, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1996, is incorporated herein by reference.

Second Amendment to the Health Management Associates, Inc. Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan, dated September 17, 1996, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.64 to the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1996, is
incorporated herein by reference. '

Amendment No. 5 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1996 Executive Incentive
Compensation Plan, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter year ended June 30, 2000, is incorporated herein by
reference.

Amendment No. 6 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1996 Executive Incentive
Compensation Plan, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter year ended June 30, 2000, is incorporated herein by
reference.
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10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

1031

10.32

10.33

Amendment No. 10 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1991 Non-Statutory Stock Option
Plan, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.37 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000, is incorporated herein by reference.

Amendment No. 8 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. 1993 Non-Statutory Stock Option
Plan, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.38 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000, is incorporated herein by reference.

Amendment to Stock Option Agreements between Health Management Associates, Inc. and
William J. Schoen made as of December 5, 2000, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.39 to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000, is
incorporated herein by reference.

Third Amendment to the Health Management Associates, Inc. Supplemental Retirement Plan,
previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.40 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000, is incorporated herein by reference.

Employment Agreement for William J. Schoen made as of January 2, 2001, previously filed and
included as Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No.
333-53602), is incorporated herein by reference

Amendment No. 8 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. Stock Option Plan for Outside
Directors, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2001, is incorporated herein by reference.

Purchase Agreement dated January 22, 2002 by and among the Company, Credit Suisse First
Boston Corporation and Salomon Smith Bamey Inc., as representatives of the initial purchasers,
previously filed and included as Exhibit 99(a) to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated January 28, 2002, is incorporated herein by reference.

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of January 28, 2002, by and among the Company, Credit
Suisse First Boston Corporation and Salomon Smith Bamey Inc., as representatives of the initial
purchasers, previously filed and included as Exhibit 99(b) to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated January 28, 2002, is incorporated herein by reference.

Amendment No. 9 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. Stock Option Plan for Outside
Directors, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.38 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2002, is incorporated herein by reference.

Amendment No. 10 to the Health Management Associates, Inc. Stock Option Plan for Outside
Directors, previously filed and included as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003, is incorporated herein by reference.

Purchase Agreement dated July 24, 2003 by and among the Company, Banc of America Securities
LLC, Lehman Brothers Inc. and Wachovia Capital Markets LLC, previously filed and included as
Exhibit 1.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Registration No. 333-109756),
is incorporated herein by reference.

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of July 29, 2003 by and among the Company, Banc of
America Securities LLC, Lehman Brothers Inc. and Wachovia Capital Markets LLC, previously
filed and included as Exhibit 4.7 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-3
(Registration No. 333-109756), is incorporated herein by reference.




10.34

10.35

Asset Sale Agreement among Health Management Associates, Inc., Health Point Physician
Hospital Organization, Inc., National Medical Hospital of Tullahoma, Inc., National Medical
Hospital of Wilson County, Inc., S.C. Management, Inc., Tenet HealthSystem Hospitals, Inc.,
Tenet HealthSystem Medical, Inc., Tenet Lebanon Surgery Center, L.L.C. and Wilson County
Management Services, Inc. dated as of August 22, 2003, previously filed and included as Exhibit
2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 1, 2003, is incorporated
herein by reference.

Amendment No. 1 to Asset Sale Agreement among Health Point Physician Hospital Organization,
Inc., National Medical Hospital of Tullahoma, Inc., National Medical Hospital of Wilson County,
Inc., S.C. Management, Inc., Tenet HealthSystem Hospitals, Inc., Tenet HealthSystem Medical,
Inc., Tenet Lebanon Surgery Center, L.L.C., Wilson County Management Services, Inc., Health
Management Associates, Inc., Citrus HMA, Inc., Kennett HMA, Inc., Lebanon HMA, Inc. and
Tullahoma HMA, Inc. dated as of October 31, 2003, previously filed and included as Exhibit 2.2
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 1, 2003, is incorporated herein by
reference.
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(11) Statement re computation of per share earnings
Not applicable.
(12) Statements re computation of ratios
Not applicable.
13) Annual report to security holders, Form 10-Q or quarterly report to security holders
Not applicable.
(14) Code of Ethics
Not applicable.
(16) Letter re change in certifying accountant
Not applicable.
(18) Letter re change in accounting principles
Not applicable.
(21) Subsidiaries of the registrant
21.1  Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
22 Published report regarding matters submitted to vote of security holders
Not applicable.
23) Consents of experts and counsel
23.1 Consent of Emst & Young LLP.
24) Power of Attorney
Not applicable.
31 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certifications
311 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certifications.
(32) Section 1350 Certifications
32.1 Section 1350 Certifications.
99 Additional Exhibits

Not applicable.
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Subsidiaries of Registrant

Exhibit 21.1

State of Doing Business As
Entity Incorporation (if different from corporate name)
Anniston HMA, Inc. Alabama Stringfellow Memorial Hospital
Biloxi HM.A,, Inc. Mississippi Biloxi Regional Medical Center
Brandon HM.A,, Inc. Mississippi Rankin Medical Center
Canton HMA, Inc. Mississippi
Carlisle HMA, Inc. Pennsylvania Carlisle Regional Medical Center
Citrus HMA, Inc. Florida
Clarksdale HM.A., Inc. Mississippi Northwest Mississippi Regional Medical
Center
Coffee Hospital Management Tennessee
Associates, Inc. (1)
Collier HMA, Inc. Florida Collier Regional Medical Center
Durant HM.A., Inc. Oklahoma Medical Center of Southeastern Oklahoma
Durant HMA Surgical Center, Inc. (5) Oklahoma

Gaftney HM.A, Inc.

Green Clinic, Inc.

Haines City HM.A., Inc.

Hamlet HM.A., Inc.

Hartsville HML.A., Inc.

Hartsville HMA Physician Management, Inc.
Health Management Associates of West
Virginia, Inc. (1)

Health Management Associates, Inc.
Health Management Investments, Inc.
Hernando HM.A., Inc.

HMA Fentress County General Hospital, Inc.
HMA Foundation, Inc.

HMA Mesquite Hospital, Inc.

HMA Santa Rosa Medical Center, Inc.
Hospital Management Associates, Inc.
Insurance Company of the Southeast, Ltd.

Jackson HMA North Medical Office Building,
Inc.

Jackson HMA, Inc.

Kentucky HMA Physician Management, Inc.

Kennett HMA, Inc.

Key West HMA Physician Management, Inc.

Key West HMA, Inc.

Keystone HMA Property Management, Inc.

Lake Norman HMA Surgical Center, Inc.

Lancaster HMA, Inc.

Lancaster HMA Physician Management, Inc.

Lebanon HMA, Inc.

Lehigh HMA, Inc.

South Carolina
Florida
Florida

North Carolina
South Carolina
South Carolina
West Virginia

Kentucky
Delaware
Florida

Tennessee
Florida
Texas
California
Kentucky
Cayman
Islands, BWI
Mississippi

Mississippi
Kentucky
Missouri
Florida
Florida
Pennsylvania
North Carolina
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania
Tennessee
Florida
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Upstate Carolina Medical Center

Heart of Florida Regional Medical Center
SandHills Regional Medical Center
Carolina Pines Regional Medical Center
The Medical Group

Williamson Memorial Hospital

Brooksville Regional Hospital
Spring Hill Regional Hospital
Jamestown Regional Medical Center

Medical Center of Mesquite
Santa Rosa Medical Center

Central Mississippi Medical Center

Lower Keys Medical Center

Community Hospital of Lancaster
Central Penn Medical Group

Lehigh Regional Medical Center




State of Doing Business As
Entity Incorporation (if different from corporate name)
Little Rock HM.A, Inc. Arkansas Southwest Regional Medical Center
Lone Star HMA, L.P. Delaware Mesquite Community Hospital
Louisburg HM.A., Inc. North Carolina Franklin Regional Medical Center
Madison HMA, Inc. Mississippi Madison County Medical Center
Marathon H.M.A., Inc. Florida Fishermen's Hospital
Meridian HM.A. Nursing Home, Inc. Mississippi
Meridian H.M.A., Inc. Mississippi Riley Memorial Hospital
Meridian HMA Clinic Management, Inc. Mississippi
Mesquite HMA General, LLC Delaware
Mesquite HMA Limited, LLC Delaware
Midwest City HM.A., Inc. Oklahoma Midwest Regional Medical Center
Monroe HMA, Inc. Georgia Walton Regional Medical Center
Mooresville HMA Physician Management, Primary Care Associates
Inc. North Carolina

Mooresville Hospital Management Associates,
Inc.

Natchez Community Hospital, Inc.

Orlando HM.A ., Inc.

Paintsville Hospital Company (1)

Pasco HMA, Inc.

PBEC HMA, Inc.

Pennington Gap HMA, Inc.

Personal Home Health Care, Inc.(2)

Polk HMA, Inc.

Poplar Bluff HMA, Inc.

Punta Gorda HMA, Inc.

Regional Cardiology Center, LLC (3)

River Oaks Hospital, Inc

River Oaks Management Company (4)

River Oaks Medical Office Building, Inc. (4)

Riverview Regional Medical Center, Inc.

ROH, Inc. (4)

Rose City HMA, Inc.

Sebastian Hospital, Inc.

Sebring Hospital Management Associates, Inc.

Statesboro HM.A., Inc.

Statesville HMA, Inc.

Tequesta HM.A., Inc.

The Surgery Center at Durant, LLC (6)

Topeka HM.A., Inc.

Tullahoma HMA, Inc.

Van Buren H.M.A., Inc.

Yakima HMA, Inc

Yakima HMA Physician Management Corp.

North Carolina
Mississippi
Florida
Kentucky
Florida
Florida
Virginia
Tennessee
Florida
Missourl
Florida
Mississippi
Mississippi
Mississippi
Mississippi
Alabama
Mississippi
Pennsylvania
Florida
Florida
Georgia
North Carolina
Florida
Oklahoma
Kansas
Tennessee
Arkansas
Washington
Washington

(1) Subsidiary of Health Management Associates, Inc. (Kentucky)
(2) Subsidiary of HMA Fentress County General Hospital, Inc.

(3) Subsidiary of Biloxi HM.A., Inc.
(4) Subsidiary of River Oaks Hospital, Inc.
(5) Subsidiary of Durant HM.A., Inc.

(6) Subsidiary of Durant HMA Surgical Center, Inc.
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Lake Norman Regional Medical Center

Natchez Community Hospital
University Behavioral Center

Paul B. Hall Regional Medical Center
Pasco Regional Medical Center
Pelican Bay Executive Center

Lee Regional Medical Center

Charlotte Regional Medical Center

River Oaks Health System
Preferred Medical Network

Riverview Regional Medical Center
Woman's Hospital at River Oaks
Lancaster Regional Medical Center
Sebastian River Medical Center
Highlands Regional Medical Center
East Georgia Regional Medical Center
Davis Regional Medical Center
SandyPines

The Surgery Center at Durant

Crawford Memorial Hospital
Yakima Regional Medical & Heart Center




Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (Form S-8 Nos. 33-43290, 33-65380, 33-
65382, 33-80433 and 333-53602) pertaining to the Health Management Associates, Inc. Retirement Savings Plan and
various employee and directors stock option plans of Health Management Associates, Inc. and Registration Statements
(Form S-3 Nos. 333-86034, 333-102686 and 333-109756) of Health Management Associates, Inc. and in the related
Prospectuses of our report dated October 21, 2003, except for Note 12, as to which the date is November 1, 2003,
with respect to the consolidated financial statements and schedule of Health Management Associates, Inc. included in
the Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended September 30, 2003.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Tampa, Florida
December 18, 2003
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Exhibit 31.1
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Principal Executive Officer
I, Joseph V. Vumbacco, certify that:
1. @have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Health Management Associates, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared,

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

¢) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: December 3, 2003 /s/ Joseph V. Vumbacco
Joseph V. Vumbacco,
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Principal Financial Officer
I, Robert E. Farnham, certify that:
1. Ihave reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Health Management Associates, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of]
and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

¢) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: December 3, 2003 /s/ Robert E. Farnham
Robert E. Farnham,
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

Section 1350 Certifications

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
(“Section 906”), Joseph V. Vumbacco and Robert E. Farnham, the President and Chief Executive Officer and Senior
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, respectively, of Health Management Associates, Inc., certify that (i) the
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2003 fully complies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and (ii) the information contained in such report fairly
presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Health Management Associates,
Inc.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Health
Management Associates, Inc. and will be retained by Health Management Associates, Inc. and furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

/s/ Joseph V. Vumbacco

Joseph V. Vumbacco

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: December 3, 2003

/s/ Robert E. Farnham
Robert E. Farnham
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)
Date: December 3, 2003
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